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Rev. 9-15-03
HMFA: N.J.S.A. 55:14K-1 et seq.
Moderate Income/Market Rate Rental Housing

Re: 160 Lafayette Street
Block 2057, Lot 18
Morris Canal Redevelopment Plan

PREAMBLE

THIS FINANCIAL AGREEMENT, [Agreecment] made this 24th day of
November, 2003, by and between WHITLOCK MILLS, L.P., is a qualified housing
sponsor under the New Jersey Mortgage Housing Iinance Agency N.J.S.A. 55:14K-1 et seq.
having its principal office at c/o Housing Trust of America, 6851 Oak Hall Lane, Suite 100,
Columbia, MD 21045, and the CITY OF JERSEY CITY, a Municipal Corporation in the
County of Hudson and the State of New Jersey, [City], having its principal office at 280
Grove Street, Jersey City, New Jersey 07302.

RECITALS
WITNESSETH:
WHEREAS, the Entity is the Owner of certain property designated as Block 2057,

Lotl S,Imore commonly known by the street address of 160 Lafayette Street, Jersey City, NJ,
and more particularly described by the metes and bounds description set forth as Exhibit 1
to this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, this property is located within the boundaries of the Morris Canal

Redevelopment Plan Area; and

WHEREAS, the Entity plans to construct certain improvements on the property to
create a total of 330 units of rental housing, 132 units of rental market rate housing and 198
units of moderate income rental housing units with a parking garage for approximately 142
cars and a surface parking lot for approximately 108 cars, [Project]; and

WHEREAS, on October 8, 2003, the Entity’s Application for a HMFA tax
exemption for the Project was approved by the City by the adoption of Ordinance 03-139;
and

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained,
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and for other good and valuable consideration, it is mutually covenanted and agreed as
follows:

ARTICLE I - GENERAL PROVISIONS
Section 1.1  Governing Law

This Agreement shall be governed by the provisions of the New Jersey Housing and

Mortgage Finance Agency Law, N.I.8.A. 55:14K-1 et seq., Executive Order of the Mayor,
02-003, Otdinance 02-075 and Ordinance 03-139, which authorized the execution of this
Agreement. It being expressly understood and agreed that the City expressly relies upon the
facts, data, and representations contained in the Application, attached hereto as Exhibit 3, in
granting this tax exemption. _
Section 1.2 General Definitions ' -
Unless specifically provided otherwise or the context otherwise requires, when used

in this Agreement, the following terme shall have the following meanings:

L. Aggﬂgy_- The New Jersey Housing and Mortgage Finance Agency.

ii. Annusal Gross Revenue- The total gross income, including any
and all revenue derived from or generated by the Project of whatever kind or amount,
whether received as rent from any tenants or incoﬁe or fees from thir& parties, including but
not limited to fees or income paid or received for parldng, laundry, or other services,
including any Section 8 certificate revenue derived from the Prc;j ect, including all rent and
other income. It also includes the cost of insurance, gas, electricity, water and sewer charges,

other utilities, garbage removal and insurance charges even if paid for directly by the Tenant,

if such expense is ordinarily paid for by the Landlord.
iil. Annual Service Charge - Estimated as follows:

A. 4% of Arnual Gross Revenue $173,775 or approximately
$526 per unit for the first 10 years;'

B.. 5% of Annual Gross Revenue for the second 10 years;

C. | 7.5% of Annual Gross Revenue for the third 10 years;

D. 8.6% of Annual Gross Revenue for the final 10 years,

inaccordance with the financiai plan attached hereto as Exhibit 2, which sum is in lieu of any
taxes.



1v. Auditor's Report - A complete financial statement outlining the

financial status of the Project (for a period of time as indicated by context). The contents of
the Auditor’s Report shall have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles and shall contain at a minimum the following: a balance shest, a
statement of income, a statement of retained earnings or changes in stockholder’s equity,
statement of cash flows, descriptions of accounting policies, notes to financial statements and
appropriate schedules and explanatory material results of operations, cash flows and any
other items reasonably required by the City or its auditors. The Auditor’s Report shall be
certified as to its conformance with such principles by a certified public accountant who is
licensed to practice that profession in the State of New Jersey.

V. Certificate _of Occupancy - Document, whether temporary or

permanent, issued by the City authorizing occupancy of a building, in whole or in part,
pursuant to N.J.S.A. 52:27D-133.

vi. Default - Shall be a breach of or the failure of the Entity to perform
any obligation imposed upon the Entity byrfhe terms of this Agreement, or under the Law,
beyond any applicable grace or cure periods.

vii.  Entity - The term Entity within this Agreement shall mean Whitlock
Mills, L.P., which Entity is formed pursuant to the laws of the State of Maryland and is
qualified to do business in the State of New Jersey. It shall also include any subsequent
purchasers or successors in interest of the Project, provided they are formed and operate

under by Law and the transfer has been duly approved by the City.

viti, Improvements or Project - Any building, structure or fixture
permanently affixed to the land and to be constructed and tax exempted under this
Agreement.

iX. In Rem Tax Foreclosure or Tax Foreclosure - A summary proceeding
by which the City may enforce a lien for taxes due and owing by tax sale, under N.J.S.A.
54:5-1 to 54:5-129 et seq.

X. Land Taxes - The amount of taxes assessed on the value of land, on

which the project is located and, if applicable, taxes on any pre-existing improvements. Land



Taxes are not exempt; however, Land Taxes appear to be exempt; however, if Land Taxes
are determined to be due they will be applied as a credit against the Annual Service Charge.

X1. Land Tax Payments - Payments made on the quarterly due dates,
including approved grace periods if any, for Land Taxes, if any, as determined by the Tax
Assessor and the Tax Collector.

xii,  Law - Law shall refer to the New Jersey Housing and Mortgage
Finance Agency Law, N.J.S.A. 55:14K-1 et seq.; Executive Order of the Mayor 02-003,
relating to long term tax exemption, as it may be amended and supplemented; Ordinance 03-
139, which authorized the execution of this Agreement and all other relevant Federal, State
or City statutes, ordinances, resolutions, rules and/or regulations.

xiii.  Minimum Annual Service Charge - The Minimum Annual Service
Charge shall be the amount of the total taxes levied against all real property in the area
covered by the Project in the last full tax year preceding the recording of the HMFA
mortgage which amount the parties agree is $90,968.50. The Minimum Annual Service
Charge shall be paid in each year in which the Annual Service Charge, calculated pursuant
to the Financial Agreement would be less than the Minimum Annual Service Charge.

IX. Pronouns - He or it shall mean the masculine, feminine or neuter
gender, the singular, as well as the plural, as context requires.

X. Substantial Completion - The determination by the City that the

Project, in whole or in part, is ready for the use intended, which ordinarily shall mean the

date on which the Project receives, or is eligible to receive any Certificate of Occupancy for
any portion of the Project. '

Xi. Termination - Any act or omission which by operation of the terms
of this Financial Agreement shall cause the Entity to relinquish its tax exemption.

ARTICLE IT - APPROVAL

Section 2.1  Approval of Tax Exemption
The City hereby grants its approval for a tax exemption from real estate taxes in
accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement and the provisions of the Law

on certain property known on the Official Tax Assessor’s Map of the City as: Block 2057,



Lots 18, more commonly known by the street address of 160 Lafayette Street, Jersey City,
New Jersey, and described by metes and bounds in Exhibit 1 attached hereto.
Section 2.2  Approval of Entity

Approval is granted to the Entity whose Certificate of Limited Partnership is attached
hereto as Exhibit 4. Entity represents that its Certificate has been filed with, as appropriate,
the State Treasurer.
Section 2.3 Improvements to be Constructed

Entity represents that it will construct certain improvements on the Property to create
a total of approximately 330 units of rental housing, (132 units of rental market rate housing,
and 198 units of moderate income rental housing units) with a parking garage for
approximately 142cars and a surface parking lot for approximately 108 cars, all of which is
more specifically described in the Application attached hereto as Exhibit 3.
Section 2.4  Construction Schedule

The Entity agrees to diligently undertake to commence consiruction, use its best
efforts to, and complete the Project in accordance with the Estimated Construction Schedule,
attached hereto as Exhibit 5.
Section 2.5 Ownership, Management and Control

The Entity represents that it is the owner of the Project to be constructed and that it
will manage and control the Project. The City acknowledges that the Entity may enter into |
a management agreement for the Project and will pay a management fee in accordance with
HUD or HMFA regulations, which fee was disclosed in its tax exemption application. The

City acknowledges that the Entity may enter into future management agreements so long as

such agreements are not used to reduce the City’s economic benefits under this Agreement
and the management fees to be paid are comparable to those disclosed in the Application.
Section 2.6  Financial Plan

The Entity represents that the Improvements shall be financed substantially in
accordance with the Financial Plan attached hereto as Exhibit 6. The Plan sets forth
estimated Total Project Cost, the amortization rate on the Total Project Cost, the source of

funds, the interest rates to be paid on construction financing, the source and amount of paid-
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in capital, and the terms of any mortgage amortization.
Section 2.6  Statement of Rental Schedules and Lease Terms

The Entity represents that its good faith projections of the initial rental schednles and
lease terms are set forth in Exhibit 7, attached hereto, '

ARTICLE ITI - DURATION OF AGREEMENT

Section 3.i . Term

So long as there is compliance with the Law and this Agreement, it is understood and
agreed by the parties hereto that this Agreement shall remain in effect for the earlier of: 45
years from the date of the adoption of Ordinance 03-139, which approved this exemption
or 40 years from the date of Substantial Completion of the Project but in no ¢vent beyond the
date that the HMFA morigage is paid in full. The tax exemption shall only be effective
during the period of usefulness of the Project and shell continue in force only while the
Project is owned by a corporation or association formed and operating under the Law,

ARTICLE IV - ANNUAL SERVICE CHARGE

Section 4.1 Annual Service Charge

In consideration of the tax exemption, the Entity shall make payment to the City of
an amount equal to the greater of: the Migimum Annual Service Charge or an Annual
Service Charge. The Annual Service Charge shall be billed initially based upon the Entity’s
estimates of Annual Gross Revenue as set forth in its Financial Plan, attached hereto as
Exhibit 6. Thereafter, the Annwal Service Charge shall be adjusted in accordance with this

Section.

A Minimum Annua}l Service Charge shail be due beginning on the date this
Agreement is executed. The Annual Service Charge or Minimum Annual Service Charge,
as the case may be, shall be due ﬁn the first day of the month following the Substantial
Completion of the Project. In the event the Entity fails to timely pay the Minimum Annual
Service Charge or the Annual Service Charge, the amount unpaid shall bear the highest rate .
of interest permitted in the case of unpaid taxes or tax liens on land until paid.

The amount of the quarterly payment of the Anmual Service Charge shall be estimated

based on the actual amount of Annual Gross Revenue generated by the project in the



previous tax year, as determined by the auditor’s reports of income and expenses. The
amount of such payment shall be subject to adjustment based on the City’s review of the
auditor’s reports of income and expenses submitted to the City and a determination of the
correct amount due (the Audited Amount). Within ninety (90) days after the Audited
Amount is determined and notice thereof is given to the Entity, the Entity shall pay any
underpayment or the City shall refund any overpayment of the Annual Service Charge, as the
case may be.
Section 4.2  Administrative Fee

The Entity shall also pay an annual administrative fee to the City in addition to the
Minimum or Annual Service Charge. This administrative fee shall equal two (2%) percent
of the Annual Service Charge and shall be payable and due on or before December 31st of
cach year and collected in the same manner as the Annual Service Charge.
Section 4.3 Land Tax Credit

If the Law requires the Entity to pay Land Taxes in addition tot he service charges,
then the Entity will be entitled to a land tax credit against the service charges. In order to be
entitled to the credit, however, the Enfity is obligated to make timely Land Tax payments,
in order to be entitled to a Land Tax Credit against the Annual Service Charge for the
subsequent year. The Entity shall be entitled to credit for the amount, without interest, of the
Land Tax Payments made in the last four preceding quarterly mstallments against the Annual
Service Charge. In any year that the Entity fails to make any Land Tax Payments when due
and owing, such delinquency shall render the Entity ineligible for any Land Tax Payment

credits against the Annual Service Charge for that year. No credit will be applied against the
Annual Service Charge for partial payments of Land Taxes. Inaddition, the City shall have,
among this remedy and other remedies, the right to proceed against the property pursuant
to the In Rem Tax Foreclosure Act, N.J.S.A. 54:5-1, et seq. and/or declare a Default and
terminate this Agreement.
Section 4.4  Quarterly Installments

The Entity expressly agrees that the Annual Service Charge shall be made in quarterly

installments on those dates when real estate tax payments are due; subject, nevertheless, to



adjustment for over or underpayment within thirty (30) days after the close of each calendar
year. In the event that the Entity fails to pay the Annual Service Charge, the amount unpaid
shall bear the highest rate of interest permitted in the case of unpaid taxes or tax liens on the
land until paid.
Scction 4.5  Material Conditions

It is expressly agreed and understood that the timely payments of Land Taxes,
Minimum Annual Service Charges, Annual Service Charges, including adjustments thereto,
Administrative Fees, and any interest thereon, are Material Conditions of this Agreement.

ARTICLE V - PROJECT EMPLOYMENT & CONTRACTING AGREEMENT

Section 5.1 Project Employment & Contracting Agreement

In order to provide City residents and businesses with certain employment and other
economic related opportunities, the Entity is subject to the terms and conditions of the
Project Employment Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit 8.

ARTICLE VI - CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY

Section 6.1  Certificate of Occupancy

It is understood and agreed that it shall be the obligation of the Entity to obtain all
Certificates of Occupancy in a timely manner. The failure to secure the Certificates of
Occupancy shall subject the property to full taxation.

Section 6.2  Filing of Certificate of Occupancy
It shall be the primary responsibility of the Entity to forthwith file with both the Tax

Assessor and the Tax Collector a copy of each Certificate of Occupancy.

Failure of the Entity to file such issued Certificate of Occupancy as required by the
preceding paragraph, shall not militate against any action or non-action, taken by the City,
including, if appropriate retroactive billing with interest for any charges determined to be
due, in the absence of such filing by the Entity.

Section 6.3  Construction Permits

The estimated cost basis disclosed by the Entity's application and proposed Financial

Agreement may, at the option of the City, be used as the basis for the construction cost in the

issuance of any construction permit(s) for the Project.



ARTICLE VII - ANNUAL REPORTS

Section 7.1  Accounting System

The Entity agrees to maintain a system of accounting and internal controls established
and administered in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
Section 7.2 Periodic Reports

A. Auditor’s Report: Within ninety (90) days after the close of each fiscal or calendar
year, depending on the Entity's accounting basis that this Agreement shall continue in effect,
the Entity shall submit to the Municipal Council, the Tax Collector and the City Clerk, who
shall advise those municipal officials required to be advised, and the HMFA, its Auditor’s
Report for the preceding fiscal or calendar year. The Auditor's Report shall include, but not
be limited to: Rental schedule of the Project, and the terms and interest rate on any
mortgage(s) associated with the purchase or construction of the Project and such details as
may relate to the financial affairs of the Entity and to its operation and performance
hereunder, pursuant to the Law and this Agreement. The Report shall clearly identify and
calculate the Net Profit for the Entity during the previous year.

B. Disclosure Statement: On the anniversary date of the execution of this Agreement,
if there has been a change in ownership or interest from the prior year’s filing, the Entity
shall submit to the Municipal Council, the Tax Collector and the City Clerk, who shall
advise those municipal officials required to be advised, a Disclosure Statement listing the
persons having an ownership interest in the Project, and the extent of the ownership interest

of each and such additional information as the City may request from time to time.

Section 7.3  Mortgage

Within ninety (90) days after the date the Entity closes on its loan with the Agency,
the Entity shall file with the City a fully executed copy of the Note and a recorded copy of
the HMFA Mortgage.
Section 7.4  Inspection .

The Entity shall permit the inspection of its property, equipment, buildings and other
facilities of the Project and, if deemed appropriate or necessary, any other related Entity by

representatives duly authorized by the City and the HMFA. It shall also permit, upon



request, examination and audit of its books, contracts, records, documents and papers Such
examiation or audit shall be made during the reasonable hours of the business day, in the
presence of an officer or agent designated by the Entity.

ARTICLE VINI- LIMITATION OF PROFITS AND RESERVES

Section 8.1  Limitation of Profits and Reserves

During the period of tax exemption as provided herein, the Entity’s return on
investment shall be limited in accordance with the regulations and conditions imposed by the
Agency pursuant to N.J.S.A. 55:14k-7(6) or any other Law applicable.

ARTICLE IX - ASSIGNMENT AND/OR ASSUMPTION

Section 9.1  Prior Approval of Sale

Any change made in the ownership of the Project and sale or transfer of the Project,
shall be void unless approved in advance by Ordinance of the Municipal Council. It is
understood and agreed that the City, on written application by the Entity, will not
unreasonably withhold its consent to a sale of the Project and the transfer of this Agreement
provided 1) the new Entity is a housing sponsor under the Law; 2) the Entity is not then in
default of this Agreement or the Law; and (3) the Entity’s obligations under this Agreement
are fully assumed by the new Entity.

ARTICLE X - COMPLIANCE

Section 10.1 Operation
During the term of this Agreement, the Project shall be maintained and operated in

accordance with the provisions of the Law. Operation of Project under this A greement shall

not only be terminable as provided by N.J.S.A. 55:14K-1 et seq., as currently amended and
supplemented, but also by a Default under this Agreement. The Entity's failure to comply
with the Law shall constitute a Default under this Agreement and the City shall, among its
other remedies, have the right to terminate the tax exemption.
Section 10.2 Disclosure of Lobbyist Representative

During the term of this Agreement, the Entity must comply with Executive Order
2002-005, and Ordinance 02-075, requiring Written Disclosure of Lobbyist Representative
Status. The Entity’s failure to comply with the Executive Order or the Ordinance shall

10



constitute a Default under this Agreement and the City shall, among its other remedies, have
the right to terminate the tax exemption.
ARTICLE XI - DEFAULT

Section 11.1 Default

Default shall be failure of the Entity to conform with the terms of this Agreement or
failure of the Entity to perform any obligation imposed by the Law, beyond any applicable
notice, cure or grace period.
Section 11.2 Cure Upon Default

Should the Entity be in Default, the City shall send written notice to the Entity of the
Default [Default Notice]. The Default Notice shall set forth with particularity the basts of
the alleged Default. The Entity shall have sixty (60) days, from receipt of the Default Notice,
to cure any Default which shall be the sole and exclusive remedy available to the Entity.
However, if, in the reasonable opinion of the City, the Default cannot be cured within sixty
(60) days using reasonable diligence, the City will extend the time to cure.

Subsequent to such sixty (60) days, or any approved extension, the City shall have
the right to terminate this Agreement in accordance with Section 12.1.

Should the Entity be in default failure to pay any charges defined as Material
Conditions in Section, shall not be subject to the default procedural remedies as provided in
Section 5.1 herein but shall allow the City to proceed immediately to terminate the
Agreement as provided in Article XII herein.

_Section 11.3 Remedies Upon Default

The City shall, among its other remedies, have the right to proceed against the
property pursuant to the In Rem Tax Foreclosure Act, N.J.S.A. 54:5-1, et seq. and/or may
declare a Default and terminate this Agreement. Any default arising out of the Entity's
failure o pay Land Taxes, the Minimum Annual Service Charge, Administrative Fees, or the
Annual Service Charges shall not be subject to the default procedural remedies as provided
in Article XI Land Taxes or the Annual Service Charges shall not be subject to the default
procedural remedies as provided in Article XI herein but shall allow the City to proceed
immediately to terminate the Agreement as provided in Article XII herein. All of the

11



remedies provided in this Agreement to the City, and all rights and remedics granted to it by
law and equity shall be cumulative and concurrent. No determination of any provision of this
Agreement shall deprive the City of any of its remedies or actions against the Entity because
of its failure to pay Land Taxes, the Minimum Annual Service Charge, Annual Service
Charge, or Administrative Fees. This right shall apply to arrearages that are due and owing
at the time or which, under the terms hereof, would in the future become due as if there had
been no determination. Further, the bringing of any action for Land Taxes, the Minimum
Annual Service Charge, the Annual Service Charge, or Administrative Fees, or for breach
of covenant or the resort to any other remedy herein provided for the recovery of Land Taxes
shall not be construed as a waiver of the rights to terminate the tax exemption or proceed
with a tax sale or Tax Foreclosure action or any other specified remedy.
In the event of a Default on the part of the Entity to pay any charges set forth in
Article TV, the City among its other remedies, reserves the right to proceed against the
| Entity's land and property, in the manner provided by the In Rem Foreclosure Act, and any
act supplementary or amendatory thereof. Whenever the word taxes appear, or is applied,
directly or impliedly to mean taxes ormunicipal liens on land, such statutory provisions shall
be read, as far as is pertinent to this Agreement, as if the charges were taxes or municipal
liens on land. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Entity does not waive any defense it may
have to contest the right of the City to proceed by in rem foreclosure.
ARTICLE XII- TERMINATION

In the event the Entity fails to cure or remedy the Default within the time period

provided in Section 11.2, the City may terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days
written notice to the Entity [Notice of Termination].
Section 12.2 Voluntary Termination by the Entity

The Entity may after the expiration of one year from the Substantial Completion of
the Project notify the City that as of a certain date designated in the notice, it relinquishes 1ts
status as a tax exempt Project. As of the date so set, the tax exemption, the Annual Service

Charges and the profit and dividend restrictions shall terminate.
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Section 12.3 Final Accounting
Within ninety (90) days after the date of termination, whether by affirmative action
of the Entity or by virtue of the provisions of the Law or pursuant to the terms of this
Agreement, the Entity shall provide a final accounting to the City. For purposes of rendering
a final accounting the termination of the Agreement shall be deemed to be the end of the
fiscal year for the Entity.
Section 12.4 Conventional Taxes
Upon Termination or expiration of this Agreement, the tax exemption for the Project
shall expire and the land and the Improvements thereon shall thereafier be assessed and
conventionally taxed according to the general law applicable to other nonexempt taxable
property in the City.
ARTICLE XIII - DISPUTE RESOLUTION
Secticn 13.1  Arbitration
In the event of a breach of the within Agreement by either of the parties hereto or a
dispute arising between the parties in reference to the terms and provisions as set forth
herein, either party may apply to the Superior Court of New Jersey by an appropnate
proceeding, to settle and resolve the dispute in such fashion as will tend to accomplish the
purposes of the Law. In the event the Superior Court shall not entertain jurisdiction, then the
' parties shall submit the dispute to the American Arbitration Association in New Jersey to be
determined in accordance with its rules and regulations in such a fashion to accomplish the
_ purpose of the Long Term Tax Exemption Law. The cost for the arbitration shalibeborne
equally by the parties. The parties agree that the Entity may not file an action in Superior
Court or with the Arbitration Association unless the Entity has first paid in full all charges
defined in Article III, Section 4.8 as Material Conditions.
ARTICLE XTIV - WAIVER

Section 14.1 Waiver
Nothing contained in this Financial Agreement or otherwise shall constitute a waiver
or relinquishment by the City of any rights and remedies, including, without limitation, the

right to terminate the Agreement and tax exemption for violation of any of the conditions
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provided herein. Nothing herein shall be deemed to limit any right of recovery of any
amount which the City has under law, in equity, or under any provision of this Agreement.
ARTICLE XV - INDEMNIFICATION
Section 15.1 Defined
It is understood and agreed that in the event the City shall be named as party

defendant in any action (other than an action commenced by the Entity) alleging any breach,
default or a violation of any of the provisions of this Agreement and/or the provisions of
N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 et seq., the Entity shall indemnify and hold the City harmless, and the
Entity agrees at the option of the City to defend the suit at its own expense or retmburse the
City for any fees or costs the City incurs to do so.
ARTICLE XVI- NOTICE

Section 16.1 Certified Mail

Any notice required hereunder to be sent by either party to the other shall be sent by

certified or registered mail, return receipt requested.
Section 16.2 Sent by City
When sent by the City to the Entity the notice shall be addressed to:

Whitlock Mills, L.P., ¢/o Housing Trust of America
6851 Oak Hall Lane, Suite 100

Columbia, MD 21045

Attn.; Wallace L. Scruggs

New Jersey Housing and Mortgage Finance Agency
637 South Clinton Avenue '
P.O. Box 18550

Trenton, NJ 08650-2085

unless prior to giving of notice the Entity shall have notified the City in writing otherwise.
In addition, provided the City is sent a formal written notice in accordance with this
Agreement, of the name and address of Entity’s Mortgagee, the City agreesto provide such
Mortgagee with a copy of any notice required to be sent to the Entity.
Section 16.3 Sent by Entity
When sent by the Entity to the City, it shall Be addressed to:
City of Jersey City, Office of the City Clerk

14



City Hall

280 Grove Street

Jersey City, New Jersey 07302,
with copies sent to the Corporation Counsel, the Business Administrator, and the Tax
Collector unless prior to the giving of notice, the City shall have notified the Entity
otherwise. The notice to the City shall identify the Project to which it relates, (i.e., the
Entity and the Property’s Block and Lot number).

ARTICLE XVII-SEVERABILITY

Section 17.1 Severability

If any term, covenant or condition of this Agreement or the Application, except a
Material Condition, shall be judicially declared to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder
of this Agreement or the application of such term, covenant or condition to persons or
circumstances other than those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be
affected thereby, and each term, covenant or condition of this Agreement shall be valid and
be enforced to the fullest extent permitted by law.

If a Material Condition shall be judicially declared to be invalid or unenforceable and
provided the Entity is not in Default of this Agreement, the parties shall cooperate with each
other to take the actions reasonably required to restore the Agreement in a manner
contemplated by the parties. This shall include, but not be limited to the authorization and
re-execution of this Agreement in a form reasonably drafted to effectuate the original intent

of the parties. However, the City shall not be required to restore the Agreement if it would

modify a Material Condition, the amount of the periodic adjustments or any other term of
this Agreement which would result in any economic reduction or loss to the City.
ARTICLE XVIII - MISCELLANEOUS
Section 18.1 Construction
This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the
State of New Jersey, and without regard to or aid of any presumption or other rule requiring
construction against the party drawing or causing this Agreement to be drawn since counsel

for both the Entity and the City have combined in their review and approval of same.
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Section 18.2 Conflicts

The parties agree that in the event of a conflict between the Application and the
language contained in the Agreement, the Agreement shall govern and prevail. In the event
of conflict between the Agreement and the Law, the Law shall govern and prevail.
Section 18.3 Oral Representations

There have been no oral representations made by either of the parties hereto which
are not contained in this Agreement. This Agreement, the Ordinance authorizing the
Agreement, and the Application constitute the entire Agreement between the parties and
there shall be no modifications thereto other than by a written instrument approved and
executed by both parties and delivered to each party.
Section 18.4 Enfire Document

This Agreement and all conditions in the Ordinance of the Municipal Council
approving this Agreement are incorporated in this Agreement and made a part hereof.
Section 18.5 Good Faith

In their dealings with each other, utmost good faith is required from the Entity and
the City.

ARTICLE XIX - EXHIBITS

Section 19 Exhibits

The following Exhibits are attached hereto and incorporated herein as if set forth at
length herein:
1. Metes and Bounds description of the Project;

2. Ordinance of the City authorizing the execution of this Agreement;
3. The Application with Exhibits;

4. Certificate of the Entity;

5. Estimated Construction Schedule;

6. The Financial Plan for the undertaking of the Project;

7. Initial Rental Schedules and Lease Terms;
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8. Project Employment Agreement;
5. Architect's Certification of Actual Construction Costs;

10. Written approval of HMFA mortgage loan, including the amount and
term thereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused these presents to be executed
the day and year first above written.

ATTEST: WHITLOCK MILLS, L.P.
BY: HTA Whitlock, LLC, its general partner

SECRETARY Wallace L. Scruggs, Managing Meipber

CITY OF JERSEY CITY
; c
e e s
CARLTON McGEE

BUSINESS ADMINISTRATOR
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MASSOCIATES LLP

Engineers
Architscts

EXHIRIT 1

Landscape Architecls
Surveyors
Planners

DESCRIFTION

ALL THAT CERTAIN tract or parcel of land and premises situate in the City of

Jersey City, County of Hudson.and State of New Jersey, bounded and described
as follows:

BEGINNING at the intersection of the center Jine of Lafayetie Street (60 feet

wide) with the Southeasterly fine of former Manning Avenue (60 feet wide)
(vacated 7/18/1955); thence

1.

South 31909'00" East, alang the center line of Lafayette Street, 100.14 fect to
a point; thence

South 61251'00" West, 217.97 feet to a point; thence

North 28°09'00" West, 100.00 feet to a point in the former Southeasterly line
of vacated Manning Avenue; thence ‘

. North §1°51'00" East, along same, 15.95 feet to a point; thence:

North 30°53'45" West, 30.04 fest to a point in the former center line of same;
thence

. In & general Northerly direction, curving to the right on a radius of 168.42 faet

North 61951°00" East, along same, 15.95 feet to a point; thence
North 30°53'45” West, 196.84 feet to a point of curve; thence

In a general Northerly direction, curving to the right on a radius of 409.05 feet,
an arc distance of 66.27 feet to a point of compound curve; thence

T

an arc distance of 109.80 feet to a point; thence

10.North 62957'40" West, 73.25 feet to a point; thence

11.South 58204°00™ West, 32.05 feet 10 a point; thence

Lenterpainte al tast Gate
167 Gailher Drive, Suita 105
Mount Laurel, NJ DB054-1740

Tel: 856.234.0800
Fax: 856.134.5928



Y

12. North 31209'00” West, 125.03 feet 10 a point in the Southeastery line of M.S.
- Conrail C.R.R. Co. of N.J., Lafayette Branch Main Stem; thence

13. North 53202'00" East, along same, 16.73 feet {0 a point; thence
14.North 83202'00 East, along same, 83.20 feat to a point; thence
18. N;'m:h 67217'16" East, along same, 98.47 feet 1o a point; thance
16.North 70202'00” East, along same, 58.31 feetto a point; thence .
17.North 75202'00" East, along same, 28.69 feet to a point; thence
18.North 76%02'00” East, along same, 48.45 feat to a point; thence
19. North 80°17°00" East, along same, 48.52 -feet to a point; thence
20.North 82247'00" East, along séme, 37.15 feet fo a point; thernce

21.South 86°43°00" East, along the Southwesterly line of M.S. Conrail C.R.R. Co.
of N.J., Lafayette Branch Main Stem, 86.44 feetto a point; thence

22.5outh 80°58°00" East, along same, 67.59 fest to a point: thence

point; thence

24.South 70208'00" East, along same, 249.80 feet to a point; thence
25.South 14229'00" West, 75.67 feet 10 a point; thence

26.South 28%09'00” East, 111.44 fest to a point in the former center line of
vacated Manning Avenue; thence

27.South 61°51'00" West, along same, 166.56 feet to a point; thence

28. Narth 28208'00” West, 69.88 feet to a point; thence
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29.South 61°51°00" West, 45.75 feat to a point; thence
30.North 30°22'20” West, 17.72 fect to a point; thence
31.South 59237'40" West, 74.60 feat o a pclaint; thence
32.North 30%22'20" Wast, 130.57 feat to a point; thence
33.North 59937°40" East, 46.00 feet to a point; thence
34.North 30%22'20" West, 90.52 feet 1o a point; thence
35.North 58%37°40" East, 74.32 feat to a point; thence

38. South 30%22'20" East, 240.58 feet to the end of the above 28", courss above
given, thence

37.South 28°08'00” East, along said 28™. course, 69.88 feet to a point in the
former center line of vacated Manning Avenue; thence -

38.5outh 61°51°00” West, along same, 276.06 feet to a point in the extended
Northeasterly line of Lafayette Street: thence .

39.South 31209'00"East, along sane, 30.04 feet to a point in the former
i i enue; thence

40.South 61251°00" West, along same, 30.04 feet to the place of beginning.
CONTAINING an area of 7.13 Acres.
BEING KNOWN AS Tax Lot 15K, Block 2057

The parcel of land and premisas within the above described courses 28 through

36 inclusive is known as Lot 17, Block 2057 and is not included in the above
described lands. :

BEING SUBJECT TO a nonexclusive ingress and egress sasement being
described as follows;
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BEGINNING at the intersection of tha center line of Lafayette Street (60 feet

wide) with the Southeasterly line of former Manning Avenue (60 feet wide)
(vacated 7/19/1955): thence

1. North 31209'00" West, along the center lina of Lafayette Street, 74,08 feetto a
point; thence

2. North 61251'00" East, 209.12 feet; thence

3. North 30°22°20" West, 41.50 feet to a point in the line of Tax Lot 17, Block
2057; thence

4. North 59237°40" East, along same, 54.50 feet fo a point; thence
5. South 30922°20" East, 45.70 feetto a point; thence
6. North 61°51'00" East, 40.00 fect to a point; thence

7. South 2820900 East, 1.92 festto a point in the former center lineg of Manning
Avenue (vacated 7/19/1 955}; the_mce

8. South 61251'00” West, along same, $5.00 feet to a point; thence

9. North 28°09°00" West, 18 int;

10.S0uth 61°51°00" West, 158.37 feet to a point of curve; thence

11.Terminating in a general Southeasterly direction, curving to the left on a
radius of 18.00 feet, an arc distance of 28.22 fest o a point in the extended
Northeasterly line of Lafayette Street; thence
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12, South 31909’00"Eést, along sans, 30.04 feet to a point in the former
Southeasterly line of vacated Manning Avenus; thence

13 South 61°51°00" West, along same, 30.04 feet to the place of beginning.

Edward S. McConnell, LS & PP
NJ License No. 17432
Vollmer Associates LLP #2003-834-50
May 15, 2003
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ORDINANCE
OF
JERSEY CITY, N.J.

COUNCIL AS A WHOLE ‘
offered and moved adoplion of the folowing ardinance:

TITLE:

CITY ORDINANGE  03-139
ORDINANCE APPROVING A 40 YEAR LONG TERM TAX EXEMPTION FOR
MODERATE INCOME AFFORDABLE AND MARKET RATE HOUSING PROJECT TO
BE CONSTRUCTED BY THE WHITLOCK MILLS, L.P.,, A QUALIFIED HOUSING
SPONSOR UNDER THL NEW JERSEY MORTGAGE HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY
LAWNJILS A SSIEIET SEQ.

THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY DOES ORDAIN:

WHEREAS, Whitlock Mills, L.F., ix & qualified housing sponsor under the New Jersey Mortgage
Housiag Finance Agenny Law MN.ILS A, 55:14K-1 et seq.; and

WHEREAS. Whitloek Mills, L.P., is the contract purchaser and will become the owner on or about
the date the within 1ax exemption Financial Agreement will be executed. of certain preperty known
as Block 2057, Lot 8. on Ciry’s Tax map and more commonly: krnown by the street address of 160
Lalayettz Street, lersev City, New Jersev [Property]: and '

WHEREAS, Whitlock Mills, L.P,, praposes o construet a housing project 1o be regulated and
financed pursuant 1o the provisions of the New Jerseyv Housing and Morgage Finance Agency Law,
Nol.5.A 33 HK-T et seq. an the Propert : and

WHEREAS. pursuant to 3184, 35 14K-37(h). Whitlock Mills. L.P. applivd fora 30 vear 1ax
exemplion, 1o construct cerain improvements on the Propeny to create atotal of 330 units of rental
housing. 132 units of market rate housing. and 198 units of mederate mcame housing units. and a
142 car parking garage and 108 space surface parking 1ot and

WHEREAS, Whitlock Mills, L.P., has agreed 10 pay a service charge estimated to be $173,775 or
approximalely 326 per unit, which sum is equal 1o 2% ofannual grossrevenue for the firstten (10)

vears; 3% for the second ten (10) vears: 7.5% [or the third ten (10)vears: and 8.6% for the final ten
(10) years; and

WHEREAS Whitlock Mills, L.P. has also agreed to provide employment and other economic

opportunities for City residents and busivesses in accordance with a Project Employment &
Contracting Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the City hereby determines thar the relative benefits of Lhe project outweigh ihe cost
of the tax exemption for the following reasons;

1, The City will apply o receive credit for ereating 198 units of moderare incone family rental
housing against the units needed within the City of Jersey City as determined by the New Jersey
Council on Alfordable Housing:

2 There is an especiaily compelling need for decent safe and affordable housing for moderate

income families who are currently paying over 30% of their income lor housing;

3. The Project wilt create approximately 200 construction iobs and 8 permanent jobs;
4. The construction of the improvements will stabilize the neighborhood and should generate

additional tax revenue; and

WHEREAS, the City hereby determines that the tax exemplion is necessary to insure the success
of the project for the following reasons;

1. The reduced tax payments allow the owner to siabilize jts operating budget. allowing a high
level of maintenance to the building over the life of the project;
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2. The reduction in taxes makes the Project anractive to investors and makes the project

eligible for financing from the New Jersey Housing and Mortzage Finance A gency, needed to fund
the Project; and

3. The reduced tax payments will allow the ewner to maintain the moderate income units at
the lowest rents possible within the income guidelines; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Municipal Council of the City of Jersey City

that:
1. The 4pplication of Whitlock Mills. L.P.. a qualified housing sponsor under the New Jersey
Mortgage Housing Finance Agency Law N, 5500 LY etseq.; for o tax exemption is hereby

approved subject to the following terms and ronditluas;

(a) Term: The eacfie: of 40 yuars freso ihe date ol the adoption of the Ordinance or 40
years from the gate of Substadal Cempletion of the Project, but in no event
beyond the date that the HMFA mortgaze is paid in full;

(b} Service Charge: 4% of Annual Gross Revenue, estimated to be $173,775 or
approximately 5526 per vait for the firsi ten (10) vears, 5% for the second ten (10)
years; 7.5% for the third ien (10) years and 8.6% for the final ten {10) years;

() Project; 198 units of rental lousing for moderate income families. and 132 units of
miarket rate rental housing for a total o 330 units, with a 142 car parking parage and
a 108 space surface parking lot; and

(d) Property: Block 2057, Lot I8, on the City"s Tax map and more commonly known
by the street address of 160 1afayette Street. Jersey City, New Jersey.
2, The Mayor or Business Administrator is avthorized to execute a tax exemption Financial
Agreement, and a Project Emplevment Agreement. in substanually the form on fle in the Office
of the Ciry Cleck. subject to such modification as the Business Administrator and Corporation
Counsel deem appropriale or necessan.

A

3 All ordinances and pants of ordinances inconsistent herewith arehoreby repealed.

-+ This ordinance shall be part of the Jersey City Code as though codified and fully set farth
therein. The City Clerk shali have this ardinance codilied and incorporated in the ofTicial copies of
the Jersey City Code.

5. This ordinance shall lake effect at the time and in the manner provided by law.

6. The City Clerk and Corporation Counsel be and they are hereb'\' authorized and directedto

change any chapter numbers, article numbers and section numbers in the event that the codification
of this ordinance reveals (hat there is a conflict between those numbers and the existing code, in’
order to avoid confusion and possible accidenta! repealers of existing provisions,

NOTE: All material is new, therefore underlining has been omitted.

For purpeses of advertising enly, new matter is indicaled by bold face and repealed
matter by itafic.

APPROVED:

APPROVED. éco/%?;; @,ch/%%

Business Administralor

Dralion Counsel

Cerlificalion Required I

Nol Requited I
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Ordinance approving a 40 years long term {ax exemption for
moderate income affordable and market rate housing project
to be constructed by the Whitlock Mills, L. P. 2 qualified
housing sponsor under the New Jersey Mortgage Housing
Finance Agency Law N, I S.A. 35:14k-1 et seq.

TITLE:

RECORD OF COUNGCIL VOTE ON INTRODUCTION SEP 2 4 A3 B-7

COUNGILPEASIN | AYE | ¥ | WY CIUNDLTERIIN L AVI o NAY [ AW CTUNDFZSEIND AvE | v | nY
BRENNAN / GALG=AN ¢ SEALY /
DONNELLY Vi HALDINADG z YZGA v
LIPSKI J RiCHARDSON o/ | SMiTH, PRES. Vi
¢ Indizatas Yol R N.V et Vaiing [Agsiam)
RECORD OF COUNCIL VOTETD CLOSE PUSLICHEARING  OCT 0 8 2003
Councilperson A CAARDSON moved, seconded by Councilperson [\BENNAN 1o close PH.: q-—
COUNCPERSON | AVE | NAY [ NV DUNCILAZRSON | AYE | MAY | KV COUNGILPEASON| AYE [ NAY [ NV
BRENNAN v GALGHAN / HEALY J
DONNELLY /. MA_DGNADO / VEGA v
LIPSKI J AIC-ARDSON J SAMTH, PRES v
;/]I'r}:‘;: —;,Véep\[_c@ﬂ 'IU.HIE R leF‘_ iﬁbﬁd PIET”J J_MQLﬁV--Nm Vating [Abstain)
melisa Hollouiny — VEAN BafRhAT  Lipey Scrug
DANIEL SiCALD| R AL AnTon
Qespiyn Baaute. o Sorez. [£od Yost i MG Chd
1A SCAref
RECORD CF COUNCIL VOTE ON AMERDMENTS. [F ANY

Countiiperson moved {o amepd* Crdinance. seconded by Councliperson & 2dopled
COURC_PZSTN| AYE | ¥ | WY SOONLPERSIN | D | R [ av a2 | A Ny
BASNNAN GAUGHAN
DONNELLY MALDONAED
LiPSKI ALRARDSON . SMiTH. PRES.
v Indiczizs Vote et Vating [ASsian)

RECORD OF FINAL COUNCIL VOTE ULl U 5 &-3
COUNC:LPERSON] avE | naY | N COUNCILPERSON | AYE | NaY | NV COINCLPEEDN| AYE | hav [ nv
BAZNNAN Vi GAUGHAN J HEALY i
DONNELLY v MALOONADO J VEGA J
LiPSK] v RICHARTSON v SMITH. PRES. /
Vv indicaiss Vaig B,
Adopted on first reading of the Council of Jarsey City, N.J.on SEP 2 4 2003
Adopted on second and {inal reading afler hearing on DCT 0 8 2003

This is lo certify that the foregaing Ordlnancer':ﬁ' aio%ﬁ%
by the Municipal Council at its meeting on : UU3
mem A\ A OD.JA{

\ Robér Byrne, (@ Clerk | G /

i
L. Marvey Smith¢/Codndf President

| - 0 § 2003
"Amendment(s):
AF'PROV
% Aﬁ/'f/&’: .
- Glenn D. Cunningham, Maydr
Date

Date To Mayor UCT 1 0 2[][]3




EXHIBIT 3
APPLICATION FOR TAX EXEMPTION
OF
WHITLOCK MILLS, L.P.

In compliance with Executive Order#3-02-003 of the Mayor of the City of Jersey City, the Applicant
herewith submits the following information in support of its application for a Tax Exemption under
and pursuant to the New Jersey Mortgage Housing Finance Law (N.J.S.A. 55:14K-1,_et seq.)

Applicant: Whitlock Mills, L.P.
c/o Housing Trust of America, L.L.C.
6851 Cak Hall Lane, Suite 600
Columbia, MD 21045
Attn.: Meg A. Manley, Sr. Vice President, Development

Property: Block 2057, Lot 18, commonly known as
- 160 Lafayetie Street
Jersey City, New Jersey

Project: - Whitlock Mills
160 Lafayetie Street
Jersey City, New Jersey 07305

Applicant's General Contractor: Magentic Construction Group
Tony Genovese '
5-44 47" Avenue
Long Istand City, NY 11101

Applicant’s Architect: John Saracco Architect, LLC

518 Main Stropt

VIV T et

Boonton, NJd 07005

Applicant's Attorney: James C. McCann, Esq.
Schumann, Hanlon, Doherty, McCrossin & Paolino
30 Montgomery Street
Jersey City, NJ 07302
(201) 434-2000

MAMaria\ABATEMENTS-TAXWYHITLOCK MILLS {rental projeci\ TAXEXEMP-APPLIC wpd



LIST OF EXHIBITS:

Exhibit

A Description of Property

B. Description of Leases

C. Annual Gross Revenue Computation

D. Total Project Cost

E. Projected Statement of Property Operations

F. Project Sketches and Information

G. Proposed Financial Agreement

H. Certificate of Formation and Disclosure Statement for Whitiock Mills,

L.P.
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APPLICATION

1. Identification of the Property:

The land upon which the Project is located is Block 2057, Lot 18 on the Tax Map of the City
of Jersey City and will be commonly known as 160 Lafayette Street, Jersey City, New Jersey (the
“Property”). The metes and bounds description of the land where the Project is located is attached
hereto as Exhibit A.

2. Type of Project:

The Project will consist of 330 residential rental apartments with parking facilities for 250
cars and a management and resident services center. Sixty (60 %) percent of these apartments
or 198 will be affordable housing units. The number, size, and rent for the affordable apartments
will be as follows:

30 3/2 1275 $803.00
90 212 950 $707.00
78 1M 725 $583.00
Total 198

The affordable housing units will be available only to those who qualify under the relevant
federal and state guidelines which are as follows: Persons/families must have a combined income
of less than 60% of the area’s median income which is $60,100.00 annually. The ratio of annual
rent to annual income for these persons/families must not exceed 30%. Thus, all of the affordable
units are expected to be available to persons/families with annual incomes from 3 range of
anproximate b D22, aRAday: pecializing
administrating affordable housing properties will qualify potential residents in accordance with
federal and state guidelines and manage the Property.

The Project will also contain approximately 250 parking spaces. Approximately 142 parking
spaces will be located in a parking garage and approximately 108 spaces will be located outdoors.
Each affordable apartment will be assigned one parking space. There will be no additional charge
to the affordable apartment residents for use of the parking space.

WeilesarvenUses\Maria\ABAT EMENTS-TAXWYHITLOGK MILLS (rental project \TAXEXEMP-APPLIC .wpd 3



The following resident services will be available at no additional charge to tenants:

Career counseling;

Nutrition counseling;

Business services;

Business facilities;

Shuttles to and from public transportation:
A gymnasiumn/fitness center;

Dry cleaning pick up and drop off services;
Laundry facilities;

Conference rooms; and

Community center rooms.

Computer lab.

SO NO O R WN

- O

[n addition to the affordable housing units, there will be 132 apartments which will be rented

at market rates. The size, square footage, and monthly rent for these apartments will be as
follows:

20 3/2 1,300 $2,232.00
60 2/2 1,100 $1,782.00
52 1M1 780 $1,532.00
Total 132

Garage parking for market rate apartments will be available to residents at an additional
charge of $150.00 per month. Al resident services will be available to market rate tenants at no
charge.

3. Type of Abatement Requested:

Major financing for the Project will be provided by the New Jersey Housing and Mortgage
Finance Agency Tax Exempt Bond Program and by the proceeds from the syndication of low
Income housing tax credits (NJHMFA). Secondary financing is planned from the New Jersey
Department of Community Affairs Balanced Housing Program.

In light of the above, the Applicant seeks a tax exemption under and pursuant to N.J.S.A.
55:14K-1, et seq. (New Jersey Mortgage Housing Finance Agency Law) (the “NJMHFA Law™)
based upon the 4% of Annual Gross Revenue (as set forth in the draft Financial Agreement
attached hereto). Based upon the Annual Gross Revenue computations set forth in Exhibit B, the
Proposed Statement of Stabilized Property Operations set forth in Exhibit B and the Total Project
Cost set forth in Exhibit D. The Project will generate an estimated Annuai Service Charge of
$173,775.00.
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4, Term of Abatement:

The term of the tax exemption being requested by the Applicant is 35 years from the date
of the adoption of the ordinance granting the tax abatement or 30 years from the date of substantial
completion of the Project or for period not to exceed the period of time by which the Project is
encumbered by an eligible loan made to the Applicant by the New Jersey Housing and Mortgage
Agency pursuant to the NJMHFA Law commencing from the date of substantial completion of the
Project.

5, Description of the Project:

The Property consists of approximately 6.6 acres of land at the foot of Lafayette Street.
The Property is located directly adjacent to the new Lafayette Park which is currently under
construction.

There are currently eight (8) 19th-20th century factory buildings on the Property, all which
were originally part of the Passaic Zinc Works near the Morris Canal. Currently, the Property is
commonly referred to as the Safety Pact Terminal formerly used by the Whitlock Cordage
Company. All of the eight (8) buildings are abandoned and are in various states of dilapidation and
disrepair.

The Jersey City Planning Board has determined that five (5) of these buildings have
historic/tandmark significance. Thus, five (5) of the buildings cannot be demolished under the
Morris Canal Redevelopment Plan. Under the Plan any re-use (i.e., new use) of the Property must
preserve the historic/landmark significance of these five (5) buildings through rehabilitation in strict
compliance with local historic regulations. As such, the Applicant is rehabilitating these five (5)
buildings in a manner that preserves and restores historic features. The cost of the historic
rehabilitation adds an estimated 8 million dollars to the Total Project Cost (see Exhibit D). Two (2)
of the remaining three (3) buildings on the Property have historic/landmark significance; however,
they have deteriorated beyond repair, therefore, the Planning Board has determined that they
cannot be restored. As such, these (2) buildings will be demolished. The third and final building
did not have historic/landmark significance; therefore, it will be demolished.

A sketch of the Property setting forth the deveiopment plan is attached hereto as Exhibit
F. The sketch lists the buildings which will be preserved and renovated in compliance with the
historic restrictions and regulations as follows: )

Historic Rehabhilitation:

BUILDING A B residential units, management offices and
resident community and amenity center

BUILDING C parking garage

BUILDING F 74 residential units and central laundry facility

BUILDING G 2 residential units
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BUILDING H & residential units

In addition to the above renovation, there will be 29 new buildings constructed on the
Property. These buildings are listed on Exhibit F as Building Type i. There will be a total of 240
apartment units (an average of 8 units per building) in these newly constructed buildings.

New Construction:

BUILDING TYPE | 240 Residential Units in 29 Buildings

The Morris Canal Redevelopment Plan requires that any developer of the Property provide
increased street access to the Property via Maple Strest and Manning Avenue. As such, the
Applicant will also be constructing an extension to Maple Street with accompanying sewer lines,
water lines, curbs, and other necessary and appropriate infrastructure. In addition, the Applicant
will be reconstructing and restoring Manning Avenue as a cobblestone street. A sketch showing
the portion of Maple Street and Manning Avenue to be improved by the Applicant is attached
hereto as Exhibit F. Upon completion, this portion of Manning Avenue and Maple Street will be
offered to the City for re-dedication for $10.00 nominal consideration, and if accepted, Manning
Avenue and Maple Street will again become public rights of way.

The Property has been mostly vacant for approximately 10 years. The current owner is
in bankruptcy and has no plans to develop the Property and has lost control thereof to the
bankruptcy trustee. The Applicant is the contract purchaser of the Property pursuant to a court
ordered and approved purchase confract. The closing of titie for the Property is scheduled for
November 13, 2003.

8. Estimated Total Cost of Project:

The Total Project Cost, as set forth in Exhibit D is estimated to be $ 56,020,024.00. The
construction costs have been estimated based upon information compiled by the Applicant and its
consultants. The Total Project Cost has been approved by the NJHMFA. Approximately
% . ithe-Total Project Costis attibutable to the historic rehabilitation.

7. Annual Gross Revenue and Expenses:

A Schedule of Annual Gross Revenue and Expenses for the Project is attached hereto as
Exhibit C. A Projected Statement of Operations is attached hereto as Exhibit E.

8. Construction Schedule:

The construction of the Project is scheduled to commence on approximately April 1, 2004
and will be completed within approximately 18-20 months. This construction schedule is subject
to modification based upon the time required to obtain the necessary governmental approvals and
permits from those local, state and federal governmental agencies invoived in the Project.

WileserverUsersMaria\ABATEMENTS-TAXWHITLOCK. MILLS {renlal projeci \TAXEXEMP-APPLIC .wpd 6



9. Real Estate Tax Assessments:

The tax assessment information for the Property is as follows:

Land $1,194,400
improvements (All Buildings) $ 780,600
Total $1,975,000

10. Real Estate Tax Information:

The Real Estate taxes assessed against the Property are as fotlows:
The municipal real estate taxes for 2003 for the Property are $90,968.50.

11. Certification as to Commencement of the Project,

The Applicant will not commence construction of the Project prior to the recéipt of final
approval of the tax abatement and the execution of a Financial Agreement between the City and
Whitlock Mills, L.P.

12. Estimated Jobs to be Creéted:

it is projected that the Project will generate approximately 200 full time equivalent
construction jobs during the term of construction. In addition, it is projected that the Project will
generate approximately 8 direct full time permanent employment opportunities. upon the
commencement of operations of the Project. This does not take into account any of the secondary
employment opportunities which may be created by the residence services programs which will
accompany the Project. Currently, the Property is vacant and therefore, this Project will not cause
any loss or displacement of current employments opportunities. Al of the aforementioned
employment opportunities will be immediately created. The Applicant agrees to execute a Project
Employment Agreement simultaneously with the exacution of a financial agreement.

13. Compliance with State and Local Redevelopment Laws.

The Applicant certifies that the Project is located in the Morris Canal Redevelopment Zone.
In light of the above, the Project meets the requirements of the laws of the State of New Jersey for
consideration of this tax abatement,

The Project will be constructed in accordance with the terms and conditions of any
preliminary site plan approval granted by the Jersey City Planning Board and in compliance with
any state permits or approvals required for the renovation or new construction. Preliminary site
plan approval is expected from the Jersey City Planning Board on September 9, 2003.

14, Compliance with State and Local Law:

The Project meets the requirements of the laws of the State of New Jersey and the City of
Jersey City to qualify for a tax abatement.
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15, Form of Financial Agreement:

Attached hereto as Exhibit G is a proposed Financial Agreement between the City of Jersey
City and Whitlock Mills, L.P.

16. - Certificate of Formation:

Whitlock Mills, L.P. is a limited partnership formed pursuant to the laws of the State of
Maryland and is qualified to do business in New Jersey.

Attached hereto as Exhibit His a copy of the Certificate of Formation of Whitlock Mills, L.P.

A Disclosure Statement listing the names and address of the partners of the Applicant is
attached hereto as Exhibit H.

\Filesarverllsers:Maria\bBATEMENTS-TAXWHITLOCK MILLS {renlal project \TAXEXEMP-APPLIC wpd



17. Certification of Accuracy and Due Diligence:

THE APPLICANT CERTIFIES TO THE BEST OF ITS KNOWLEDGE, INFORMATION
AND BELIEF THAT ALL OF THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS APPLICATION S
TRUE AND ACCURATE AND THAT IT HAS MADE A DILIGENT INQUIRY TO CONFIRM THE

ACCURACY OF ALL SUCH INFORMATION.
WHITLOCK MILLS, L.P.

By: HTA Whitlock, LLC, its general partner

o, 4.7
By: Wallace L. Scruggs, m Member




EXHIBIT A

WHITLOCK MILLS, L.P.

Description of the Property

Address: 160 Lafayette Street, Jersey City, New Jersey

Block 2057, Lot 18:

(Formerly known as
Lot 15 K)

A metes and bounds description is attached hereto.
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DESCRIPTION

ALL THAT CERTAIN tract or parcel of land and premises situate in the City of

Jersey City, County of Hudson.and State of New Jersey, bounded and described
as follows:

BEGINNING at the intersection of the center line of Lafayeite Street (60 feet
wide) with the Southeasterly line of former Manning Avenue (80 feet wide)
(vacated 7/19/1953); thence

1. South 31°09'00" East, along the center line of Lafayette Street, 100.14 feet to
a point; thence

2. South 61°51'00" West, 217.97 feet to a point; thence

3. North 28209'00" West, 100.00 feet to a point in tha former Southeasterly line
of vacated Manning Avenue; thence '

4. North 61°51'00” East, along same, 15.95 feet to a point; thence -

5. North 30°53'45” West, 30.04 feet 10 a point in the former center line of same;
thence

6. North 61°51°00" East, along same, 15.95 fest to a point; thance
7. North 30°53'45” West, 196.84 feet to a point of curve: thence

8. In a general Northerly direction, curving to the right on a radius of 409.05 feet,
an arc distance of 86.27 feet to a point of compound curve; thence

9. In a general Northerly direction, curving to the right on a radius of 168.42 feet
an arc distance of 109.80 feet to a point; thence

T

10. North 62°57°40" West, 73.25 feet to a point; thence

11.South 582%04'00” West, 32.05 feet o a point; thence



™./

12. North 31209°00™ West, 125.03 feet to a point in the Southeasterly line of M.S.
- Convrail C.R.R. Co. of N.J., Lafayette Branch Main Stem:; thence

13. North 59202'00" East, along same, 16.73 feet fo a point; thence
14.North 83°02'00 East, along same, 83.20 feetto a point; thence
15. Nbrth 67817°16" East, along same, 88.47 feet to a point; thence
18.North 70°02'00" East, along same, 58.31 feet to a point; thence .
17.North 75°02'00" East, along same, 28.69 feet i0 a point: thence
18.North 76%02°00" East, along same, 48.45 festto a point; thence
19.North 80°17'00" East, along same, 48.52 feet to a point; thence
20.North 8224700 East, along séme, 37.15 feet to a point; thernce

21.South 86943'00" East, along the Southwesterly line of M.S. Conrail C.R.R. Co.
of N.J., Lafayette Branch Main Stem, 86.44 feet to a point; thence

22. South 80°58'00" East, along same, 67.59 feet to a point; thence

eetto a point; thence

24.5outh 70%08'00" East, along same, 249.80 feet to a point; thence
25.5outh 14929'00” West, 75.67 feetio a point; thence

26. South 28809'00" East, 111.44 feetto a point in the former center line of
vacated Manning Avenue; thence

27.5outh 61°51'00" West, along same, 166.56 feat io a point; thence

28, North 28209'00” West, 69.88 feet to a point; thence
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29.South 61251°00" West, 45.75 feet to a point; thence
30.North 30°22'20" West, 17.72 feet to a point; thence
31. South 59937°40” West, 74.60 feet to a point; thence
32. North 30922'20" West, 130.57 feetto a point; thence
33. North 59237'40" East, 46.00 feet to a point; thence
34. North 30%22'20" West, 90.52 fest to a point; thence
35.North 59°37°40" East, 74.32 feet to a point; thence

36. South 30°22'20" East, 240.58 feet 1o the eﬁd of the above 28™, course above
given; thence

37. South 28°09'00” East, along said 28™. course, 69.88 feet to a point in the
former center line of vacated Manning Avenue; thence :

38. South 61°51°00” West, along same, 276.06 feet o & point in the extended
Northeasterly line of Lafayette Street: thence :

39. South 31209'00"East, along séne, 30.04 feet to a point in the former

——Southeasterly fine of vacated Manning Avenue; thence
40. South 61951'00" West, along same, 30.04 feet to the place of beginning.
CONTAINING an area of 7.13 Acres.
BEING KNOWN AS Tax Lot 15K, Block 2057
The parcel of land and premises within the above described courses 29 through
38 inclusive is known as Lot 17, Block 2057 and is not jncluded in the above

described lands.

BEING SUBJECT TO a nonexclusive ingress and egress sasement being
described as follows:
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BEGINNING at the intersection of the center line of Lafayette Street (80 feet

wide) with the Southeasterly line of former Marnining Avenue (60 feet wide)
(vacated 7/19/1955): thence

1. North 31209'00" Wast, along the center ling of Lafayette Street, 74.08 feet to a
point; thence

2. North 61°51°00” East, 209.12 feet; thence

3. North 30°22'20" West, 41.50 feet to a point in the line of Tax Lot 17, Block
2057, thence

4. North 58°37°40" East, along same, 54.50 feetto a point; thence
5. South 30°22'20" East, 45.70 feet to a point; thence
6. North 61%51°00" East, 40.00 feet to a point; thence

7. South 28°09'00" East, 1.92 feet to a point in the former center ling of Manning
Avenue (vacated 7/19/1955); thence

8. South 6125100 West, along same, 95.00 feet to a point; thence

9. North 28209'00" West, 18,00 feet to a point: thence

10.South 61°51°00" West, 158.37 feet to a point of curve; thence

11. Terminating in a general Southeasterly direction, curving to the lefton a
radius of 18.00 feet, an arc distance of 29.22 feet to a point in the extended
Northeasterly line of Lafayette Street: thence
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12. South 31209'00"East, along sanse, 30.04 feet to a point in the former
Southeasterly line of vacated Manning Avenue; thence

13 South 61951700 West, along same, 30.04 feet to the piace of beginning.

Edward S, McConnell, LS & PP
NJ License No. 17432
Vollmer Associates LLP #2003-834-50
May 15, 2003




EXHIBIT B

WHITLOCK MILLS, L.P.
DESCRIPTION OF RESIDENTIAL LEASES

GOOD FAITH ESTIMATE OF INITIAL RENTS
1. Name of Tenant: Various

2. Term of Lease: Initial term of lease not less than 1 year,

3. Number of Apartments:

30 . ap 1275 | $803.00
90 2/2 ‘ 950 $707.00
78 11 725 $583.00

Total 132

* The exact sguare footage and rent couid vary. The numbers above represent the average square footage
and rent for each type of apartment.

5.  Premium paid directly by Tenant Annually
a. Fire & other insurance NONE

b. Real Estate Taxes of Assessments

on in project NONE
c. Operating and maintenance
expenses paid by tenant NONE
6. Special Features:; . Parking

Resident Services Program
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EXHIBIT C

WHITLOCK MILLS, L.P.

Total Annual Gross Revenue Computation

Per* Total per Total
Affordable Apartments: Units Month Month Annually
One Bedroom 78 @ $583.00 $45,474.00 $545,688.00
Two Bedrooms 90 @ $707.00 $63,630.00 $763,560.00
Three Bedrooms 30 @ $803.00 $24.090.00 $289.080.00
Subtotal 108 $2,093.00 $133,194.00 $1,598,328.00
Per* Total per Total
Market Rate Apartments:  Units Month Month . Annually
One Bedroom 52 @ $1,532.00 $79,664.00 $855,969.00
Two Bedrooms 60 @ $1,782.00  $106,920.00 $1,283,040.00
Three Bedrooms 20 @ $2,232.00 $44.640.00 $535,680.00
Subtotal 132 $5,546.00 $231,224.00 $2,774,689.00
Total Rental Income: $4,373,016.00
Less
Vacancy @ 7% $306,111.00
Total rental income after vacancy adjustment: $4,066,905.00
Other Income: Annual
Laundry Machines $ 15,000.00
Washer/Dryer/rental/cabie $ 71,280.00
Parking Garage $211,800
Less :
Vacancy @ 5%  $10,590.00 $201.210.00
Total Other Income $277,490.00
Total Annual Gross Revenue $4,344,395.00

* The exact square footage and rent could vary. The numbers above represent the average square footage and rent
for each type of apartment.
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EXHIBIT D
WHITLOCK MILLS, L.P.

ESTIMATED TOTAL PROJECT COST
1. Costof Land and Improvements to the Urban Renewal Entity 5 4,000,000.00
2. Architects, engineers, surveyors, consultants, experts $ 1,178,430.00
and attorneys fees (paid or payable) in connection with
the planning, remediation, construction and financing

of the Project.

3. Projected construction cestincluding site preparation $ 37,000,000.00
(historic rehabilitation work: $8,000,000.00)

4, Insurance, interest, finance and carrying costs during $ 7,502,351.00
construction

5. Commissions and other expenses payable in connection $ 385,000.00

with initial lease or sale of units and marketing

6. NJMFHA Escrow Requirements ‘ $ 3,964,143"
7. Developer’s Fee (Gross) $ 2,000,000.002
TOTAL $ 56,029,924.00

! Escrows are required by and calculated by the NJHMFA. These are non-negotiable

and non-transferrable to other items.

2
of 4 years.

The $2,000,000 gross developer’s fee will be paid to the Applicant over the course

Expenses paid by Developer

from gross developer’s fees: 3 years developer operating overhead
@ $35,000 per month $1,260,000.00
Net Developer's Fee | $ 740,000.00
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EXHIBIT E
WHITLOCK MILLS, L.P.

PROJECTED STATEMENT OF STABILIZED PROPERTY OPERATION

RENTAL INCOME:

Annual Income

Apartments $4,373,016.00 (for detail see Exh. C)
Less Vacancy Loss @ 7% $__306,111.00
Net Apartment Rents $4,066,905.00
Garage & Parking - $ 211,800.00
Parking Garage Vacancy Loss @5% $ 10,590.00
Net Parking Rental Income $ 201,210.00
Total Rental Income $4,268,115.00

OTHER INCOME:

Laundry Machines $ 15,000.00
Washer/Dryer/rental/cable $  71,280.00
Total Other Income $ 86,280.00

Total Incoma $4,344,395.00

OPERATING EXPENSES:

[ Admin. $ 72.600.00
Il. Salaries $ 353,624.00
. Maint. & Repairs $ 66,350.00
V. Maint, Contracts $ 128,500.00
V. Utilities (electric & gas) $ 110,500.00
Vi Annual Service Charge

(4% of Annual Gross Revenue) $ 173,775.00
VI, Management Fee (4%)

(% of Total Rental Income) $170,378.00
VIII.  Insurance $ 165,000.00
IX. Reserve for Repair & Replacement $ 132,000.00

Total Operating Expenses: : $1,372,727.00
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Total Income $4,344,395.00
Less Operating Expenses: $1,372,727.00

NET OPERATING INCOME BEFORE DEBRT SERVICE: _ $2,971,668.00
DEBT SERVICE:
1. Principal and Interest $ 2,316,707.00
2. Mortgage & Bond Service Fee 0.40% $ 149,725.00
3. MIP 0.50% $ 187,156.00
Total Agency Debt Service $ 2,653,587.00

Debt Service on Other Mortgage Loans $ 200,000.00

Total Debt Service ' $2,853,587.00

NET INCOME: $ 118,081.00
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EXHIBIT F

WHITLOCK MILLS, L.P.

PROJECT SKETCHES AND INFORMATION
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Figure 1
Site Location Map
160 Lafayette Avenue
Jersey City, New Jersey
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EXHIBIT G

WHITLOCK MILLS, L.P.

PROPOSED FINANCIAL AGREEMENT

(SEE ATTACHED)
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Rev. 7-24-03
HMFA,
N.JSA. 55:14K-1 et segq.

WHITIOCK
Re: MITIS

Block_2057 , Lot _ 18
Myris Canal Redevelopment Plan Area

PREAMBLE

THIS FINANCIAL AGREEMENT, [Agreement] made this __ day

of 2003, by andbetwecnmi Mills, I,"%Zimited Liability

Company is a qualified housing sponsor under the New Jersey Mortgage Housing

: T ¢/o Hazsirg Trust of Arerica
Finance Agency N.JL.S.A. 55:14K-1 et seq., having its principal office fo : '
Oek Hall Tare, Suite 7600, (blurdia, M.D. 21045

—Cit—New—Ttersey—07366; and the CITY OF JERSEY CITY, a Municipal
Corporation in the County of Hudson and the State of New Jersey, [City], having
its principal office at 280 Grove Street, Jersey City, New Jersey 07302.

RECITALS
WITNESSETH:
WHEREAS, the Entity is the Owner ~p-dated-Deeds ot
of certain property designated as Block 2057 , Lots 18 Block ~tots—, more

commonly known by the street address of 160 Iafayettes Jersey City, NJ, and more
(4
particularly described by the metes and bounds description set forth as Exhibit 1 to this

Agreement; and
Morris Canal

WHEREAS, this property is Jocated within the boundaries of the Feurmrat-Square—
Redevelopment Plan Area; and

WHEREAS, the Entity plans to construct certain improvements on the Property to
createatotalof 330 unitsofrental housing, [ 130 units of rental market rate housing, and

198 units of moderate income rental housing units] sq—H—ofretailspace and a ?io car

parking garage [Project], and

WHEREAS, on 2003, the Entity’s Application for a tax exemption for
the Project was approved by the City by the adoption of Ordinance ____; and



NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained,
and for other good and valuable consideration, it is mutually covenanted and agreed as
follows:

ARTICLE I - GENERAL PROVISIONS

Section 1.1  Governing Law
This Agreement shall be governed by the provisions of the New Jersey Housing and
Mortgage Finance Agency Law, N.LS.A. 55:14K-1 et seq., Executive Order of E.O. 02-
003, and Ordinance ____, which authorized the execution of this Agreement. It being
expressly understood and agreed that the City expressly relies upon the facts, data, and
representations contained in the Application, attached hereto as Exhibit 3, in granting this
tax exemption. o
Section 1.2 General Definitions
Unless specifically provided otherwise or the context otherwise requires, when used
in this Agreement, the following terms shall have the following meanings:
i Agency- The New Jersey Housing and Mortgage Finance Agency.
il. Annual Gross Revenue- The total gross income, including any
and all revenue derived from or generated by the Project of whatever kind or amount,
whether received as rent from any tenants or income or fees from third parties, including
but not limited to fees or income paid or received for parking, lauﬁdly, or other services,

including any Section 8 certificate revenue derived from the Project, including all rent and

other income, with-asratowabte—racareyratcofopto }Jz"/o. It also includes the cost of

msurance, gas, electricity, water and sewer charges, other utilities, garbage removal and
insurance charges even if paid for directly by the Tenant, if such expense is ordinarily paid
for by the Landlord.

11, Annual Service Charge -Estimated Service Charge: $6:589-248gver

the30 year term of the {ax exemption, calculated as follows:
AB—FearsHronghHo—artotatof F—
-sach-year-based-upon A) 4 % of annual gross revenue of the residential units: §_173,775. 00

or approximately $526.59 per unit;;aa*———%-e-’i:aﬂﬁuﬁ-gremfcmwcf-ﬂmcmﬂm

2




B)

‘.LL oF :J PeTage ft., Forstes C) L4 Uf uﬂhuﬂl ErodsYevents af ﬂ}e perlll-'emg
IO o e q: =1 Q\ o o 1’1ﬁﬁ (‘1"\"\!";‘

g = PeFpala 5P
(2) Yeers-H-20-atotalof-$ each-year-based upor-Ay——-ofannual gross
reveane-of Eheﬂﬂ&lé&ﬁﬁﬂi—uﬁﬂﬁ%——eﬁ&ppmiﬂﬂﬁfe}y%—-ﬁﬁ—uﬂﬁ@}———%—
af annyal gross revenye of {he retail space—d g -5 persT £, and ﬂ) 2% of
annual gross revenue of the parking garage: $—— or §-—perpasking space;
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accordance with the financial plan attached hereto as Exhibit 2, which sumis in lieu of any

taxes on the Improvements.
1v. Auditor's Report - A complete financial statement outlining the

financial status of the Project (for a period of time as indicated by context), whichshall-alse

contents of the Auditor’s Report shall have been prepared in conformity with generally

accepted accounting principles and shall contain at a minimum the following: a balance
sheet, a statement of income, a statement of retained earnings or changes in stockholder’s
equity, statement of cash flows, descriptions of accounting policies, notes to financial
statements and appropriate schedules and explanatory material results of operations, cash

flows and any other items reasonably required by the City or its auditors. The Auditor’s

Report shall be certified as to its conformance with such principles by a certified public

accountant who is licensed to practice that profession in the State of New Jersey.

v. Certificate of Occupancy - Document, whether temporary or
permanent, issued by the City authorizing occupancy of a building, in whole or in part,
pursuant to N.J.S.A, 52:27D-133.

' V1. Default - Shall be a breach of or the fajlure of the Entity to perform
any obligation imposed upon the Entity by the terms of this Agreement, or undér the Law,

beyond any applicable grace or cure periods,

3



> o d Musiress in the State of Mew Jarsey

Entity\- The term Entity/within this Agreement shall mean .

~EEES-which Entity is formed and%ulaiiﬁedépaﬂ&&n-t—te—l,m It shall also include any
subsequent pu1 chasers or successors in inter est of the Project, provided they are formed and
operate under b}n Law and the transfer has been duly approved by the City.

viii. Improvements or Project - Any building, structure or fixture

permanently affixed to the land and to be constructed and tax exempted under this

Agreement.

iX. In Rem Tax Foreclosure or Tax Foreclosure- A summary proceeding

by which the City may enforce a lien for taxes due and owing by tax sale, under N.J.S A,
54:5-110 54:5-129 et seq.

X. Land Taxes - The amount of taxes assessed on the value of land, on
which the project is located and, if applicable, taxes on any pre-existing improvements.
Land Taxes are not exempt; however, Land Taxes are applied as a credit against the Annual

Service Charge.

xi. Land Tax Payments - If the law requires, payments made on the

quarterly due dates, including approved grace periods if any, for Land Taxes as determined
by the Tax Assessor and the Tax Collector.

Xi1. Law - Law shall refer to the New J ersey Housing and Mortgage
Finance Agency Law, N.J.S.A. 55:14K-1 gtseq.; Executive Order 02-003, relating to long

ferm tax exemption, as it may be amended and supplemented; Ordinance which

authorized the execution of this Agreement and al] other relevant F ederal, State or City

statutes, ordinances, resolutions, rules and/or reguiations.

xili.  Minimum Annual Service Charge - The Minimum Annual Service

Charge shall be the amount of the total taxes that would have been levied against all real

property in the area covered by the Project in the last full tax year preceding the recording

. . ) , 90,968.50
of the HMFA mortgage which amount the parties agree is approsimately § . The

Mimmum Annual Service Charge shall be paid in each year in which the Annual Service
Charge, calculated pursuant to the Financial Agreement would be less than the Minimum

Annual Service Charge.



x1v.  Pronouns - He or it shall mean the masculine, feminine or neuter
gender, the singular, as well as the plural, as context requires.

Xv. Substantial Completion - The determination by the City that the

Project, in whole or in part, is ready for the use intended, which ordinanly shall mean the
date on whilch the Project recefves, oris eligible to receive any Certificate of Occupancy for
any portion of the Project.
xvi.  Termination - Any act or omission which by operation of the terms
of this Financial Agreement shall cause the Entity to relinquish its tax exemption.
ST INTRT ATTACED. ARTICLE II - APPROVAL
Section 2.1 Approval of Tax Exemption qfrcm real estate taxes

The City hereby grants its approval for atax excmption,\for all the Improvements to
be constructed and maintained in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
Agreement and the provisions of the Law which Improvements shall be constructed on

certain property known on the Official Tax Assessor’s Map of the City as: Block 2057 |

Lots 18  esd——  more commonly known by the street address 01160 Iafag Y .. Jersey

City, NJ, and described by metes and bounds in Exhibit { attached hereto.
Section 2.2 Approval of Enti
ection pp o ity Cimited
Approval is granted to the Entity whose Certificate of Fesmation-is attached hereto

as Exhibit 4. Entity represents that its Certificate eontuns-ai-the-requisitepravistonsof

oz T o
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Commmumity Affairs, and has been filed with, as appropriate, the Seeretary-of Stator ERRLS

e B Jersey
o1 7

Section 2.2 Improvements to be Constructed
Entity represents that it will construct certain improvements on the Property to
create atotal of 330 units of rental housing, [ 132 units of Tental market rate housing,

and 198 units of moderate income rental housing units] se—fefretattspace and

250 car parking garage, all of which is more specifically described in the Application
attached hereto as Exhibit 3. '

Section 2.3 Construction Schedule



INSERT
TO PAGE 5

xvii.  Total Project Costs - The sum of all costs incurred in the acquisition, development,
construction, improvement or rehabilitation of the Project, as approved by the Agency, which costs
shallinciude, but are not necessarily limited to (1) cost of land acquisition and any buildings thereon,
(2) cost of site preparation, demolition and development, (3) architect, engineer, lagal, agency and
other fees paid or payable in connection with the planning, execution and financing of the Praject,
(4} interest, financing, tax and assessment costs and other operating and carrying costs during
construction, (6} cost of construction, reconstruction, fixtures, and equipment related to the real
property, (7) cost of land improvements, (8) necessary expenses in connection with initial
occupancy of the Project, (9) a reasonable profit or fee to the Entity, (10) an allowance established
by the Agency for working capital and contingency reserves, and reserves for any operating deficits,
(11) costs of guarantees, insurance or other additional financial security for the Project and (12)
the cost of such other items, including tenant relocation, less any and all net rents and other net
revenues received from the operation of the real and personal property on the Project site during
construction.

\\Fileserver\Users\Maria\ABATEIVIENTS-TAX\WHiTLOCK MILLS (rental projeci\INSERT to pg 5 of Finan Aglwpd



usz its bost effarts to

The Entity agrees to diligently undertake to commence constructionland cormplete
the Project in accordance with the Estimated Construction Schedule, atta?:hed hereto as
Exhibit 5. .

Section 2.4  Ownership, Management and Control

The Entity represents that it is the owner of the property upon which the Project is

to be construcied. Upon construction, the Entity represents that the Improvements will be

managed and controlled as follows:

] Mha T clo 1T e oo dho o & s e 4T W DR |
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dwelling units and retail space.
2. The parking facility will be g y athird party Lessee pursuant to and

ith the terms of a certain lease between the Entity and third-

part-bessee
Section 2.5  Financial Plan sistantially

The Entity represents that the Improvements shall be ﬁnanceggn accordance with
the Financial Plan attached hereto as Exhibit 6. The Plan sets forth estimated Total Project
Cost, the amortization rate on the Total Project Cost, the source of funds, the interest rates
to be paid on construction financing, the source and amount of paid-in capital, and the terms
of any mortgage amortization,
Section 2.6  Statement of Rental Schedules and Lease Terms

The Entity represents that its good faith projections of the initial rental schedules

and lease terms are set forth in Exhibit 7, attached hereto.

ARTICLE IIT - DURATION OF AGREEMENT

Section 3.1 Term

So long as there is compliance with the Law and this Agreement, it is understood
and agreed by the parties hereto that this Agreement shall remain in effect for the earlier of:
thirty five (35) years from the date of the adoption of Ordinance ___which approved this
exemption or thity (30) years from the date of the recording of the HMFA mbftgage as
funded and approved by the Agency. The tax exemption shall only be effective only while

the Project is owned by an entity formed and operating as a housing sponsor under the Law

)



and subject to an HMFA mortgage. Thereafter, the tax exemption shall expire and the land
and improvements thereon shall be assessed and taxed according to the general law
applicable to other non-exempt property in the City.

ARTICLE IV - ANNUAL SERVICE CHARGE

Section 4.1  Annnal Service Charge

In consideration of the tax exemption, the Entity shall make payment to the City of
an amount equal to the greater of: the Minimum Annual Service Charge or an Annual
Service Charge. The Annual Service Charge shall be billed initially based upon the Entity’s
estimates of Annual Gross Revenue as set forth in its Financial Plan, attached hereto as
Exhibit 6. Thereafter, the Annual Service Charge shall be adjusted in accordance with this
A—gfeemen-t

A Minimum Annual Service Charge shall be due beginning on the date this
Agreement is executed. The Annual Service Charge or Minimum Annual Service Charge,
as the case may be, shall be due on the first day of the month following the Substantial
Completion of the Project. In the event the Entity fails to timely pay the Minimum Annual
Service Charge or the Annual Service Charge, the amount unpaidshall bear the highest rate
of interest permitted in the case of unpaid taxes or tax licns on land until paid.

i TNSERT ATTAHED

Section 4.2 Administrative Fee .

The Entity shall also pay an annual administrative fee to the City in addition to the
Minimum or Annual Service Charge. This administrative fee shall equal two (2%) percent

of the Annual Service Charge and shall be payable and due on or before December 3 Ist of

caca year and collected in the same manner as the Annual Service Charge.
Section4.3  Land Tax Credit

If the Law requires the Entity to pay Land Taxes in addition to the service charges,
then the Entity will be entitled 1o a land tax credit against the service charges. fr}order to
be entitled to the credit, however, the Entity is obligated to make timely Land Tax Pay-
ments, in order to be entitled to a Land Tax credit against the Annual Service Charge for
the subsequent year. The Entity shall be entitled to credit for the amount, without interest,

of the Land Tax Payments made in the last four preceding quarterly installments against the

5
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TO PAGE 7

The amount of the quarterly payment of the Annual Service Charge shall be estimated
based on the actual amount of Annual Gross Revenue generated by the Project in the previous tax
year, as determined by the auditor’s reports of income and expenses. Theamount of such payment
shall be subject to adjustment based on the City's review of the auditor’s reports of income and
expenses submitted to the City pursuant to Paragraph and a determination of the correct
amount due (the "Audited Amount”). Within ninety (90) days after the Audited Amountis determined
and notice thereof is given to the Entity, the Entity shall pay any underpayment or the City shall
refund any overpayment of the Annual Service Charge, as the case may be.
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Annual Service Charge. In any year that the Entity fails to make any Land Tax Payments
when due and owing, such delinquency shall render the Entity ineligible for any Land Tax
Payment credits against the Annual Service Charge for that year. No credit will be applied -
against the Annual Service Charge for partial payments of Land Taxes. In addition, the
City shall have, among this remedy and other remedies, the right to proceed against the
property pursuantto the In Rem Tax Foreclosure Act, N.J.S. A, 54:5-1, et seq. and/or declare
a Default and terminate this Agreement. '
Section 4.4  Quarterly Installments

The Entity expressly agrees that the Annual Service Charge shall be made in
quarterly installments on those dates when real estate tax payments are due; subject,
nevertheless, to adjustment for over or underpayment within thirty (30) days after the close
of each calendar year. In the event that the Entity fails to pay the Annual Service Charge,
the amount unpaid shall bear the highest rate of interest permitied in the case of unpaid
taxes or tax liens on the land until paid.
Section 4.5 Material Conditions

It is expressly agreed and understood that the timely payments of Land Taxes,
Minimum Annual Service Charges, Annual Service Charges, including adjustments thereto,
Administrative Fees, and any interest thereon, are Material Conditions of this Agreement.

ARTICLE V - PROJECT EMPLOYMENT & CONTRACTING AGREEMENT

Section 5.1  Project Employment Agreement

Inordertoprovide City residents and businesses with certain employment and other

cconomic related opportunifies, the Entity is subject to the terms and conditions of the

Project Employment & Contracting Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit 8.
ARTICLE V] - CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY

Section 6.1  Certificate of Qccupancy

It is understood and agreed that it shall be the obligation of the Entity to obtain all
Certificates of Occupancy in a timely manner. The failure to secure the Certificaies of
Occupancy shall subject the property to full taxation.

Section 6.2  Filing of Certificate of Occupancy

8



It shall be the primary responsibility of the Entity to forthwith file with both the Tax
Assessor and the Tax Collector a copy of each Certificate of Occupancy.

Failure of the Entity to file such issued Certificate of Occupancy as required by the
preceding paragraph, shall not mitigate against any action or non-action, taken by the City,
including, if appropriate retroactive billing with interest for any charges determined to be
due, in the absence of such filing by the Entity.

Section 6.3  Construction Permits

The estimated cost basis disclosed by the Entity's application and proposed Financial
Agreement may, at the option of the City, be used as the basis for the construction cost in
the issuance of any construction permit(s) for the Project.

ARTICLE VII - ANNUAL REPORTS

Section 7.1  Accounting System

The Entity agrees to maintain a system of accounting and internal controls
established and administered in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
Section 7.2 Periodic Reports

A. Auditor’s Report: Within ninety (90) days after the close of each fiscal or
calendaryear, depending on the Entity's accounting basis that this Agreement shall continue

in effect, the Bntity shall submit to the Municipal Council, the Tax Collector and the City

Clerk, who shall advise those municipal officials required to be advised, and the NJHMF A

Auditor’s Report for the preceding fiscal or calendar year. The Auditor's Repoit shall

include, but not be limited to: Rental schedule of the ssban+renewatProject, and the terms
and interest rate on any mortgage(s) associated with the purchase or construction of the
Project and such details as may relate to the financial affairs of the Entity and to its
operation and performance hereunder, pursuant to the Law and this Agreement. The Report
shall clearly identify and calculate the Net Profit for the Entity during the previous year.

) B. Total Project Cost Audit: Within ninety (90) days after the Substantial
Completion of the Project, the Entity shall submit to the Municipal Council, the Tax
Collector and the City Clerk, who shall advise those municipal officials required to be

9



advised, an audit of Total Project Cost, certified as to actual construction costs by an
independent and qualified architect, utilizing the form attached hereto as Exhibit 9, and as
to all other costs, certified its conformance with generally accepted accounting principles,
by a certified public accountant who is licensed to practice that profession in the State of
New Jersey.

C. Disclosure Statement. On the anniversary date of the execution of this
Agreement, if there has been a change in ownership or interest from the prior year’s filing,
the Entity shall submit to the Municipal Council, the Tax Collector and the City Clerk, who
shall advise those municipal officials required to be advised, a Disclosure Statement listing
the persons having an ownership interest in the Project, and the extent of the ownership
interest of each and such additional information as the City may request from time to time.
Section 7.3  Mortgage

Within ninety (90) days after the date the Entity closes on its loan with the Agency,
the Entity shall file with the City a fully executed copy of the Note and arecorded copy of
the HMFA Mortgage.

Section 7.4  Inspection

The Entity shall permit the inspection ofits property, equipment, buildings and other
facilities of the Project and, if deemed appropriate or necessary, any other related Entity by
representatives duly authorized by the City and the legakis-ieﬁ—e%eea%—@weﬁﬁem
Services-a-thePepartment-of-Communib—Affairg. It shall also permit, upon request,

examination and audit of its books, contracts, records, documents and papers  Such

examination or audit shall be made during the reasonable hours of the business day, in the
presence of an officer or agent designated by the Entity.

ARTICLE VIII- LIMITATION OF PROFITS AND RESERVES

Section 8.1  Limitation of Profits and Reserves
During the period of tax exemption as provided herein, the Entity’s return on
investment shall be lirnited in accofdance with the regulations and conditions imposed by
the Agency pursuant to N.J.S.A. 55:14K-7(6) or any other Law applicable.
ARTICLE IX - ASSIGNMENT AND/OR ASSUMPTION

10



Section 9.1  Prior Approval of Sale

Any change made in the ownership of the Project and sale or transfer of the Project,
shall be void unless approved in advance Ey Ordinance of the Municipal Council. It is
understood and agreed that the City, on written application by the Entity, will not
unreasonably withhold its consent to a sale of the Project and the transfer of this Agreement
provided 1) the new Entity is %@é&%ﬂﬂder the Law; 2) the Entity
is not then in default of this Agresment or the Law; and 3) the Entity's obligations under
this Agreement is fully assumed by the new Entity. SEE INGERT ATTACHED
Section 9.2  Transfer or Lease to Tax Exempt Organization or Public Body.

In the event that the Entity transfers, sells, demises, conveys, or in any manner
relinquishes ownership or title, including a easé to the land or improvements, covered by
this tax exemption agreement, to a tax exempt non-profit organization or institufion,
including any public body, during the term of the tax exemption agreement, that would
adversely impact the City’s anticipated economic interests by reducing in any way taxes
or the service charge due the City under this agreement or by law, it is understood and
agreed by the Entity that it first obtain the consent of the City to the transfer or lease. It is
further understood that it may be grounds for the City to withhold its approval if the City’s
economic interests are adversely effected thereby.

Section 9.3  Severability.
It is an express condition of the granting of this tax exemption that during its

duration, the Entity shall not, without the prior consent of the Municipal Council by

Ordinance, convey, mortgage ortransfer, all orpart of the Project so as to sever, disconnect,
or divide the improvements from the lands which are basic to, embraced in, or underlying
the exempted improvements.

ARTICLE X - COMPLIANCE

Section 10.1  Operation
During the term of this Agreement, the Project shall be maintained and operated in
accordance with the provisions of the Law. Operation of Project under this Agreement

shall not only be terminable as provided by N.J.S.A. 55:14K-1, et seq., as currently

11
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The City recognizes and acknowledges that the Entity may be awarded an allocation of tax
credits. In this event, the Entity intends to syndicate the tax credits by admitting an equity investor
as 3 limited partner. The City agrees and consents to such admission ¢f a limited partners,
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amended and supplemented, but also by a Default under this Agreement. The Entity's
failure to comply with the Law shall constitute a Default under this A greement and the City
shall, among its other remedies, have the right to terminate the tax exemption.

ARTICLE X1 - DEFAULT

Section 11.1  Default

Default shall be failure of the Entity to conform with the temms of this Agreement
or failure of the Entity to perform any obligation imposed by the Law, beyond any
applicable notice, cure or grace period.
Section 11.2  Cure Upon Default

Should the Entity be in Default, the City shall send written notice to the Entity of
the Default {Defanlt Notice]. The Default Notice shall set forth with particularity the basis
of the alleged Default. The Entity shall have sixty (60) days, from receipt of the Default
Notice, to cure any Default which shall be the sole and exclusive remedy available to the
Entity. However, if, in the reasonable opinjon of the City, the Defauit cannot be cured
within sixty (60) days using reasonable diligence, the City will extend the time to cure.

Subsequent to such sixty (60) days, or any approved extension, the City shall have
the night to terminate this Agreement in accordance with Section 12.1.

Should the Entity be in default failure to pay any charges defined as Material

Conditions in Section 4.5, shall not be subject to the default procedural remedies as
provided in Section 5.1 herein but shall allow the City to proceed immediately to terminate

the Agreement as provided in Article XI1 herein.

Section 11.3 Remedies Upon Default

The City shall, among its other remedies, have the right to proceed against the
property pursuant to the In Rem Tax Foreclosure Act, N.J.S.A. 54:5-1, et seq. and/or may
declare a Default and terminate this Agreement. Any default arising out of the Entity's
failure to pay Land Taxes, the Minimum Annual Service Charge, Administrative Fees,
Additional Consideration or the Annual Service Charges shall not bs subject to the default
procedural remedies as provided in Article XI Land Taxes or the Annual Service Charges

shall not be subject 1o the default procedural remedies as provided in Article XI herein but

12



shall allow the City to proceed immediately to terminate the Agreement as provided in
Article XTI herein. Al oftheremedies provided in this Agreement tothe City, and allrights
and remedies granted to it by law and equity shall be cumulative and concurrent. No
determination of any provision of this Agreement shall deprive the City of any of its
remedies or actions against the Entity because of its failure to pay Land Taxes, the
Miﬁimum Annual Service Charge, Annual Service Charge, Administrative Fees or
Additional Consideration. This right shall apply to arrearages that are due and owing at the
time or which, under the terms hereof, would in the future become due as if there had been
no determination. Further, the bringing of any action for Land Taxes, the Minimum Annual
Service Charge, the Annual Service Charge, Administrative Fees or Additional
Consideration, or for breach of covenant or the resort to any other remedy herein provided
for the recovery of Land Taxes shall not be construed as a waiver of the rights to terminate
the tax exemption or proceed with a tax sale or Tax Foreclosure action or any other
specified remedy.

In the event of a Default on the part of the Entity to pay any charges set forth in
Article TV, the City among its other remedies, reserves the right to proceed against the
Entity's land and property, in the manner provided by the In Rem Foreclosure Act, and any
act supplementary or amendatory thereof. Whenever the word taxes appear, or is applied,
directly or implicdly to mean taxes or municipal liens on land, such statutory provisions
shall be read, as far as 1s pertinent to this Agreement, as if the charges were taxes or

L . Nobwi thstardi
municipal liens on land.  hawe to o

ARTICLE XII- TERMINATION

Section 12.1 Termination Upon Default of the Entity

In the event the Entity fails to cure or remedy the Default within the time period
provided in Section 11.2, the City may terminate this Agreement vpon thirty (30) days
written notice to the Entity [Notice of Termination].
Section 12,2 Voluntary Termination by the Entity

The Entity may after the expiration of one year from the Substantial Completion of

the Project notify the City that as of a certain date designated in the notice, it relinquishes

13



its status as a tax exempt Project. As of the date so set, the tax exemption, the Annual
Service Charges and the profit and dividend restrictions shall terminate.
Section 12.3 Final Accounting

Within ninety (90) days after the date of termination, whether by affirmative action
of the Entity or by virtue of the provisions of the Law or pursuant to the terms of this
Agreement, the Entity shall provide a final accounting to the City. For purposes of
rendering afinal accou_nting thetermination of the Agreement shall be deemed to be the end
of the fiscal year for the Entity.
Section 12.4 Conventional Taxes

Upon Termination or expiration of this Agreement, the tax exemption for the
Project shall expire and the land and the Improvements thereon shall thereafter be assessed
and conventionally taxed according to the general law applicable 1o other nonexempt
taxable property in the City.

ARTICLE XHI - DISPUTE RESOLUTION

Section 13.1 Arbitration

In the event of a breach of the within Agreement by either of the parties hereto or
a dispute arising between the parties in reference to the terms and proviéions as set forth
herein, either party may apply to the Superior Court of New J ersey by an appropriate
proceeding, to settle and resolve the dispute in such fashion as will tend to accomplish the
purposes of the Law. In the event the Superior Court shall not entertain jurisdiction, then

the parties shall submit the dispute to the American Arbitration Association in New Jers ey

to be determined in accordance with its rules and regulations in such a fashion to
accomplish the purpose of the Long Term Tax BExemption Law. The cost for the arbitration
shall be borne equally by the parties. The parties agree that the Entity may notfile an action
in Superior Court or with the Arbitration Association unless the Entity has first paid in full
all charges defined in Article ITI, Section 4.8 as Material Conditions.

ARTICLE XIV - WAIVER

Section 14.1 ‘Waiver

Nothing contained in this Financial Agreement or otherwise shall constitute a waiver

14



or relinquishment by the City of any rights and remedies, including, without limitation, the

right to terminate the Agreement and tax exemption for violation of any of the conditions

provided herein. Nothing herein shall be deemed to limit any right of recovery of any

amount which the City has under law, in equity, or under any provision of this Agreement.
ARTICLE XV - INDEMNIFICATION

Section 15.1 Defined

It 1s understood and agreed that in the event the City shall be named as party
defendant in any action (otherthan an action commenced by the Eatity) alleging any breach,
default or a violation of any of the provisions of this Agreement and/or the provisions of the

Law, the Entity shall indemnify and hold the City harmless, and the Entity agrees to defend

the suit at its own expensé;However, the City maintains the right to intervene as a party
thereto, to which intervention the Entity consents; the expense thereof to be borne by the
Entity.

ARTICLE XVI- NOTICE

Section 16,1 Certified Mail
Any noticerequired hereunder to be sent by either party to the other shall be sent by
certified or registered mail, return receipt requested.

Section 16.2 Sent by City

When sent by the City to the Bntity the notice shall be addressed to:
vhitlock, L.P., ¢/o Housing Trust of Anerica

6851 Cek Hall Iare, Suite 7600

Calurbia, MD 21045

and
New Jersey Housing and Mortgage Finance Agency
637 South Clinton Avenue
P.O. Box 18550
Trenton, NJ 08650-2085

unless prior to giving of notice the Eatity shall have notified the City in writing otherwise.
In addition, provided the City ts sent a formal written notice in accordance with this
Agreement, of the name and address of Entity’s Mortgagee, the City agreesto provide such

Mortgagee with a copy of any notice required to be sent to the Entity.

I\Tgitnyiﬂustaﬁjzgawthﬁgmreinbaﬂlecuﬂ:rary, the Btiity's liahility wdder this Agreament shall ke
limited to itg interest in the Project.
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Section 16.3 Sent by Entity
When sent by the Entity to the City, it shall be addressed to:

City of Jersey City, Office of the City Clerk

City Hall

280 Grove Street

Jersey City, New Jersey 07302,
with copies sent to the Corporation Counsel, the Business Administrator, and the Tax
Collector unless prior to the giving of notice, the City shall have notified the Entity
otherwise. The notice to the City shall identify the Project to which it relates, (i.e., the
Urban Renewal Entity and the Property’s Block and Lot number).

ARTICLE XVII-SEVERABILITY

Section 17.1 Severability

If any term, covenant or condition of this Agreement or the Application, except a
Material Condition, shall be judicially declared to be invalid or unenforceable, the
remainder of this Agreement or the application of such term, covenant or condition to
persons or circumstances other than those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable,
shall not be affected thereby, and each term, covenant- or condition of this Agreement shall
be valid and be enforced to the fullest extent permitted by law.

1f a Material Condition shall be judicially declared to be invalid or unenforceable

and provided the Entity is not in Default of this Agreement, the parties shall cooperate with

each other to take the actions reasonably required to restore the Agreement in a manner

re-execution of this Agreement in a form reasonably drafted to effectuate the or ginal intent
of the parties. However, the City shall not be required to restore the Agreement if it would
modify a Material Condition, the amount of the periodic adjustments or any other term of
this Agreement which would result in any economic reduction or loss to the City.

ARTICLE XVIII - MISCELLANEOUS

Section 18.1  Construction

This Agreement shail be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the
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State of New Jersey, and without regard to or aid of any presumption or other rule requiring
construction against the party drawing or causing this Agreement to be drawn since counsel
for both the Entity and the City have combined in their review and approval of same.
Section 18.2 Conflicts

The parties agree that in the event of a conflict between the Application and the
language contained in the Agreement, the Agreementshall govern and prevail, In the event
of conflict between the Agreement and the Law, the Law shall govern and prevail.
Section 18.3 Oral Representations |

There have been no oral representations made by either of the parties hereto which
are not contained in this Agreement. This Agreement, the Ordinance authorizing the
Agreement, and the Application constitute the entire Agreement between the parties and
there shall be no modifications thereto other than by a written instrument approved and
executed by both parties and delivered to each party.
Section 18.4 Entire Document

This Agreement and all conditions in the Ordinance of the Municipal Council
approving this Agreement are incorporated in this Agreement and made a part hereof.
Section 18.5 Good Faith

In their dealings with each other, utmost good faith is required from the Entity and
the City.

ARTICLE XTX - EXHIBITS

Secfion 19 Exhibits

The following Exhibits are attached hereto and incorporated herein as if set forth at

length herein:

1. Metes and Bounds description of the Project;
2. Ordinance of the City authorizing the execution of this Apgreement;
3. The Application with Exhibits;

4. Certificate of the Entity;
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5 Estimated Constructicn Schedule;

6. The Financial Plan for the undertaking of the Project;
7. Initial Rental Schedules and Lease Teims;

8. Project Employment & Contracting Agreement;

9. Architect's Certification of Actual Construction Costs;

10.  Written approval of HMFA mortgage loan, including the amount

and tertm thereof,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the

the day and vear first above written.

ATTEST:

SECRETARY

ATTEST:

ROBERT BYRNE
CITY CLERK

WITIOX MILLS, L.P.
BY: HIA whitlock, IIC, its geeral partrer

By:

Wallace 1 Sonogs, Maregirg Marber

CITY OF JERSEY CITY

CARLTON McGEE
BUSINESS ADMINISTRATOR

parties have caused these presents to be executed
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EXHIBITH
WHITLOCK MILLS, L.P.

Disclosure Statement

NAME OF ENTITY: Whitlock Mills, L.P.

PRINCIPAL OFFICE: c/o Housing Trust of America, L.L.C.
8851 Oak Hall Lane, Suite 100
Coiumbia, MD 21045

NAME OF REGISTERED AGENT: Stephen A. Goldberg, Esq.

ADDRESS: 218 North Charles Street, Suite 400
Baltimore, MD 21201

I CERTIFY THAT THE FOLLOWING LIST REPRESENTS THE NAMES OF ALL MEMBERS
OWNING A 10% OR GREATER INTEREST IN THE ABOVE ENTITY (IF ONE OR MORE OF
THE ABOVE NAMED IS ITSELF AN ENTITY, THE NAMES OF ANY ENTITY OWING A 10%
OR GREATER INTEREST THEREIN) IS SET FORTH ON THE RIDER ATTACHED.

NAME ADDRESS PERCENT OWNED
HTA Whitlock, L.L.C. 6851 Oak Hall Lane .1% Ownership

Suite 100 General Partner
(Ses Rider attached Columbia, MD 21045

hereto for Membership)

Wachovia Securities cfo Housing Trust of America, L.L.C. 98.9% Ownership
6851 Oak Hall Lane, Suite 100 Limited Partner
Colurmnbia, MD 21045
WHITLOCK MILLS, L.P.

By: HTA Whitlock, LLC, its general partner

By: W/./L\/buu i’ 5

Wallace L. Scruggs, Managing ber




RIDER TO DISCLOSURE STATEMENT

Members of HTA Whitlock, L.L.C. are:

1) Wallace L. Scruggs
50% Managing Member

2} JAG Ventures, Ltd.
50%

Partners of JAG Ventures, Ltd. are:

1) Stewart Marcus
Limited Partner 40.5%

2) Jane Marcus
Limited Partner 49.5%

3) Gift Trust for Benefit of Marcus Family Members
Limited Partner 2.0%

4} Jag Investors, Inc.
General Partner 1.0%

Shareholders of Jag Investors, Inc. are:

1) Stewart Marcus 49,5%
2) Jane Marcus 49 5%
3) Wallace Scruggs 1.0%

MMara\ABATEMENTS-TAXWHITLOCK MILLS (rental projecif TAXEXEMP-APPLIC wpd



AUG-28-03 THU 12:55 PH FAR NO.
State of Maryland

Department of
Assessments and Taxation

Charter Division

P, 02/02
Robert L, Ehrlich, Jr,

Gevernor

Ronald W, Winehiglt
IXrear

Pnul B, Andervon
Adwmiprstrator

GATLAGEER, EVELTIUS & JONES
STE 408
218 W CHARIRS =T

HATTIMORE Mp Z1E01-4021

This lefier is to conlirm acoeptance of the following ﬁling:'

ENTITY Nawg WHITLOCK MILLS L.P.

DEPARTMENT ID : HOTB46987

TYPE OF REQUESRT : CERTIFICATH OF LIMITED FPARTRERINIP
DATR FILED ¢ 08-22-2003

TIME FILED ;3 02:50-PM

BECORUING YRR T 5106,00

EYVENITED FEE 1 $50.00

FILING MUMBEER ! 100036198B766477

CUSTOMER TD : 00011912351

WORK ORDER NUMBER : 0000780157

PLTASE VERIFY THE INFORMATION CONTAT

I WRITING IF ARY IH.E‘DM‘I‘IGN I8 INCORMECT, INCLUD

301 West Preston Street, Baltimore, Marytand 21201
Telephons (410) 7647-1350
MES (Marylund Reluy Service) (800) 735-2258 TT/Veice
Fux (410) 333-7097

Date: 08-26-2003

HED IN THIS LETTER. HOTIE’I THIS DEEAR‘JIM.‘E:NT

pO0Z40g13E

ehines



CERTIFICATE OF LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
OF
WHITLOCK MILLS L.P. -

WHITLOCK MILLS L.P., 2 Maryland limited partnership having its principal office
in Howard County, Maryland (the "Partnership") certifies:

1. Name. The name of the Partnership is "Whitlock Mills L.P."

2. Principal Office and Resident Agent. The address of the principal office of
the Partnership is 6851 Oak Hall Lane, Suite 100, Columbia, Maryland 21045. The name
and address of the resident agent of the Partnership is Stephen A. Goldberg, Esquire,

Gallagher Evelius & Jones LLP, 218 North Charles Street, Suite 400, Baltimore, Maryland
21201. : '

3. General Partner. The name and the business address of the General Partner
of the Partnership are as follows:

HTA Whitlock, LLC
6851 Oak Hall Lane, Suite 100
Columbia, Maryland 21045

4. Partnership Affairs. The affairs of the Partmership shall be governed by the

Limited Partnership Agreement, which may be amended from time to time as provided
therein.

5. Dissolution, The latest date upon which the Partnership is to dissolve is
December 31, 2055,

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]

# 222838 SAG
011740-0003



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the General Partner of the Partnership has-' executed this
Certificate of Limited Partnexship on this 22 _ day of August, 2003,

GENERAL PARTNER!
HTA WHITLOCK, LLC

By: \'5/ i (SEAL)
Wame: byl hets

Title: Musvnsus 7 & 3%4-\-&
' bb-t’)_ﬂs ftjg;l,\q,ﬁ NN

#222838 SAG
0117400003



I hereby consent to act as resident agent in Maryland for Whitlock Mills L.P.

e A'/Z( oldberg

# 222838 SAG 3
011740-0003



Rev. 9-15-03
HMFA: N.J.S.A. 55:14K-1 ¢t seq.
Moderate Income/Market Rate Rental Housing

Re: 160 Lafayette Street
Block 2057, Lot 18
Morris Canal Redevelopment Plan

PREAMBLE

THIS FINANCIAL AGREEMENT, [Agreement] made this day of
, 2003, by and between WHITLOCK MILLS, L.P., is a qualified housing
sponsor under the New Jersey Mortgage Housing Finance Agency N.J.S.A. 55:14K-1 et seq.
having its principal office at c/o Housing Trust of America, 6851 Oak Hall Lane, Suite 100,
Columbia, MD 210435, and the CITY OF JERSEY CITY, a Municipal Corporation in the
County of Hudson and the State of New Jersey, [City], having its principal office at 280

Grove Street, Jersey City, New Jersey 07302.

RECITALS
WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Entity 1s the Owner of certain property designated as Block 2057,

Lot 18, more commonlty known by the street address of 160 Lafayette Street, Jersey City, NJ,
and more particularly described by the metes and bounds description set forth as Exhibit 1

to this Agreement; and

Redevelopment Plan Area; and

WHEREAS, the Entity plans to construct certain improvements on the property to
create a total of 330 units of rental housing, 132 units of rental market rate housing and 198
units of moderate income rental housing units with a parking garage for approximately 165
cars and a surface parking lot for approximately 115 cars, [Project]; and

WHEREAS, on October 8, 2003, the Entity’s Application for a HMFA tax
exemption for the Project was approved by the City by the adoption of Ordinance (3-139;

and
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained,



and for other good and valuable consideration, it is mutually covenanted and agreed as

follows:

ARTICLE I - GENERAL PROVISIONS

Section 1.1  Governing Law

This Agreement shall be governed by the provisions of the New Jersey Housing and
Mortgage Finance Agency Law, N.J.S.A. 55:14K-1 et seq., Executive Order of the Mayor,
02-003, Ordinance 02-075 and Ordinance 03-139, which authorized the execution of this
Agreement. It being expressly understood and agreed that the City expressly relies upon the
facts, data, and representations contained in the Application, attached hereto as Exhibit 3, in
granting this tax exemption.
Section 1.2 General Definitions

Unless specifically provided otherwise or the context otherwise requires, when used

in this Agreement, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

1. Agency- The New Jersey Housing and Mortgage Finance Agency.
ii. Annual Gross Revenue- The total gross income, including any

and all revenue derived from or generated by the Project of whatever kind or amount,
whether received as rent from any tenants or income or fees from third parties, including but
not limited to fees or income paid or received for parking, laundry, or other services,

including any Section 8 certificate revenue derived from the Project, including all rent and

other income. It also includes the cost of insurance, gas, electricity, water and sewer charges,

if such expense is ordinarily paid for by the Landlord.
iii. Annual Service Charge - Estimated as follows:

A. 4% of Annual Gross Revenue $173,775 or approximately

$526 per unit for the first 10 years;
B. 5% of Annual Gross Revenue for the second 10 years;
C. 6% of Annual Gross Revenue for the final 10 years,
inaccordance with the financial plan attached hereto as Exhibit 2, which sum is in lieu of any

taxes.



iv. Auditor's Report - A complete financial statement outlining the
financial status of the Project (for a period of time as indicated by context). The contents of
the Auditor’s Report shall have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles and shall contain at a minimum the following: a balance sheet, a
statement of income, a statement of retained earnings or changes in stockholder’s equity,

- statement of cash flows, descriptions of accounting policies, notes to financial statements and
appropriate schedules and explanatory material results of operations, cash flows and any
other items reasonably required by the City or its auditors. The Auditor’s Report shall be
certified as to its conformance with such principles by a certified public accountant who is
licensed to practice that profession in the State of New Jersey.

V. Certificate of Occupancy - Document, whether temporary or

permanent, issued by the City authorizing occupancy of a building, in whole or in part,
pursuant to N.J.S.A. 52:27D-133.

Vi. Default - Shall be a breach of or the failure of the Entity to perform
any obligation imposed upon the Entity by the terms of this Agreement, or under the Law,
beyond any applicable grace or cure periods.

Vil Entity - The term Entity within this Agreement shall mean Whitlock
Mills, L.P., which Entity is formed pursuant to the laws of the State of Maryland and is
qualified to do business in the State of New Jersey. It shall also include any subsequent
purchasers or successors in interest of the Project, provided they are formed and operate

_ under by Law and the transfer has been duly approved by the City.

viii. Improvements or Project - Any building, structure or fixture
permanently affixed to the land and to be constructed and tax exempted under this
Agreement.

1X. In Rem Tax Foreciosure or Tax Foreclosure - A summary proceeding

by which the City may enforce a lien for taxes due and owing by tax sale, under N.J.S.A.
54:5-1 to 54:5-129 gt seq.
X. Land Taxes - The amount of taxes assessed on the value of land, on

which the project is located and, if applicable, taxes on any pre-existing improvements. Land



Taxes are not exempt; however, Land Taxes appear to be exempt; however, if Land Taxes
are determined to be due they will be applied as a credit against the Annual Service Charge.

xi. Land Tax Payments - Payments made on the quarterly due dates,

including approved grace pertods if any, for Land Taxes, if any, as determined by the Tax
Assessor and the Tax Collector.

Xii. Law - Law shall refer to the New Jersey Housing and Mortgage
Finance Agency Law, N.J.S.A. 55:14K-1 et seq.; Executive Order of the Mayor 02-003,
relating to long term tax exemption, as it may be amended and supplemented; Ordinance 03-
139, which authorized the execution of this Agreement and all other relevant Federal, State
or City statutes, ordinances, resolutions, rules and/or regulations.

xiit.  Minimum Annual Service Charge - The Minimum Annual Service
Charge shall be the amount of the total taxes levied against all real property in the area
covered by the Project in the last full tax year preceding the recording of the HMFA
mortgage which amount the parties agree is $90,968.50. The Minimum Annual Service
Charge shall be paid in each year in which the Annual Service Cha:rge, calculated pursuant
to the Financial Agreement would be less than the Minimum Annual Service Charge.

x. Pronouns - He or it shall mean the masculine, feminine or neuter
gender, the singular, as well as the plural, as context requires.

X. Substantial Completion - The determination by the City that the
Project, in whole or in part, is ready for the use intended, which ordinarily shall mean the

date on which the Project receives, or is eligible to receive any Certificate of Occupancy for

any portion of the Project.
xl. Termination - Any act or omission which by operation of the terms
of this Financial Agreement shall cause the Entity to relinquish its tax exemption.
ARTICLE II - APPROVAL
Section 2.1  Approval of Tax Exemption
The City hereby grants its approval for a tax exemption from real estate taxes in
accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement and the provisions of the Law

on certain property known on the Official Tax Assessor’s Map of the City as: Block 2057,



Lots 18, more commonly known by the street address of 160 Lafayette Street, Jersey City,
New Jersey, and described by metes and bounds in Exhibit 1 attached hereto.
Section 2.2  Approval of Entity

Approval is granted to the Entity whose Certificate of Limited Partnership is attached
hereto as Exhibit 4. Entity represents that its Certificate has been filed with, as appropriate,
the State Treasurer.
Section 2.3 TImprovements to be Constructed

Entity represents that it will construct certain improvements on the Property to create
a total of approximately 330 units of rental housing, (132 units of rental market rate housing,
and 198 units of moderate income rental housing units) with a parking garage for
approximately 165 cars and a surface parking lot for approximately 115 cars, all of which is
more specifically described in the Application attached hereto as Exhibit 3.
Section 2.4  Construction Schedule

The Entity agrees to diligently undertake to commence construction, use its best
efforts to, and complete the Project in accordance with the Estimated Construction Schedule,
attached hereto as Exhibit 5.
Section 2.5  Ownership, Management and Control

The Entity represents that it is the owner of the Project to be constructed and that it
will manage and control the Project. The City acknowledges that the Entity may enter into

a management agreement for the Project and will pay a management fee in accordance with

City acknowledges that the Entity may enter into future management agreements so long as
such agreements are not used to reduce the City’s economic benefits under this Agreement
and the management fees to be paid are comparable to those disclosed in the Application.
Section 2.6  Financial Plan

The Entity represents that the Improvements shall be financed substantially in
accordance with the Financial Plan attached hereto as Exhibit 6. The Plan sets forth
estimated Total Project Cost, the amortization rate on the Total Project Cost, the source of

funds, the interest rates to be paid on construction financing, the source and amount of paid-



in capital, and the terms of any mortgage amortization.
Section 2.6  Statement of Rental Schedules and Lease Terms
The Entity represents that its good faith projections of the initial rental schedules and
lease terms are set forth in Exhibit 7, attached hereto.
ARTICLE 11T - DURATION OF AGREEMENT
Section 3.1 Term
So long as there is compliance with the Law and this Agreement, it is understood and
agreed by the parties hereto that this Agreement shall remain in effect for the earlier of: 40
years from the date of the adoption of Ordinance 03-139, which approved this exemption
or 35 years from the date of Substantial Completion of the Project but in no event beyond the
date that the HMFA meortgage is paid in full. The tax exemption shall only be effective
during the period of usefulness of the Project and shall continue in force only while the
Project is owned by a corporation or association formed and operating under the Law.
ARTICLE IV - ANNUAL SERVICE CHARGE
Section 4.1  Annual Service Charge
In consideration of the tax exemption, the Entity shall make payment to the City of
an amount ecual to the greater of: the Minimum Annual Service Charge or an Annual
Service Charge. The Annual Service Charge shall be billed initially based upon the Entity’s
estimates of Annual Gross Revenue as set forth in its Financial Plan, attached hereto as

Exhibit 6. Thereafter, the Annual Service Charge shall be adjusted in accordance with this

Section

=4S AT RS =

A Minimum Annual Service Charge shall be due beginning on the date this
Agreement is executed. The Annual Service Charge or Minimum Annual Service Charge,
as the case may be, shall be due on the first day of the month following the Substantial
Completion of the Project. In the event the Entity fails to timely pay the Minimum Annual
Service Charge or the Annual Service Charge, the amount unpaid shall bear the highest rate
of interest permitted in the case of unpaid taxes or tax liens on land until paid.

The amount of the quarterly payment of the Annual Service Charge shall be estimated

based on the actual amount of Annual Gross Revenue' generated by the project in the



previous tax year, as determined by the auditor’s reports of income and expenses. The
amount of such payment shall be subject to adjustment based on the City’s review of the
anditor’s reports of income and expenses submitted to the City and a determination of the
correct amount due (the Audited Amount). Within ninety (90) days after the Audited
Amount is determined and notice thereof is given to the Entity, the Entity shall pay any
underpayment or the City shall refund any overpayment of the Annual Service Charge, as the
case may be.
Section 4.2  Administrative Fee

The Entity shall also pay an annual administrative fee to the City in addition to the
Minimum or Annual Service Charge. This administrative fee shall equal two (2%) percent
of the Annual Service Charge and shall be payable and due on or before December 31st of
each year and collected in the same manner as the Annual Service Charge.
Section 4.3 Land Tax Credit

If the Law requires the Entity to pay Land Taxes in addition tot he service charges,
then the Entity will be entitled to a land tax credit against the service charges. In order to be
entitied to the credit, however, the Entity is obligated to make timely Land Tax payments,
in order to be entitled to a Land Tax Credit against the Annual Service Charge for the
subsequent year. The Entity shall be entitled to credit for the amount, without interest, of the
Land Tax Payments made in the last four preceding quarterly installments against the Annual
Service Charge. In any year that the Entity fails to make any Land Tax Payments when due

credits against the Annual Service Charge for that year. No credit will be applied against the

Annual Service Charge for partial payments of Land Taxes. Inaddition, the City shall have,
among this remedy and other remedies, the right to proceed against the property pursuant
to the In Rem Tax Foreclosure Act, N.J.S.A. 54:5-1, et seq. and/or declare a Default and
terminate this Agreement.
Section 4.4  Quarterly Installments

The Entity expressly agrees that the Annual Service Charge shall be made in quarterly

installments on those dates when real estate tax payments are due; subject, nevertheless, to



adjustment for over or underpayment within thirty (30) days after the close of each calendar
year. Inthe event that the Entity fails to pay the Annual Service Charge, the amount unpaid
shall bear the highest rate of interest permitted in the case of unpaid taxes or tax liens on the
land until paid.
Section 4.5 Material Conditions

It is expressly agreed and understood that the timely payments of Land Taxes,
Minimum Annual Service Charges, Annual Service Chérges, including adjustments thereto,
Administrative Fees, and any interest thereon, are Material Conditions of this Agreement.

ARTICLE V - PROJECT EMPLOYMENT & CONTRACTING AGREEMENT

Section 5.1  Project Employment & Contracting Agreement

In order to provide City residents and businesses with certain employment and other
economic related opportunities, the Entity is subject to the terms and conditions of the
Pi‘oject Employment Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit 8.

ARTICLE VI - CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY

Section 6.1  Certificate of Occupancy

It is understood and agreed that it shall be the obligation of the Entity to obtain all
Certificates of Occupancy in a timely manner. The failure to secure the Certificates of
Occupancy shall subject the property to full taxation.
Section 6.2 Filing of Certificate of Occupancy

It shall be the primary responsibility of the Entity to forthwith file with both the Tax

~ Failure of the Entity to file such issued Certificate of Occupancy as required by the
preceding paragraph, shall not militate against any action or non-action, taken by the City,
including, if appropriate retroactive billing with interest for any charges determined to be
due, in the absence of such filing by the Entity.
Section 6.3  Construction Permits
The estimated cost basis disclosed by the Entity's application and proposed Financial
Agreement may, at the option of the City, be used as the basis for the construction cost in the

issuance of any construction permit(s) for the Project.



ARTICLE VII - ANNUAL REPORTS

Section 7.1  Accounting System

The Entity agrees to maintain a system of accounting and internal controls established
and administered in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
Section 7.2 Periodic Reports

A. Auditor’s Report: Within ninety (90) days after the close of each fiscal or calendar
year, depending on the Entity's accounting basis that this Agreement shall continue in effect,
the Entity shall submit to the Municipal Council, the Tax Collector and the City Clerk, who
shall advise those municipal officials required to be advised, and the HMFA, its Auditor’s
Report for the preceding fiscal or calendar year. The Auditor's Report shall include, but not
be limited to: Rental schedule of the Project, and the terms and interest rate on any
mortgage(s) associated with the purchase or construction of the Project and such details as
may relate to the financial affairs of the Entity and to its operation and performance
hereunder, pursuant to the Law and this Agreement. The Report shall clearly identify and
calculate the Net Profit for the Entity during the previous year.

B. Disclosure Statement: On the anniversary date of the execution of this Agreement,
if there has been a change in ownership or interest from the prior year’s filing, the Entity
shall submit to the Municipal Council, the Tax Collectof and the City Clerk, who shall
advise those municipal officials required to be advised, a Disclosure Statement listing the
persons having an ownership interest in the Project, and the extent of the ownership interest
Section 7.3  Mortgage

Within ninety (90) days after the date the Entity closes on its loan with the Agency,
the Entity shall file with the City a fully executed copy of the Note and a recorded copy of
the HMFA Mortgage.

Section 7.4  Inspection _

The Entity shall permit the inspection of its propetty, equipment, buildings and other

facilities of the Project and, if deemed appropriate or necessary, any other related Entity by

representatives duly authorized by the City and the HMFA. It shall also permit, upon



request, examination and andit of its books, contracts, records, documents and papers Such
examination or audit shall be made during the reasonable hours of the business day, in the

presence of an officer or agent designated by the Entity.

ARTICLE VIII- LIMITATION OF PROFITS AND RESERVES

Section 8.1  Limitation of Profits and Reserves
During the period of tax exemption as provided herein, the Entity’s return on
investment shall be limited in accordance with the regulations and conditions imposed by the
Agency pursuant to N.J.S.A. 55:14k-7(6) or any other Law applicable.
ARTICLE IX - ASSIGNMENT AND/OR ASSUMPTION

Section 9.1  Prior Approval of Sale

Any change made in the ownership of the Project and sale or transfer of the Project,
shall be void unless approved in advance by Ordinance of the Municipal Council. It is
understood and agreed that the City, on written application by the Entity, will not
unreasonably withhold its consent to a sale of the Project and the transfer of this Agreement
provided 1) the new Entity is a housing sponsor under the Law; 2) the Entity ts not then in
default of this Agreement or the Law; and (3) the Entity’s obligations under this Agreement
are fully assumed by the new Entity.

ARTICLE X - COMPLIANCE

Section 10.1 Operation

During the term of this Agreement, the Project shall be maintained and operated in

_ accordance with the provisions of the Law. Operation of Project under this Agreementshall

not only be terminable as provided by N.J.S.A. 55:14K-1 et seq., as currently amended and
supplemented, but also by a Default under this Agreement. The Entity's failure to comply
with the Law shall constitute a Default under this Agreement and the City shall, among 1ts
other remedies, have the right to terminate the tax exemption.
Section 10.2 Disclosure of Lobbyist Representative

During the term of this Agreement, the Entity must comply with Executive Order
2002-005, and Ordinance 02-073, requiring Written Disclosure of Lobbyist Representative
Status. The Entity’s failure to comply with the Executive Order or the Ordinance shall

10



constitute a Default under this Agreement and the City shall, among its other remedies, have

the right to terminate the tax exemption.

ARTICLE XTI - DEFAULT

Section 11.1 Default

Default shall be failure of the Entity to conform with the terms of this Agreement or
failure of the Entity to perform any obligation imposed by the Law, beyond any applicable
notice, cure or grace period.
Section 11.2 Cure Upon Defanlt

Should the Entity be in Default, the City shall send written notice to the Entity ofthe
Default [Default Notice]. The Default Notice shall set forth with particularity the basis of
the alleged Default. The Entity shall have sixty (60) days, from receipt of the Default Notice,
to cure any Default which shall be the sole aﬁd exclusive remedy available to the Entity.
However, if, in the reasonable opinion of the City, the Default cannot be cured within sixty
(60) days using reasonable diligence, the City will extend the time to cure.

Subsequent to such sixty (60) days, or any approved extension, the City shall have
the right to terminate this Agreement in accordance with Section 12.1.

Should the Entity be in default failure to pay any charges defined as Materi.al
Conditions in Section, shall not be subject to the default procedural remedies as provided in
Section 5.1 herein but shall allow the City to proceed immediately to terminate the
Agreement as provided in Article XII herein. ,

The City shall, among its other remedies, have the right to proceed against the
property pursuant to the In Rem Tax Foreclosure Act, N.J.S.A. 54:5-1, et seq. and/or may
declare a Default and terminate this Agreement. Any default arising out of the Entity's
failure to pay Land Taxes, the Minimum Annual Service Charge, Administrative Fees, orthe
Annual Service Charges shall not be subject to the default procedural remedies as provided
in Article XI Land Taxes or the Annual Service Charges shall not be subject to the default
procedural remedies as provided in Article XI herein but shall allow the City to proceed

immediately to terminate the Agreement as provided in Article XII herein. All of the

11



remedies provided in this Agreement to the City, and all rights and remedies granted to it by
law and equity shall be cumulative and concurrent. No determination of any provision of this
Agreement shall deprive the City of any of its remedies or actions against the Entity because
of its failure to pay Land Taxes, the Minimum Annual Service Charge, Annual Service
Charge, or Administrative Fees. This right shall apply to arrcarages that are due and owing
at the time or which, under the terms hereof, would in the future become due as if there had
beenno determination. Further, the bringing of any action for Land Taxes, the Minimum
Annual Service Charge, the Annual Service Charge, or Administrative Fees, or for breach
of covenant or the resort to any other remedy herein provided for the recovery of Land Taxes
shall not be construed as a waiver of the rights to terminate the tax exemption or proceed
with a tax sale or Tax Foreclosure action or any other specified remedy.

In the event of a Default on the part of the Entity to pay any charges set forth in
Article IV, the City among its other remedies, reserves the right to proceed against the
Entity's land and property, in the manner provided by the In Rem Foreclosure Act, and any
act supplementary or amendatory thereof, Whenever the word taxes appear, or is applied,
directly or impliedly to mean taxes or municipal liens on land, such statutory provisions shall
be read, as far as is pertinent to this Agreement, as if the charges were taxes or municipal
liens on land. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Entity does not waive any defense it may
have to contest the right of the City to proceed by in rem foreclosure.

ARTICLE XII- TERMINATION

In the event the Entity fails to cure or remedy the Default within the time period
provided in Section 11.2, the City may terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days
written notice to the Entity [Notice of Termination].

Section 12.2 Voluntary Termination by the Entity

The Entity may after the expiration of one year from the Substantial Completion of
the Project notify the City that as of a certain date designated in the notice, it relinquishes its
status as a tax exempt Project. As of the date so set, the tax exemption, the Annual Service

Charges and the profit and dividend restrictions shall terminate.
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Section 12.3 Final Accounting

Within ninety (90) days after the date of termination, whether by affirmative action
of the Entity or by virtue of the provisions of the Law or pursuant to the terms of this
Agreement, the Entity shall provide a final accounting to the City. For purposes of rendering
a final accounting the termination of the Agreement shall be deemed to be the end of the
fiscal year for the Entity.
Section 12.4 Conventional Taxes

Upon Termination or expiration of this Agreement, the tax exemption for the Project
shall expire and the land and the Improvements thereon shall thercafter be assessed and
conventionally taxed according to the general law applicable to other nonexempt taxable
property in the City.

ARTICLE XIII - DISPUTE RESOLUTION

Section 13.1 Arbitration

In the event of a breach of the within Agreement by either of the parties hereto or a
dispute arising between the parties in reference to the terms and provisions as set forth
herein, either party may apply to the Superior Court of New Jersejf by an appropriate
proceeding, to settle and resolve the dispute in such fashion as will tend to accomplish the
purposes of the Law. In the even’é the Superior Court shall nbt entertain jurisdiction, then the
parties shall submit the dispute to the American Arbitration Association in New Jersey to be

determined in accordance with its rules and regulations in such a fashion to accomplish the

equally by the parties. The partics agree that the Entity may not file an action in Superior

Court or with the Arbitration Association unless the Entity has first paid in full alf charges
defined in Article III, Section 4.8 as Material Conditions.
ARTICLE XIV - WAIVER

Section 14.1 Waiver
Nothing contained in this Financial Agreement or otherwise shall constitute a waiver
or relinquishment by the City of any rights and remedies, including, without limitation, the

right to terminate the Agreement and tax exemption for violation of any of the conditions
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provided herein. Nothing herein shall be deemed to limit any right of recovery of any

amount which the City has under law, in equity, or under any provision of this Agreement.
ARTICLE XV - INDEMNIFICATION

Section 15.1 Defined

It is understood and agreed that in the event the City shall be named as party
defendant in any action (other than an action commenced by the Entity) alleging any breach,
default or a violation of any of the provisions of this Agreement and/or the provisions of
N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 et seq., the Entity shall indemnify and hold the City harmless, and the
Entity agrees at the option of the City to defend the suit at its own expense or reimburse the
City for any fees or costs the City incurs to do so.

ARTICLE XVI- NOTICE

Section 16.1 Certified Mail

Any notice requited hereunder to be sent by either party to the other shall be sent by
certified or registered mail, return receipt requested.
Section 16.2 Sent by City

When sent by the City to the Entity the notice shall be addressed to:

Whitlock Mills, L.P., ¢/o Housing Trust of America
6851 Oak Hall Lane, Suite 100

Columbia, MD 21045

Attn.: Wallace L. Scruggs

New Jersey Housing and Mortgage Finance Agency
637 South Clinton Avenue '
P.O. Box 18550

Trenton, NJ 08650-2085

unless prior to giving of notice the Entity shall have notified the City in writing otherwise.
In addition, provided the City is sent a formal written notice in accordance with this
Agreement, of the name and address of Entity’s Mortgagee, the City agrees to provide sucil
Mortgagee with a copy of any notice required to be sent to the Entity.
Section 16.3 Sent by Entity
When sent by the Entity to the City, it shall be addressed to:
City of Jersey City, Office of the City Clerk

14



City Hall

280 Grove Street

Jersey City, New Jersey 07302,
with copies sent to the Corporation Counsel, the Business Administrator, and the Tax
Collector unless prior to the giving of notice, the City shall have notified the Entity
otherwise. The notice to the City shall identify the Project to which it relates, (i.e., the
Entity and the Property’s Block and Lot number).

ARTICLE XVII-SEVERABILITY

Section 17.1 Severability

If any term, covenant or condition of this Agreement or the Application, except a
Material Condition, shall be judicially declared to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder
of this Agreement or the application of such term, covenant or condition to persons or
circumstances other than those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be
affected thereby, and each term, covenant or condition of this Agreement shall be valid and
be enforced to the fullest extent permitted by law.,

It a Material Condition shall be judicially declared to be invalid or unenforceable and
provided the Entity is not in Default of this Agreement, the parties shall cooperate with each
other to take the actions reasonably required to restore the Agreement in a manner
contemplated by the parties. This shall include, but not be limited to the authorization and
re-execution of this Agreement in a form reasonably drafted to effectuate the original intent

of the parties. However, the City shall not be required to restore the Agreement if it would

modify a Material Condition, the amount of the periodic adjustments or any other term of
this Agreement which would result in any economic reduction or loss to the City. '

ARTICLE XVIIT - MISCELLANEOUS

Section 18.1 Construction

This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the
State of New Jersey, and without regard to or aid of any presumption or other rule requiring
construction against the party drawing or causing this Agreement to be drawn since counsel

for both the Entity and the City have combined in their review and approval of same.
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Section 18.2 Conflicts

The parties agree that in the event of a conflict between the Application and the
language contained in the Agreement, the Agreement shall govern and prevail. In the event
of conflict between the Agreement and the Law, the Law shall govern and prevail.
Section 18.3 Oral Representations

There have been no oral representations made by either of the parties hereto which
are not contained in this Agreement. This Agreement, the Ordinance authorizing the
Agreement, and the Application constitute the entire Agreement between the parties and
there shall be no modiﬁcations thereto other than by a written instrument approved and
executed by both parties and delivered to each party.
Section 18.4 Entire Document

This Agreement and all conditions in the Ordinance of the Municipal Council
approving this Agreement are incorporated in this Agreement and made a part hereof.
Section 18.5 Good Faith

In their dealings with each other, utmost good faith is required from the Entity and
the City.

ARTICLE XTX - EXHIBITS

Section 19 Exhibits

The following Exhibits are attached hereto and incorporated herein as if set forth at

length herein:

H—t

Metes and Bounds r]qu'ripﬁnn of the Prnjecf;

2. Ordinance of the City authorizing the execution of this Agreement;
3. The Application with Exhibits;

4. Certificate of the rEntity;

5. Estimated Construction Schedule;

6. The Financial Plan for the undertaking of the Project;

7. Initial Rental Schedules and Lease Terms;
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9.

10.

Project Employment Agreement;
Architect's Certification of Actual Construction Costs;

Written approval of HMFA mortgage loan, including the amount and
term thereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOPF, the parties have caused these presents to be executed
the day and year first above written.

ATTEST: WHITLOCK MILLS, L.P.

BY: HT A Whitlock, LLC, its general partner
SECRETARY Wallace L. Scruggs, Managing Member
ATTEST: CITY OF JERSEY CITY
ROBERT BYRNE CARLTON McGEE
CITY CLERK BUSINESS ADMINISTRATOR
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CERTIFICATE OF LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
OF
WHITLOCK MILLS L.P.

WHITLOCK MILLS L.P., a Maryland limited partnership having its principal office
in Howard County, Maryland (the "Partnership") certifies:

1. Name. The name of the Partnership is "Whitlock Mills L.P."

2. Principal Office and Resident Agent. The address of the principal office of
the Partnership is 6851 Oak Hall Lane, Suite 100, Columbia, Maryland 21045. The name
and address of the resident agent of the Partnership is Stephen A. Goldberg, Esquire,
Gallagher Evelius & Jones LLP, 218 North Charles Street, Suite 400, Baltimore, Maryland
21201. : ‘ |

3, General Partner. The name and the business address of the General Partner
of the Partnership are as follows:

HTA Whitlock, LLC
6851 Oak Hall Lane, Suite 100
Columbia, Maryland 21045

4. Partnership Affairs. The affairs of the Partnership shall be govemed by the
Limited Partnership Agreement, which may be amended from time to time as provided
therein.

5. Dissolution. The latest date upon which the Partnership is to dissolve is
December 31, 2055.

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]

# 222838 5AG
011740-0003



£ WITNESS WHEREOF, the General Partner of the Partnership has executed this
Cextificate of Limited Partnership on this 22  day of Augnst, 2003,
GENERAL PARTNER:
HTA WHITLOCK, LLC

By: (Amzzigm_ngﬁ_@m
Name: Lag basts  Seav s

Title: Moneast fun__ Mol 6-E.
ey Lobobleds LG

# 222838 SAG 2
p1I7ADO003



I hereby consent to act as resident agent in Maryland for Whitlock Mills L.P. -

7

Stephen A'}g"ldberg

# 222838 SAG |
01174G-0003



EXHIBIT 5

WHITLOCK MILLS, L.P.

CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE

It is currently projected that construction of the building will commence during April 2004. Once
commenced, it is projected that construction will take approximately eighteen to twenty (18-20)
months to complete with occupancy projected January 2006. This construction schedule is subject
to force majeure and the time required to obtain the necessary governmental approvals and permits.

M:AMaria\ABATEMENTS-TAX\WHITLOCK MILLS {rental projectiConstruction Schedule {Exh 5).wpd



EXHIBIT 6

WHITLOCK MILLS, L.P.
FINANCIAL PLAN

The financing of the acquisition of the Property will be provided via an acquisition loan from
Valley National Bank. It is anticipated that the acquisition financing will be for approximately
$4,500,000 with the Entity contributing the balance of funds from its own capital. It is anticipated
that the acquisition loan will be for a term of 15 months at market rate interest with other market rate
financing terms.

The financing of the construction of the Project will be provided via the following sources:

1. Itis anticipated that approximately $35,200,000 will be provided through New Jersey
Housing Mortgage Financing Agency bonds and will be secured by a forty (40) year
NJHMFA mortgage.

2. It is anticipated that approximately $4,000,000 will be provided from the New Jersey

Balanced Housing Funds. Pursuant to this program, the Entity will pay the City
interest on the aforementioned funds at an annual rate of one (1%) percent. The
entire principal amount of these funds will be re-paid to the City of Jersey City at the
expiration of the NJHMFA Mortgage.

3. It is anticipated that approximately $1,300,000 will be provided from the Home Loan
Program. Pursuant to this program, the Entity will pay the City interest on the
aforementioned funds at an annual rate of one (1%) percent. The entire principal
amount of these funds will be re-paid to the City of Jersey City at the expiration of
the NJHMFA Mortgage.

4, It is anticipated that approximately that $9,900,000 will be provided through the
Federal Tax Credit Program.

5. It is anticipated that approximately that $5,600,000 will be contributed by the Entity

All of the aforementioned financing is provided either through a grant or conventional debt
financing the payment for which is by way of interest and fees. No proprietary or ownership interest

will be conveyed to any lender as consideration for the financing. The Entity’s equity will be
contributed from the Entity’s own capital funds.

A computation of the estimated annual service charges that will be rendered by the project
will be contained in Exhibit B of the Tax Abatement Application which is attached to this Financial
Agreement as Exhibit 3.

A projection of total project costs is contained in Exhibit C of the Tax Abatement Application
which is attached to the Financial Agreement as Exhibit 3.

A projected statement of property operations is contained in Exhibit D of the Tax Abatement
Application which is attached to the Financial Agreement as Exhibit 3.

A Good Faith Estimate of Initial Lease Terms including anticipated rents is attached to the
Financial Agreement as Exhibit 7.

MAMarim\ABATEMENTS-TAXAWHITLOCK MILLS (rental praject\Exhibit 6 - Financial Plan .wpd



EXHIBIT 7
WHITLOCK MILLS, L.P.
DESCRIPTION OF RESIDENTIAL LEASES
GOOD FAITH ESTIMATE OF INITIAL RENTS

1. Name of Tenant: Various
2. Term of Lease: Initial term of lease not less than 1 year.
3. Number of Apartments: 330

30 3/2 | 1275 $803.00

90 212 950 $707.00

78 171 725 $583.00

Total 198 |

20 3/2 : 1,300 $2,232.00
60 2/2 1,100 $1,782.00
52 : 171 780 $1,532.00
Total 132

* The exact square footage and rent could vary. The numbers above represent the average square footage
and rent for each type of apartment.

5. Charges paid directly by Tenant Annually
a. Fire & other insurance NONE

b. Real Estate Taxes of Assessments

on in project NONE
¢. Operating and maintenance
expenses paid by tenant NONE
6. Special Features: Parking

Resident Services Program

M:\Maria\ABATEMENTS-TAXAWHITLOCK MILLS (rentzl project)\Description of Res Leases (Exh 7).wpd



11-27-01
PROJECT EMPLOYMENT & CONTRACTING AGREEMENT

This Project Employment & Contracting Agreement is made on theczﬂ(( day of [Lémﬂd;f/
2003 ,between the CITY OF JERSEY CITY [City] and WHITLOCK MILLS, L.P., having its
principal office at ¢/o Housing Trust of America, 6851 Oak Hall Lane, Suite 100, Columbia, MD
21045. Recipient agrees as follows:

1. Definitions:

The following words and terms, when used in this agreement, shall have the following
meanings unless the context clearly indicates otherwise.

1. "City" means the Business Administrator of the City of Jersey City, or his designee,
including any person or entity which enters into a contract with the City to implement, in
whole or in part, this agreement.

2. "Construction Contract" means any agreement for the erection, repair, alteration or
demolition of any building, structure, bridge, roadway, or other improvement on a Project
Site. '

3. "Contractor” means any party performing or offering to perform a prime contract on behalf
of the Recipient.

4. “DEQ” refers to the Department of Economic Opportunity located at 121-125 Newark

Avenue, Jersey City, NJ 07302.
5. "Economic Incentive" means a tax abatement or exemption for a property or project which
requires approval of the Municipal Council and which reduces the annual amount of taxes

otherwise due, by $25,000 or more in the aggregate;

6. "Employment" means any job or position during the construction and operational phase of

expansions within the Recipient's work force which are to be filled by new employees.
However, positions filled through promotion from within the Recipient's existing work force
are not covered positions under this agreement.

7. “HEDC” means the Jersey City Department of Housing, Economic, Development and
Commerce, located at 30 Montgomery Street, Room 901, Jersey City, NJ 07302, (201)-547-
5070. HEDC is in charge of Project Employment & Contracting coordination and
monitoring on projects receiving abatements.

8. "Local Business" means a bona fide business located in Jersey City.

9. Mayor Cunningham’s Business Cooperative Program means the group within HEDC
responsible for collecting local and minority business contracts and capability information.



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

This group operates the Supplier Alert service which is to be used by the Recipient to meet
their good faith business contracting and construction subcontracting goals.

"Minority" means a person who is African, Hispanic, Asian, or American Indian defined as
follows:

a) "African-American" means a person having origins in any of the black racial groups
of Africa.
b) "Hispanic" means a person of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South

American or other Latino culture or origin, regardless of race, excluding, however,
persons of European origin. '

c) "Asian" means a person having origins in any of the original people of the I'ar East,
Southeast Asia, and subcontinent India, Hawaii or the Pacific Islands.

d) "American Indian" means a person having origins in any of the original people of
North America who maintains cultural identification through tribal affiliation or
community recognition.

"Minority or Woman Owned Local Business" means a bona fide business located in Jersey
City which is fifty-one (51%) percent or more owned and controlled by either a Minority or
woman.

"Non-Traditional Jobs" means jobs which are held by less than twenty (20%) percent
women, as reported by the New Jersey Department of Labor, Division of Labor Market, and
Demographic Research for Jersey City, which report shall be on file with the City Clerk.

"Permanent Jobs" mean newly created long term salaried positions, whether permanent,
temporary, part time or seasonal.

"Project or Project Site" means the specific work location or locations specified in the

15.

16.

17.

contract.

The “Project Employment & Contracting Coordinator” is a member of the HEDC staff who
is in charge of coordinating Project Employment & Contracting projects. Contractors and
developers engaged in projects covered by Project Employment & Contracting Agreements
will direct inquiries to the Project Employment & Contracting Coordinator.

The “Project Employment & Contracting Monitor” or “Monitor” is a member of the HEDC
staff directly under the command of the Project Employment & Contracting Coordinator,
who is in charge of monitoring the site, collecting the reports and documentation, and other
day-to-day Project Employment & Contracting housekeeping as stipulated by this agreement.

The “Project Employment & Contracting Officer” or “Officer” is an employee of the
recipient who is designated by the recipient to make sure the recipient is in compliance with
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the recipient’s Project Employment & Contracting agreement.

18. "Recipient" means any individual, partnership, association, organization, corporation or other
entity, whether public or private, or for profit or non-profit, or agent thereof, which receives
an Economic Incentive and shall include any Contractor, Subcontractor or agent of the
Recipient.

19.  “The Registry” or "Jersey City Employment Registry" means a list maintained by the City
or its designee of Jersey City residents seeking employment and Local Businesses, including
Minority or Woman Owned Local Businesses, seeking contracts.

20. "Subcontract” means a binding legal relationship involving performance of a contract that
is part of a prime contract.

21.  "Subcontractor" meansathird party that is engaged by the prime Contractor to perform under
a subcontract all or part of the work included in an original contract.

IL. Purpose:

The City wishes to assurc continuing employment opportunities for City residents,
particularly residents who are Minorities, and business opportunities for Local Businesses, especially
Minority and Women Owned Local Businesses, with employers located in or relocating to the City
who are the recipients of Economic Incentives. The City has determined to accomplish that goal by
requiring the Recipient of an Economic Incentive to act in Good Faith, as defined herein, and
discharge its obligations under this Agreement. To the extent mandated by State and Federal law and
so long as the Entity discharges its Good Faith obligations under this agreement, the City
acknowledges that the Recipient and its contractors are free to hire whomever they choose.

I1I. Good Faith Goals:

In the event the Recipient is able to demonstrate that its work force already meets the goals
set forth below or is able to meet such goals during the term of this agreement, the Recipient will not

be required to comply with the interviewing or reporting obligations set forth i Section VI1., A-L
(Construction Jobs) and Section VI, 2., A-J (Permanent Jobs).

1. Employment: The Recipient shall make a Good Faith effort to achieve the goal of a work
force representing fifty-one (51%) percent City residents, fifty-one (51%) percent of whom are
residents who are Minorities and, in Non-Traditional Jobs, six point nine (6.9%) percent of whom
are residents who are women, it being understood that one employee may satisfy more than one
category.

2, Business Contracting: The Recipient shall make a Good Faith effort to achieve the goal
of awarding twenty (20%) percent of the dollar amount of its contracts to Local Businesses, fifty-one
(51%) percent of which shall be Minority or Women Owned Local Businesses. If fifty-one (51%)
percent of Minority or Women Owned Local Businesses cannot be obtained, that percentage of
contracts must still be applied to local vendors.



I'V.  Recipient Designee:

The Recipient shall designate a principal officer of its firm to be responsible for
administering the agreement detailed herein and to report to and confer with the City in order to
discharge its Good Faith obligations as defined in this agreement. This officer should be designated
as the Project Employment & Contracting Officer.

#**The Recipient should send a letter of introduction regarding the “Project Employment &
Contracting compliance officer” to the Project Employment & Contracting Coordinator prior to any
preconstruction meetings. An example of this letter can be found in Appendix A. This principle
officer should also be present for all preconstruction meetings.

The Recipient should send a letter regarding the “Project Employment & Contracting Compliance
Officer” to the employees of the Recipient’s company. An example of this letter can be found in
Appendix AZ

V. Texrm:

This agreement shall be in effect for a period co-terminus with the effective period of the tax
exemption [the Economic Incentive]. Thus, it will commence on the date the City Council adopted
Ordmance approving the tax exemption and terminate the earlier of 45 years thereafter or
40 years from the date of recording of the HMBA mortgage, but inno event beyond the date that the
HMFA mortgage is paid in full.

VYI. Good Faith Defined:

1. Construction Jobs: Good Faith shall mean compliance with all of the following conditions:

A, Initja] Manning Report:

i) Prior to the commencement of their work on the Project, each Contractor

/Subconfractor shall prepare an Inifial Manming Report.

ii) The initial manning report should contain an estimate of the total work force to be
used at the Project Site, including the work force of any and all Contractors and
Subcontractors. It should also describe the specific construction trades and crafts, and
indicate the projected use of City residents, City resident Minorities and City
resident women. Attached hereto as Appendix B is the Recipient’s Initial Manning
Repott.

iii)  The Initial Manning Report shall be filed with the Project Employment and
Contracting Monitor, who must accept said Report prior fo the Recipient entering
into any construction contract. An example of this acceptance letter is given in
Appendix C.



B.

C.

D.

Developer’s Contracting Obligations

1y

i)

Once the developer submits the project’s initial manning report, he/she must forward
a letter with requests for quotation or bid to Mayor Cunningham’s Business
Cooperative Program for local and minority vendors for any construction or building
operating goods, services and sub-contracting opportunities. An example of this
letter is given in Appendix D.

The developer shall make a good faith effort to contact those businesses and
individuals who submit bids. This effort must be documented by letter, which will
be sent to Mayor Cunningham’s Business Cooperative Program at HEDC. An
example of this letter can be found in Appendix D2.

Contractor's/Subcontractor’s Compliance Statement

Prior to commencement of their work on the Project, each Contractor or Subcontractor must
agree in writing to comply with this agreement and the employment goals elaborated herein. An
example of this Compliance Statement can be found in Appendix E.

Union Statement of Using Its Best Efforts

)

Prior to commencement of their work on the Project, the contractor/subcontractor
must submit a statement expressing its adherence to the Project Employment &
Contracting Agreement to each union with which he/she has a collective bargaining
agreement covering workers to be employed on the project.

The Compliance Statement shall include a union statement for the particular union
to sign, which claims the union will use its best efforts to comply with the
employment goals articulated in the Project Employment & Contracting agreement.
This compliance statement is detailed in Appendix F. A copy of the signed
compliance statement must be sent to the Project Employment & Contracting
Monitor in HEDC before work starts in order for a developer to be in compliance.

iii)

The Recipient will require the Contractor or Subcontractor to promptly notify the
City of any refusal or failure of a union to sign the statement. If a particular union
refuses to sign a statement, the Recipient will document its efforts to obtain such
statement and the reasons given by the union for not signing such statement, and
submit such documentation to the Project Employment & Contracting Monitor in

-HEDC.

Sub-Contractors

The developer shall require that each prime contractor be responsible for the compliance of
his/her subcontractors with the aforementioned Project Employment & Contracting requirements
during the performance of the contract. Whenever the contractor sub-contracts a portion of the work
on the project, the contractor shall bind the subcontractor to the obligations contained ‘in these



supplemental conditions to the full extent as if he/she were the contractor.

L.

G.

Unjon Apprentices

The contractor is responsible for assuring that resident and minority apprentices account for
at least fifty (50%) percent of the total hours worked by union apprentices on the job in each trade
listed in which apprentices are employed, according to the apprentice-to-journey-worker ratio
contained in the collective bargaining agreement between the various unions, and shall hold each of
his/her subcontractors to this requirement. The Recipient will require the contractor or subcontractor
to promptly notify the City of any refusal of a union to utilize resident and minority apprentices.

Monthly Manning Report

)

iii)

The Recipient will cause the Contractor to complete and submit Monthly Project
Manning Reports to the Project Employment & Contracting Monitor in HEDC by the
seventh day of the month following the month during which the work is performed,
for the duration of the contract.

The report will accurately reflect the total work hours in each construction trade or
craft and the number of hours worked by City residents, including a list of minority
resident and women resident workers in each trade or craft, and will list separately
the work hours performed by employees of the Contractor and each of its
Subcontractors. The Monthly Manning Report shall be in the form attached hereto
as Appendix G. '

The Recipient is responsible for maintaining or causing the Contractor to maintain
records supporting the reported work hours of its Contractors or Subcontractors.

Monthly Certified Payroll Report

i)

The Recipient will cause the Contractor to furnish the Project Employment &
Contracting Monitor with copies of its weekly Certified Payroll reports. The reports

if)

will specify the residency, including gender and ethnic/racial origin of each worker.
The Certified Payroll report shall be in the form attached hereto as Appendix H.

Payroll reports must be submitted on a monthly basis with the Monthly Manning
Report or the recipient is no longer in compliance.

Equal Employment Opportunity Reports

Prior to commencement of work on the Project, the Recipient will request copies of the most
recent Local Union Report (EEO-3) and Apprenticeship Information Report (EEO-2) which are
required to be filed with the US Commission of Equal Employment Opportunity Commission by the
collective bargaining unit. These reports will be forwarded to the Project Employment & Contracting

- Monitor within one month of the signing of the Project Employment & Contracting Agreement.



J. Other Reports

In addition to the above reports, the Recipient shall furnish such reports or other documents
to the City as the City may request from time to time in order to carry out the purposes of this
agreement.

K. Records Access

The Recipient will insure that the City will have reasonable access to all records and files
reasonably necessary io confirm the accuracy of the information provided in the reports.

L. Work Site Access For Monitor

1) The City will physically monitor the work sites subject to this agreement to verify the
accuracy of the monthly reports. Each work site will be physically monitored
approximately once every two weeks, and more frequently if it is deemed reasonably
necessary by the City. The City's findings shall be recorded in a "Site Visit Report.”
An example of a bi-weekly site visit report can be found in Appendix L.

ii) The Recipient shall require the Contractor and Sub-contractor to cooperate with the
City's site monitoring activities and inform the City as to the dates they are working
at the Project site. This includes specifically instructing the on-site construction
manager about the monitoring process, and informing himv/her that the monitor will
contact him/her to set up an initial meeting. In the case of projects with multiple
locations, the Recipient shall inform the City of the dates they are working at each
site location(s) where they are working, in order to facilitate the monitoring.

2. Permanent Jobs: Good Faith shall mean compliance with all of the following conditions:
A, Pre-hiring Job Awareness: At least eight (8) months prior to the hiring of a recipient’s

permanent workforce, the Project Employment & Contracting officer for the Reciptent will sit down
with the head of the Registry to discuss how the Recipient plans to hire its permanent workforce.

The following issues should be covered in this meeting:

i) whether subcontractors will be used in the hiring process. -
i1) the specific types of jobs that need to be fiiled.
ii1) the qualifications needed for these particular jobs.
1v) possible training programs offered by the permanent employer.
v) the Recipient’s goals and how it plans to meet these goals.
vi) any other issues which need to be addressed by the Registry.

1. Subcontractor Notification -- If the Recipient decides to subcontract any portion or all of its
permanent workforce, then the Recipient must receive a signed acknowledgment from the
subcontracting party that it will abide by the Project Employment & Contracting Agreement before
said subcontractor begins staffing permanent employees. The Recipient must forward a copy of the
signed acknowledgment to the Project Employment & Contracting Monitor. An example of this -
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signed acknowledgment can be found in Appendix E.

2. Subcontractor Pre-Hirine Job Awareness Meeting -- Each subcontractor hired to staff

permanent job positions must appoint a Project Employment & Contracting Officer to meet with the
head of the Registry to discuss the same issues presented above in VI 2. A(I-vi).

3. Subcontractors of Subcontractors--Subcontractors of subcontractors are subject to the same
requirements for the initial subcontractors above in Section VI 2.A.

B. Documentation of Hiring Plan--Once the Pre-Hiring Job Awareness Meeting has taken place,
the Recipient must put together a document with goals and totals for future permanent employment
needs. This plan should summarize all that was discussed in the Pre-Hiring Awareness Meeting, list
estimates for manpower needs, set residential and minority employment goals commensurate with
the Project Employment & Contracting Agreement, and show how the recipient plans to meet these
goals. An example of this plan is found in Appendix J.

C. Pre-Hiring Notification: At least ten (10) working days prior to advertising for any
employees, the Recipient or the Recipient’s subcontractor shall provide the Registry with a written
notice, which shall state the job title, job description and minimum qualifications, rate of pay, hours
of work and the hiring date for each position to be filled, in qualitative and objective terms which
will enable the Registry to refer qualified applicants to the Recipient.

D. Advertisement: At the request of the City, or because the City does not have qualified
applicants to refer to the Recipient, the Recipient will place an advertisement for the jobs in a
newspaper which is regularly published in Jersey City. The Recipient must furnish the Project
Employment & Contracting Coordinator in HEDC with a copy of this advertisement.

E. Pre-Hiring Interview: The Recipient shall interview any qualified applicants referred to it
from the Registry, to be maintained by the City or its designee. In the event advertisement is
required, the Recipient agrees to interview any qualified persons responding to the advertisement.

F. Semi-Annual Employment Reporté: The Recipient will submit written semi-annual

employment reports to the Project Employment & Contracting Monitor 1n the form to be provided
by the City. The report will describe the job, whether the job is held by a City resident, minority
resident or woman resident. The report will explain in writing the reasons why any qualified
applicant referred by the Registry (or in the event advertisement is required, any qualified person
responding to the advertisement) was not hired. An example of this report is found in Appendix K.

G. Record Access: The Recipient shall provide the City with reasonable access to all files and
records including payroll and personnel information reasonably necessary to confirm the accuracy
of the information set forth in the semi-annual reports.

H. Work Place Access: The Recipient shall provide the City with reasonable access to the site
to physically monitor the work site to verify the accuracy of the information set forth in the semi-
annual reports.




L Other Reports. Documents: In addition to the above reports, the Recipient shall furnish such
reports or other documents that the City may request from time to time in order to implement the
purposes of this agreement.

I Incorporation _of Agreement: The Recipient shall incorporate the provisions of this
Agreement in all contracts, agreements and purchase orders for labor with any service, maintenance,
security or management agent or Contractor engaged by the Recipient whose personnel will be
assigned to the Recipient project.

3. Business Contracting

Good Faith shall mean compliance with all of the following conditions:

1) Solicitation of Businesses:

a) One month before accepting bids for goods and services, the Recipient must forward
a letter with requests for quotation or bid to Mayor Cunningham’s Business
Cooperative Program for local and local minority vendors for any construction or
building operating goods, services and subcontracting opportunities. An example of
this letter can be found in Appendix D.

b) After submission of bids, the Recipient will document whether the bid was accepted
or rejected, and state the reason why. An example of this documentation can be found
in Appendix D2.

1) Semi-Annual Purchasing Reports: The Recipient will submit written semi-
annual purchasing reports which will include a list of all contracts awarded
over a six month period and the dollar amounts of these contracts. The
reports will specify the number and dollar amount of contracts awarded to
Local Businesses and Minority or Women Owned Local Businesses. An
example of these reports can be found in Appendix L.

1) No Utilization of Local and Local Minonty Vendors As Conduits For
Vendors That Are Not Local Or Minority Owned:

The Recipient pledges not to use local and local minority vendors solely as conduits for vendors that
are not local and minority owned. Any discovery by HEDC of a recipient, either knowingly or
unknowingly, using the masthead of a local or minority owned business as a way to get credit for
local or minority employment when it should not, will immediately subject the recipient to the
penalties listed in Section VIII (d) below.

4. Summatibn of Documentation Needed For Compliance with Agreement

1. Letter Designating Project Employment & Contracting Officer (Appendix A)
Letter designating Project employment & Contracting Officer to Recipient’s Employees
(App.) AZ



R

o

10.
11.
12.
13.
14.

VIL.

Example of Initial Manning Report (Appendix B)

Letter Of Acceptance of Initial Manning Report (Appendix C)

Letter From Developer Forwarding Requests for Quotation or Bid for Minority and
Residential Vendors from Mayor Cunningham’s Business Cooperative Program (Appendix
D)

Documentation of Bid Submission {(Appendix D2)

Letter Expressing Project Employment & Contracting Obligations to Contractors/
Subcontractors (Appendix E)

Union Statement of Best Efforts (Appendix F)

Example of Monthly Manning Report (Appendix G)

Example of Monthly Certified Payroll Report (Appendix H)

Example of Bi-Weekly Site Visit Report (Appendix I)

Example of Documentation of Hiring Plan (Appendix J)

Example of Semi-Annual Employment Report (Appendix K)

Example of Semi-Annual Purchasing Report (Appendix L)

Notices of Violation:

Advisory Notice: The City will issue a written Advisory Notice to the Recipient if there is
non-compliance with a Good Faith requirement as defined in this agreement. The Advisory
Notice shall explain in sufficient detail the basis of the alleged violation. The Recipient shall
have four (4) working days to correct the violation. An example of an Advisory Notice can
be found in Appendix M.

Violation Notice: If the alleged violation set forth in the Advisory Notice has not been
corrected to the satisfaction of the City within four (4) working days, the City shall then issue
a Violation Notice to the Recipient. The Violation Notice shall explain in sufficient detail
the basis of the alleged, continuing violation. The Recipient will have three (3) working days
to correct the violation. An example of a Violation Notice can be found in Appendix N.

Correcting the Violation: Either or both the Advisory Notice or the Violation Notice may
be considered corrected if the Recipient satisfies the requirements of this agreement and so

advises the Cify i writing, subject fo confirmation by the City.

Extension of Time to Correction: Either the Advisory Notice or the Violation Notice may
be held in abeyance and the time for correction extended if the Recipient enters into
satisfactory written agreement with the City for corrective action which is designed to
achieve compliance. If Recipient fails to abide by the terms of such agreement the violation
will be considered not corrected.

Meetings Concerning Violations: The City may provide an opportunity for a meeting with
the Recipient, his Contractors or Subcontractors in an effort to achieve compliance; or may
respond to Recipient's request for a meeting after the Recipient has made timely submission
of a written explanation pursuant to the above. The meeting shall be requested no later than
two days after the alleged violator has submitted the written explanation.
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VIIL

Interviews Relating to Violations: The City may conduct interviews and may request
additional information from appropriate parties as is considered necessary to determine
whether the alleged violation has occurred.

Determination of Violation: The City shall issue a determination of whether the Recipient
is in violation of this agreement as soon as possible but not later than thirty days after the
delivery of the Violation Notice to the Recipient. If the City determines that the Recipient
is in violation, the City shall be entitled to the liquidated damages provided below.

Damages:

While reserving any other remedies the City may have at law or equity for a material breach
of the above terms and conditions, the parties agree that damages for violations of this agrecment
by the Recipient cannot be calculated within any reasonable degree of mathematical certainty.
Therefore, the parties agree that upon the occurrence of a material breach of any of the above terms
and conditions and after notice and expiration of any period to correct the violation, the City will be
entitled to liquidated damages from the Recipient in the following amounts:

a)

,b)

d)

failure to file Initial Manning Reports (Construction Jobs} or Pre-Hiring Notification
(Permanent Jobs) or Pre-Contracting Notification (Business Contracting): Five (5%)
percent increase in the annual payment in lien of taxes;

failure to conduct Pre-hiring Interviews or submit Compliance Statement
(Construction Jobs) or Solicit Bids (Business Contracting): Three (3%) percent
increase in the annual payment in lieu of taxes;

failure to allow record or work place access or submit any other required reports (all
categories): Two (2%) percent increase in the annual payment in lieu of taxes.

the use of the local or local minority business’ masthead for labor or work supplied
by a non local or local minority vendor: Five (5%) percent increase in the annual
payment in licu of taxes.

IX.

Commercial Tenants at the Project Site:

1.

The Recipient shall send all tenants of commercial space within the Project Site a
letter and a Tenant Employment Services Guide in the form attached as Appendix
0.

The Recipient shall solicit information from tenants of commercial space about the
composition of the work force of each tenant. The information solicited will be
submitted to the Project Employment & Contracting Monitor, which shall provide
the Recipient with a questionnaire in the form attached as Appendix P.

The Recipient will send the results of its solicitation to the Project Employment &
Contracting Monitor no later than October 31 of each year.
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4, The Recipient shall send all tenants of commercial space within the Project Site a
Supplier Alert Service Registration Package in the form attached as Appendix Q.

X. Notices

Any notice required hereunder to be sent by either party to the other, shall be sent by certified
mail, retum receipt requested, addressed as follows:

1. When sent by the City to the Recipient it shall be addressed to:
2. When sent by the Recipient to the City, it shall be addressed to:

Melvin Robinson

Project Employment & Contracting Monitor

Department of Housing, Economic Development & Commerce

30 Montgomery Street, Suite 404

Jersey City, New Jersey 07302

with separate copies to the Mayor and the Business Administrator; unless prior to
giving of such notice, the City or the Recipient shall have notified the other in
writing.

XI.  Adoption, Approval, Modification:

This agreement shall take effect on the date that the Economic Incentive is approved by the
Municipal Couneil. '

XIL. Controlling Regulations and Laws:

To the extent required by State and Federal Law and so long as the Entity discharges its Good
Faith obligations under this agreement, the City agrees and acknowledees that the Recipient and its

contractors are {ree to hire whomever they choose. If this agreement conflicts with any collective
bargaining agreement, the City agrees to defer to such agreements so long as the Recipient provides
the City with a copy of the offending provision in the collective bargaining agreement.

ATT i CILY OF JERSEY CITY

Robert Byrne |

Carlton MecGee

City Clerk Business Administrator
ATTEST: - WHITLOCK MILLS, L.P.
BY: HT A Whitlock, LLC, its general partner
CO?WM-’L 6 -\ﬁﬂ,&m@ Acdnn_ :
Secretary ~J ' Wallace L. Scruggs, Managing
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11-27-01
PROJECT EMPLOYMENT & CONTRACTING AGREEMENT

This Project Employment & Contracting Agreement is made onthe _ day of ,
2003, between the CITY OF JERSEY CITY [City] and WHITLOCK MILLS, L.P., having its
principal office at ¢/o Housing Trust of America, 6851 Oak Hall Lane, Suite 100, Columbia, MD
21045. Recipient agrees as follows:

1. Definitions:

The following words and terms, when used in this agreement, shall have the following
meanings unless the context clearly indicates otherwise.

1. "City" means the Business Administrator of the City of Jersey City, or his designee,
including any person or entity which enters into a contract with the City to implement, in
whole or in part, this agreement.

2. "Construction Contract" means any agreement for the erection, repair, alteration or
demolition of any building, structure, bridge, roadway, or other improvement on a Project
Site.

3. "Contractor" means any party performing or offering to perform a prime contract on behalf
of the Recipient.

4. “DEQ” refers to the Department of Economic Opportunity located at 121-125 Newark

Avenue, Jersey City, NJ 07302.

5. "Economic Incentive" means a tax abatement or exemption for a property or project which
requires approval of the Municipal Council and which reduces the annual amount of taxes
otherwise due, by $25,000 or more in the aggregate;

6. "Employment" means any job or position during the construction and operational phase of

O eI 2O O] atCtdsd LT O - PTOIMOTTOINS, attons, or

expansions within the Recipient’s work force which are to be filled by new employees.
However, positions filled through promotion from within the Recipient's existing work force
are not covered positions under this agreement.

7. “HEDC” means the Jersey City Department of Housing, Economic, Development and
Commerce, located at 30 Montgomery Street, Room 901, Jersey City, NJ 07302, (201)-547-
5070. HEDC is in charge of Project Employment & Contracting coordination and
monitoring on projects receiving abatements.

8. "Local Business" means a bona fide business located in Jersey City.

9. Mayor Cunningham’s Business Cooperative Program means the group within HEDC
responsible for collecting local and minority business contracts and capability information.



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

This group operates the Supplier Alert service which is to be used by the Recipient to meet
their good faith business contracting and construction subcontracting goals.

"Minority" means a person who is African, Hispanic, Asian, or American Indian defined as
follows:

a) "African-American” means a person having origins in any of the black racial groups
of Africa.
b) "Hispanic" means a person of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South

American or other Latino culture or origin, regardiess of race, excluding, however,
persons of European origin.

c) "Asian" means a person having origins in any of the original people of the Far East,
Southeast Asia, and subcontinent India, Hawaii or the Pacific Islands.

d) " American Indian" means a person having origins in any of the original people of
North America who maintains cultural identification through tribal affiliation or
community recognition.

"Minority or Woman Owned Local Business" means a bona fide business located in Jersey
City which is fifty-one (51%) percent or more owned and controlled by either a Minority or
woman.

"Non-Traditional Jobs" means jobs which are held by less than twenty (20%) percent
women, as reported by the New Jersey Department of Labor, Division of Labor Market, and
Demographic Research for Jersey City, which report shall be on file with the City Clerk.

"Permanent Jobs" mean newly created long term salaried positions, whether permanent,
temporary, part time or seasonal.

"Project or Project Site" means the specific work location or locations specified in the

15.

16.

17.

contract.

The “Project Employment & Contracting Coordinator” is a member of the HEDC staff who
1s in charge of coordinating Project Employment & Contracting projects. Contractors and
developers engaged in projects covered by Project Employment & Contracting Agreements
will direct inquiries to the Project Employment & Contracting Coordinator.

The “Project Employment & Contracting Monitor” or “Monitor” is a member of the HEDC
staff directly under the command of the Project Employment & Contracting Coordinator,
who is in charge of monitoring the site, collecting the reports and documentation, and other
day-to-day Project Employment & Contracting housekeeping as stipulated by this agreement.

The “Project Employment & Contracting Officer” or “Officer” is an employee of the
recipient who is designated by the recipient to make sure the recipient is in compliance with
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the recipient’s Project Employment & Contracting agreement.

18. "Recipient" means any individual, partnership, association, organization, corporation or other
entity, whether public or private, or for profit or non-profit, or agent thereof, which recetves
an Economic Incentive and shall include any Contractor, Subcontractor or agent of the
Recipient.

19.  “The Registry” or "Jersey City Employment Registry" means a list maintained by the City
or its designee of Jersey City residents seeking employment and Local Businesses, including
Minority or Woman Owned Local Businesses, seeking contracts.

20.  "Subcontract” means a binding legal relationship involving performance of a contract that
is part of a prime contract.

21, "Subcontractor” means a third party that is engaged by the prime Contractor to perform under
a subcontract all or part of the work included in an original contract.

1I. Purpose:

The City wishes to assure continuing employment opportunities for City residents,
particularly residents who are Minorities, and business opportunities for Local Businesses, especially
Minority and Women Owned Local Businesses, with employers located in or relocating to the City
who are the recipients of Economic Incentives. The City has determined to accomplish that goal by
requiring the Recipient of an Economic Incentive to act in Good Faith, as defined herein, and
discharge its obligations under this Agreement. To the extent mandated by State and Federal law and
so long as the Entity discharges its Good Faith obligations under this agreement, the City
acknowledges that the Recipient and its contractors are free to hire whomever they choose.

IT1. Good Faith Goals:

In the event the Recipient is able to demonstrate that its work force already meets the goals
set forth below or is able to meet such goals during the term of this agreement, the Recipient will not

be required to comply with the inferviewing or reporting obligations set forth in Section VI1., A-L
(Construction Jobs) and Section VI, 2., A-J (Permanent Jobs).

I. Employment: The Recipient shall make a Good Faith effort to achieve the goal of a work
force representing fifty-one (51%) percent City residents, fifty-one (51%) percent of whom are
residents who are Minorities and, in Non-Traditional Jobs, six point nine (6.9%) percent of whom
are residents who are women, it being understood that one employee may satisfy more than one
category.

2. Business Contracting: The Recipient shall make a Good Faith effort to achieve the goal
of awarding twenty (20%) percent of the dollar amount of its contracts to Local Businesses, fifty-one
(51%) percent of which shall be Minority or Women Owned Local Businesses. If fifty-one (51%)
percent of Minority or Women Owned Local Businesses cannot be obtained, that percentage of
contracts must still be applied to local vendors.



IV.  Recipient Designee:

The Recipient shall designate a principal officer of its firm fo be responsible for
administering the agreement detailed herein and to report to and confer with the City in order to
discharpe its Good Faith obligations as defined in this agreement. This officer should be designated
as the Project Employment & Contracting Officer.

***The Recipient should send a letter of introduction regarding the “Project Employment &
Contracting compliance officer” to the Project Employment & Contracting Coordinator prior to any
preconstruction meetings. An example of this letter can be found in Appendix A. This principle
officer should also be present for all preconstruction meetings.

The Recipient should send a letter regarding the “Project Employment & Contracting Compliance
Officer” to the employees of the Recipient’s company. An example of this letter can be found in
Appendix AZ :

V. Term:

This agreement shall be in effect for a period co-terminus with the effective period of the tax
exemption [the Economic Incentive]. Thus, it will commence on the date the City Council adopted
Ordinance approving the tax exemption and terminate the earlier of 45 years thereafter or

40 years from the date of recording of the HMBA mortgage, but in no event beyond the date that the
HMFA mortgage is paid in full.

VI.  Good Faith Defined:
1. Construction Jobs: Good Faith shall mean compliance with all ofthe following conditions:

A, Initial Manning Report:

i) Prior to the commencement of their work on the Project, each Contractor

/Subcontractor shall prepare an Initial Manning Report.

11) The initial manning report should contain an estimate of the total work force to be
used at the Project Site, including the work force of any and all Contractors and
Subcontractors. It should also describe the specific construction trades and crafts, and
indicate the projected use of City residents, City resident Minorities and City
resident women. Attached hereto as Appendix B is the Recipient’s Initial Manning
Report.

111) The Initial Manning Report shall be filed with the Project Employment and
Contracting Monitor, who must accept said Report prior to the Recipient entering
into any construction contract. An example of this acceptance letter is given in
Appendix C.



B.

C.

D.

Developer’s Contractine Obligations

D

ii)

Once the developer submits the project’s initial manning report, he/she must forward
a letter with requests for quotation or bid to Mayor Cunningham’s Business
Cooperative Program for local and minority vendors for any construction or building
operating goods, services and sub-contracting opportunities. An example of this
letter is given in Appendix D.

The developer shall make a good faith effort to contact those businesses and
individuals who submit bids. This effort must be documented by letter, which will
be sent to Mayor Cunningham’s Business Cooperative Program at HEDC. An
example of this letter can be found in Appendix D2.

Contractor's/Subcontractor’s Compliance Statement

Prior fo commencement of their work on the Project, each Contractor or Subcontractor must
agree in writing to comply with this agreement and the employment goals elaborated herein. An
example of this Compliance Statement can be found in Appendix E.

Union Statement of Using Its Best Efforts

i)

Prior to commencement of their work on the Project, the contractor/subcontractor
must submit a statement expressing its adherence to the Project Employment &
Contraciing Agreement to each union with which he/she has a collective bargaining
agreement covering workers to be employed on the project.

The Compliance Statement shall include a union statement for the particular union
to sign, which claims the union will use its best efforts to comply with the
employment goals articulated in the Project Employment & Contracting agreement.
This compliance statement is detailed in Appendix F. A copy of the signed
compliance statement must be sent to the Project Employment & Contracting
Monitor in HEDC before work starts in order for a developer to be in compliance.

iif)

The Recipient will require the Contractor or Subcontractor to promptly notify the
City of any refusal or failure of a union to sign the statement. If a particular union
refuses to sign a statement, the Recipient will document its efforts to obtain such
statement and the reasons given by the union for not signing such statement, and
submit such documentation to the Project Employment & Contracting Monitor in
HEDC.

Sub-Contractors

The developer shall require that each prime contractor be responsible for the compliance of
his/her subcontractors with the aforementioned Project Employment & Contracting requirements
during the performance of the contract. Whenever the contractor sub-contracts a portion of the work
on the project, the contractor shall bind the subcontractor to the obligations contained in these



supplemental conditions to the full extent as if he/she were the contractor,

F.

G.

Union Apprentices

The contractor is responsible for assuring that resident and minority apprentices account for
at least fifty (50%) percent of the total hours worked by union apprentices on the job in each trade
listed in which apprentices are employed, according to the apprentice-to-journey-worker ratio
contained in the collective bargaining agreement between the various unions, and shall hold each of
his/her subcontractors to this requirement. The Recipient will require the contractor or subcontractor
to promptly notify the City of any refusal of a union to utilize resident and minority apprentices.

Monthly Manning Report

)

iii)

The Recipient will cause the Contractor to complete and submit Monthly Project
Manning Reports to the Project Employment & Contracting Monitorin HEDC by the
seventh day of the month following the month during which the work is performed,
for the duration of the coniract.

The report will accurately reflect the total work hours in each construction trade or
craft and the number of hours worked by City residents, including a list of minority
resident and women resident workers in each trade or craft, and will list separately
the work hours performed by employees of the Contractor and each of its
Subcontractors. The Monthly Manning Report shall be in the form attached hereto
as Appendix G. '

The Recipient is responsible for maintaining or causing the Contractor to maintain

- records supporting the reported work hours of its Contractors or Subcontractors.

Monthly Certified Pavroll Report

Y

The Recipient will cause the Contractor to furnish the Project Employment &
Contracting Monitor with copies of its weekly Certified Payroll reports. The reports

i)

will specify the residency, including gender and ethnic/racial origin of each worker.
The Certified Payroll report shall be in the form attached hereto as Appendix H.

Payroll reports must be submitted on a monthly basis with the Monthly Manning
Report or the recipient is no longer in compliance.

Equal Employment Opportunity Reports

Prior to commencement of work on the Project, the Recipient will request copies of the most
recent Local Union Report (EEO-3) and Apprenticeship Information Report (EEO-2) which are
required to be filed with the US Commission of Equal Employment Opportunity Commission by the
collective bargaining unit. These reports will be forwarded to the Project Employment & Contracting
Monitor within one month of the signing of the Project Employment & Contracting Agreement.



I QOther Reports

In addition to the above reports, the Recipient shall furnish such reports or other documents
to the City as the City may request from time to time in order to carry out the purposes of this
agreement.

K. Records Access

The Recipient will insure that the City will have reasonable access to all records and files
reasonably necessary to confirm the accuracy of the information provided in the reports.

L. Work Site Access For Monitor

i} The City will physically monitor the work sites subject to this agreement to verify the
accuracy of the monthly reports. Each work site will be physically monitored
approximately once every two weeks, and more frequently if it is deemed reasonably
necessaty by the City. The City's findings shall be recorded in a "Site Visit Report.”
An example of a bi-weekly site visit report can be found in Appendix I. '

ii) The Recipient shall require the Contractor and Sub-contractor to cooperate with the
City's site monitoring activities and inform the City as to the dates they are working
at the Project site. This includes specifically instructing the on-site construction
manager about the monitoring process, and informing him/her that the monitor will
contact him/her to set up an initial meeting. In the case of projects with multiple
locations, the Recipient shall inform the City of the dates they are working at each
site location(s) where they are working, in order to facilitate the momitoring.

2. Permanent Jobs: Good Faith shall mean compliance with all of the following conditions:
A. Pre-hiring Job Awareness: At least eight (8) months prior to the hiring of a recipient’s

permanent workforce, the Project Employment & Contracting officer for the Recipient will sit down
with the head of the Registry to discuss how the Recipient plans to hire its permanent workforce.

The following 1ssues should be covered 1n this meefing:

i) whether subcontractors will be used in the hiring process.
i) the specific types of jobs that need to be filled.
iii) the qualifications needed for these particular jobs.
iv) possible training programs offered by the permanent employer.
v) the Recipient’s goals and how it plans to meet these goals.
vi) any other issues which need to be addressed by the Registry.

1. Subcontractor Notification -- If the Recipient decides to subcontract any portion or all of its
permanent workforce, then the Recipient must receive a signed acknowledgment from the
subcontracting party that it will abide by the Project Employment & Contracting Agreement before
said subcontractor begins staffing permanent employees. The Recipient must forward a copy of the
signed acknowledgment to the Project Employment & Contracting Monitor. An example of this
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stgned acknowledgment can be found in Appendix E.

2. Subcontractor Pre-Hirine Job Awareness Meeting -- Each subecontractor hired to staff

permanent job positions must appoint a Project Employment & Contracting Officer to meet with the
head of the Registry to discuss the same issues presented above in VI 2. A(I-v1).

3. Subcontractors of Subcontractors--Subcontractors of subcontractors are subject to the same
requirements for the initial subcontractors above in Section VI 2.A.

B. Documentation of Hiring Plan--Once the Pre-Hiring Job Awareness Meeting has taken place,
the Recipient must put together a document with goals and totals for future permanent employment
needs. This plan should summarize all that was discussed in the Pre-Hiring Awareness Meeting, list
estimates for manpower needs, set residential and minority employment goals commensurate with
the Project Employment & Contracting Agreement, and show how the recipient plans to meet these
goals. An example of this plan is found in Appendix J.

C. Pre-Hiring Notification: At least ten (10} working days prior to advertising for any
employees, the Recipient or the Recipient’s subcontractor shall provide the Registry with a written
notice, which shall state the job title, job description and minimum qualifications, rate of pay, hours
of work and the hiring date for each position to be filled, in qualitative and objective terms which
will enable the Registry to refer qualified applicants to the Recipient.

D. Advertisement: At the request of the City, or because the City does not have qualified
applicants to refer to the Recipient, the Recipient will place an advertisement for the jobs in a
newspaper which is regularly published in Jersey City. The Recipient must furnish the Project
Employment & Contracting Coordinator in HEDC with a copy of this advertisement.

E. Pre-Hiring Interview: The Recipient shall interview any qualified applicants referred to it
from the Registry, to be maintained by the City or its designee. In the event advertisement is

required, the Recipient agrees to interview any qualified persons responding to the advertisement.

F. Semi-Annual Employment Reports: The Recipient will submut written semi-annual

employment reports to the Project Employment & Contracting Monitor 1n the form to be provided
by the City. The report will describe the job, whether the job is held by a City resident, minority
resident or woman resident. The report will explain in writing the reasons why any qualified
applicant referred by the Registry (or in the event advertisement 1s required, any qualified person
responding to the advertisement) was not hired. An example of this report is found in Appendix K.

G. = Record Access: The Recipient shall provide the City with reasonable access to all files and
records including payroll and personnel information reasonably necessary to confirm the accuracy
of the information set forth in the semi-annual reports.

H. Work Place Access: The Recipient shall provide the City with reasonable access to the site
to physically monitor the work site to verify the accuracy of the information set forth in the semi-
annual reports.




L. Other Reports. Documents: In addition to the above reports, the Recipient shall furnish such
reports or other documents that the City may request from time to time in order to implement the
purposes of this agreement.

L. Incorporation of Agreement: The Recipient shall incorporate the provisions of this
Agreement in all contracts, agreements and purchase orders for labor with any service, maintenance,
security or management agent or Contractor engaged by the Recipient whose personnel will be
assigned to the Recipient project.

3 Business Contracting

Good Faith shall mean compliance with all of the following conditions:
1) Solicitation of Businesses:

a} One month before accepting bids for goods and services, the Recipient must forward
a letter with requests for quotation or bid to Mayor Cunningham’s Business
Cooperative Program for local and local minority vendors for any construction or
building operating goods, services and subcontracting opportunities. An example of
this letter can be found in Appendix D.

b) After submission of bids, the Recipient will document whether the bid was accepted
orrejected, and state the reason why. An example of this documentation can be found

in Appendix D2.

1) Semi-Annual Purchasing Reports: The Recipient will submit written semi-
annual purchasing reports which will include a list of all contracts awarded
over a six month period and the dollar amounts of these contracts. The
reports will specify the number and dollar amount of contracts awarded to
Local Businesses and Minority or Women Owned Local Businesses. An
example of these reports can be found in Appendix L.

i) No Utilization of Local and [ocal Minority Vendors As Conduits For
Vendors That Are Not Local Or Minority Owned:

The Recipient pledges not to use local and local minority vendors solely as conduits for vendors that
are not local and minority owned. Any discovery by HEDC of a recipient, either knowingly or
unknowingly, using the masthead of a local or minority owned business as a way to get credit for
local or minority employment when it should not, will immediately subject the recipient to the
penalties listed in Section VIII (d) below.

4, Summation of Documentation Needed For Compliance with Agreement

1. Letter Designating Project Employment & Contracting Officer (Appendix A)
2. Letter designating Project employment & Contracting Officer to Recipient’s Employees
(App.) AZ



el S
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10.
11.
12.
13.
14.

VIL

Example of Tnitial Manning Report (Appendix B)

Letter Of Acceptance of Initial Manning Report (Appendix C})

Letter From Developer Forwarding Requests for Quotation or Bid for Minority and
Residential Vendors from Mayor Cunningham’s Business Cooperative Program (Appendix
D)

Documentation of Bid Submission (Appendix D2)

Letter Expressing Project Employment & Contracting Obligations to Contractors/
Subcontractors (Appendix E)

Union Statement of Best Efforts (Appendix F)

Example of Monthly Manning Report (Appendix G)

Example of Monthly Certified Payroll Report (Appendix H)

Example of Bi-Weekly Site Visit Report (Appendix I)

Example of Documentation of Hiring Plan (Appendix J)

Example of Semi-Annual Employment Report (Appendix K)

Example of Semi-Annual Purchasing Report (Appendix L)

Notices of Violation:

Advisory Notice: The City will issue a written Advisory Notice to the Recipient if there is
non-compliance with a Good Faith requirement as defined in this agreement. The Advisory
Notice shall explain in sufficient detail the basis of the alleged violation. The Recipient shall
have four (4) working days to correct the violation. An example of an Advisory Notice can
be found in Appendix M.

Violation Notice: If the alleged violation set forth in the Advisory Notice has not been
corrected to the satisfaction of the City within four (4) working days, the City shall then issue
a Violation Notice to the Recipient. The Violation Notice shall explain in sufficient detail
the basis of the alleged, continuing violation. The Recipient will have three (3) working days
to correct the violation. An example of a Violation Notice can be found in Appendix N.

Correcting the Violation: Either or both the Advisory Notice or the Violation Notice may
be considered corrected if the Recipient satisfies the requirements of this agreement and so

advises the City in writing, subject to confirmation by the City.

Extension of Time to Correction: Either the Advisory Notice or the Violation Notice may
be held in abevance and the time for correction extended if the Recipient enters into
satisfactory written agreement with the City for corrective action which is designed to
achieve compliance. If Recipient fails to abide by the terms of such agreement the violation
will be considered not corrected.

Meetings Concerning Violations: The City may provide an opportunity for a meeting with
the Recipient, his Contractors or Subcontractors in an effort to achieve compliance; or may
respond to Recipient's request for a meeting after the Recipient has made timely submission
of a written explanation pursuant to the above. The meeting shall be requested no later than
two days after the alleged violator has submitted the written explanation.
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VIIL

Interviews Relating to Violations: The City may conduct interviews and may request
additional information from appropriate parties as is considered necessary to determine
whether the alleged violation has occurred.

Determination of Violation: The City shall issue a determination of whether the Recipient
is in violation of this agreement as soon as possible but not later than thirty days after the
delivery of the Violation Notice to the Recipient. If the City determines that the Recipient
is in violation, the City shall be entitled to the liquidated damages provided below.

Damages:

While reserving any other remedies the City may have at law or equity for a material breach
of the above terms and conditions, the parties agree that damages for violations of this agreement
by the Recipient cannot be calculated within any reasonable degree of mathematical certainty.
Therefore, the parties agree that upon the occurrence of a material breach of any of the above terms
and conditions and after notice and expiration of any period to correct the violation, the City will be
entitled to liquidated damages from the Recipient in the following amounts:

a)

b)

d)

failure to file Initial Manning Reports (Construction Jobs) or Pre-Hiring Notification
(Permanent Jobs) or Pre-Contracting Notification (Business Contracting): Five (5%)
percent increase in the annual payment in lieu of taxes;

failure to conduct Pre-hiring Interviews or submit Compliance Statement
(Construction Jobs) or Solicit Bids (Business Contracting): Three (3%) percent
increase in the annual payment in lieu of taxes;

failure to allow record or work place access or submit any other required reports (all
categories): Two (2%) percent increase in the annual payment in lieu of taxes.

the use of the local or local minority business’ masthead for labor or work supplied
by a non local or local minority vendor: Five (5%) percent increase in the annual
payment in lieu of taxes. '

IX.

Commercial Tenants at the Project Site:

1.

The Recipient shall send all tenants of commercial space within the Project Site a
letter and a Tenant Employment Services Guide in the form attached as Appendix
0.

The Recipient shall solicit information from tenants of commercial space about the
composition of the work force of each tenant. The information solicited will be
submitted to the Project Employment & Contracting Monitor, which shall provide
the Recipient with a questionnaire in the form aftached as Appendix P.

The Recipient will send the results of its solicitation to the Project Employment &
Contracting Monitor no later than October31 of each year.
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4, The Recipient shall send all tenants of conimercial space within the Project Site a
Supplier Alert Service Registration Package in the form attached as Appendix Q.

X. Notices

Any notice required hereunder to be sent by either party to the other, shall be sent by certified
mail, return receipt requested, addressed as follows:

1. When sent by the City to the Rectpient it shall be addressed to:
2. When sent by the Recipient to the City, it shall be addressed to:

Melvin Robinson

Project Employment & Contracting Monitor

Department of Housing, Economic Development & Commerce

30 Montgomery Street, Suite 404

Jersey City, New Jersey 07302

with separate copies to the Mayor and the Business Administrator; unless prior to
giving of such notice, the City or the Recipient shall have notified the other in
writing.

X1. Adoption, Approval, Modification:

This agreement shall take effect on the date that the Economic Incentive is approved by the
Municipal Council.

XII. Controlling Regulations and Laws:

To the extent required by State and Federal Law and so long as the Entity discharges its Good

Faith obligations under this agreement, the City agrees and acknowledges that the Recipient and its

contractors are free to hire whomever they choose. If this agreement conflicts with any collective

argaining agreement, the City agrees to i Ipi vides
the City with a copy of the offending provision in the collective bargaining agreement.

ATTEST: CITY OF JERSEY CITY
Robert Byrne Carlton McGee

City Clerk Business Administrator
ATTEST: WHITLOCK MILLS, L.P.

BY: HTA Whitlock, LL.C, its general partner

Secretary Wallace L. Scruggs, Managing Member

12



EXHIBIT 9

WHITLOCK MILLS, L.P.

CERTIFICATION OF FINAL CONSTRUCTION COST

[ . A.LLA. do certify to the following:

That to the extent that our firm has been involved in the design and construction of the Land
and Improvements, as more fully described in that certain Financial Agreement dated
as between Whitlock Mills, L.P. and the City of Jersey City, and based on
those records and contracts that have been supplied to us by Whitlock Mills, L.P., we certify that the
total construction cost for the above referenced project is $

Certified by:

ALLA.

Date:

State of:

County of:

Sworn before me this
Day of ;

Notary

M:AMariaVWBATEMENTS-TAXWHITLOCK MILLS (rental projecti\Certification of Final Construction (Exh 9).wpd
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Susan Bass Levin
Chairman

C. Sean Closkey
Executive Director
November 3, 2003

Whitlock Mills, [ .2
c/o Wallace 1. § luggs, Partner
Housing Trust o "imerica, LI..C.
6851 Oak Hall T | e

Suite 100
Columbia, Mary{-:d 21045

DRAFT COPY

Re: HMFA #1388, Whitlock Mills
Mortgape Commitment

Dear Mr. Scrugg:

I am pleased to al ise you that the members of the New J. ersey Housing and Mortgage Finance Agency at the publc
meeting of Octot| - 16, 2003 approved a mortgage commitment for construction and permanent financing for the
above-captioned | dject. At the time of the meeting, the morigage was estimated to be $34,337.852 at an infterest
rate of 5.80% full| amortized over a term not to exceed 40 years with a construction period interest of 4.75%. 'The
Agency Board al:, approved a second mortgage estimated to be $739,038 at an interest rate of 7-05% with a 30
year termn and cony:uction period interest at 5.30% . (The "Board Item" aftached}.

The Executive Diy:ztor has been authorized to establish the Joans' actual amounts and interest rates pursnant to the
parameters set for)!. below, fo be fully amortized over a term of 40 years (First Mortgage) and 30 years (Second
Mortgage), using :{ lebt service ratio of & Tinimum of 1.15.

The mortgage loay amount which a Project can snstain is derived from a combination of the following factore: 1)
debt service ratio, |.+ term of mortgage, 3) interest rate, 4) incame and expense projections, and 5) sources and uses
of project developy:ent funds, Using a debt service ratio of 1.15 » & term of 40 years , an interest rate of 5.80% and
the income and ex | mse projections and the sources and uses of project development funds set forth on the attached
Form-10, the proje) : can sustain a first mortgage amount of $34,337,852. Using a debt service ratio of .15 a term

of 30 years and an |- terest rate of 7.05 %, and the inco jectl and uses of project
IEn £ |ist forth on the attached Form 10, the project can sustain a second mortgapge of $739,038. While

ltem 2 is a factor, " vhic femains constant, ltems 1, 3, 4, and 5 are variable factors, which can change between

factors. If projecte: net operating income changes due to increases or decreases in income and/or expenses or due to
changes in the som1:s and uses of project development finds, or final risk assessment dictates a revised debt service
Goverage ratio, the inortgage amounts shall be adjusted commensurately to amounts which would keep the debt
service ratio at the Agency determined appropriate ratio. Any gap resulting from the lowering of the mortgage
amount is the sole r: ponsibility of the borrower. .
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HMFA #1388, Y zitlock Millg
Mortgage Comri ment
Page 2

amount of one jircent of the anticipated mortgage amount or $50,000 in the form of cash or letter of credit
acceptable to the ' gency. This letter and payment must be refurned to the Agency within 10 business days,

The borrower is .{:sponsible for satisfaction of the conditions set forth in the commitment. In addition, the borrower
is responsible fo wdvising the Agency of any increases in Pproject development costs not covered in the projected
easts at the time |\ commitment and any changes to sources of funds other than Agency financing. This commitment
letter summarize: |ihe terms and conditions of the mortgage loan commitment being offered by the Agency. The full
terms end condit s are set forth in the attached Request For Action By Members of the New Jersey Housing and
Mertgage Financ| Agency, which was approved by a Resolution of the Members at its October 16, 2003 meeting.
Your execution ¢| -his commitment as adopted signifies acceptance of the mortgage commitment as adopted by that
Resolution. | -

If you have any ¢|.estions regarding the above, please do not hesitate to contact Tohn A, Fuhrmann of my staff at

(609) 278-7582.
: Sincerely,
DRAFT COPY
i C. Sean Closkey
' Executive Director
- Enclosures

Terms and Conditie 15 Accepted by:

Sponsor's Signat.; ‘B

Date
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Whitlockj!iills , * October 16, 2003
Jersey Ci 7, Hudson - BOARD APPROVED
HMFA # 388 © AGENDA ITEM

REQUEST FOR ACTION BY MEMBERS OF
THE| NEW JERSEY HOUSING AND MORTGAGE FINANCE AGENCY

Action Ry} uested:

Approval | f a mortgage commitment for an estimated $34,337,852 in construction and
permanent | {inancing for a project known as Whitlock Mills, HMFA #1388, upon the
terms and | onditions set forth below,

Approval |'or a .secdnt_:l mortgage for an estimated $739,038 in construction and
- permanent . ‘inancing upon the terms and conditions set forth below.

Approval 1;! insure the mortgage loan for a project known as Whitlock Mills, HMFA
#1388, pw 1ant to the Housing Finance Agency Risk Sharing Program offered by the
U.S. Depai|:nent of Housing and Urban Development. The mortgage loan to be insured
shall be in |in amount currently estimated to be $34,337,852 for a term of forty years.
The New J|isey Housing and Mortgage Finance Agency shall assumne 25% of this risk of
any loss dij! to mortgage default and the Federal Housing Administration shall assume
75% of any!loss. ' :

Issues, Co1jiments and Related Actions:

Prior Board Approval

Atits Tuly 1!, 2003 meeting, the Agency Board approved a Declaration of Intent for
constructionl md permanent financing,

|
‘ The Sponsor

The sponso:i: of the project have or will form a Limited Partnership known as Whitleek

Urban Rene'|i'al, LP. HTA Whitlock, LLC is the general partner. The principals of the
general pariiership include Wallace L. Scruggs (47.5%), Stewart L Marcus’ family -
limited partr:rship known as JAG Ventures Itd. (47.5%) and Episcopal Community
Developmer: an affiliate of Jersey City Episcopal Community Development, Inc (5%).
Messrs.” Scri zgs and Marcus are the principals of Housing Trust of America, LLC.
Together the:. have developed 12-muiti families residential communities including 2,500
affordable ajartments along with 1,000 assisted living units and over 20,000 single
family home: in the United States, Puerto Rico and Canada.

Page 1 of9
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The Project

Whitlock ) fills will improve a 6.66 acre site in the Morris Canal Redevelopment Area of
Jersey Ci'l.. Commencing after the Civil War and lasting into the 20th Century, the site
was home| "0 a manufacturing complex that produced navel ropes (cordage). Five of the
original t{iildings remain. Two will be razed and the remainder will be gutted and
renovated |.> house living units and parking.

Known as; 160 Lafayette Avenue the site also fronts o Manning Avenue and overlooks
Lafayette |Park currently undergoing a $1.8 million renovation. Yocated in close
proximity |- Lafayette Village, an Agency funded project, the subject property is within
walking diitance of both the Hudson County Light Rail System and Liberty State Park.
One can ai: 0 walk to Communipaw Avenue a main city artery with viable mass transit
accessibilifv,

Whitlock fills will provide 330 rental units: 130 one-bedroom apartments, 150 two-
bedroom aj artments and 50 three-bedroom apartments. 119 units will be for low-income .
families, 7}! units will be for moderate-income families and 132 umits will be market
units. Eaj' type of apartment will enjoy various designs because of the renovation
aspects of {'e project. Most apartments will have two baths. '

Interior fir|ih will be painted dry wall, carpeted floors, and tile wainscot in the baths.
Each apart |:ent will have its own gas fired heating and air conditioning unit. Utility cost
will be the {:sponsibility of the tenants.

There will »e a parking garage with a 125-car capacity and on-site parking for an
additional . "3 autos.

Agency Financing
The Agenc : anticipates providing construction and permanent financing in an estimated
amount of (134,337,852 at an estimated interest rate of 5.80% for the permanent term of
40 years. T)i:: mortgage will be secured by a first mortgage lien on the property.

The Agenc;t; anticpates providing a second mortgage in the amount of $739,038 at an
interest rate f 7.05% for the permanent term of 30 years. The mortgage will be secured
by a second 1ortgage lien on the property.

Other Funding Sources

Tax Credits The sponsor is applying for 4% tax credits and anticipates.
the sale of federal low-income housing tax credits at 78
cents on the dollar. In exchange for the tax credits, the
investor is expected to generate equity in the amount of
$10,013,000.

Page 2 of 9
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DCA

Sponsor E

Jersey Cit;,

‘Terms and |, Jonditions:

Borrower:

uity

Use of loar | i'unds:

Principal:

Interest:

The developer will apply for Balanced Housing Program
funds in the amomnt of $4,000,000.

The Sponsor will provide cash, letter of credit, deferred
~~developer -fee, -and/or evidence that costs have beep
incurred and paid in the aggregate amount of $7,976,549.

The sponsor anticipates receiving $1,300,000 in HOME
Punds from the City of Jersey City. This is based on
indications from municipal officiels.

Whitlock Urban Renewal P, such entity to be
called below the “Sponsor.” This commitment

@006

includes authorization for changes to the name -

and/or organizational structure of the Sponsor,
provided such changes are acceptable to Agency
staff and the Attorney General's Office.

Funds will be used to rehab 90 units and construct
240 new units. The project is a multifamily rental
housing project known as Whitlock Mills, HMFA.
#1388 (the “Project™).

A $34,337,852 first mortgage and a $739,038
second mortgage, provided, however, that the
Executive Director is authorized to adjust this
amount pursuant to the Underwriting Parameters set
forth below,

The first mortgage construction period interest is
4.75%. The permanent interest is 5.80. The second
mortgage construction period interest is 5.30%

Term:

Collateral:

Repayment:

The permanent interest is 7.05%.

Provided, however, that the Executive Director is
authorized to adjust these rates pursuant to the
Underwriting Parameters set forth below.

First Mortgage: 40 years.

Second mortgage: 30 years.

First mortgage lien on Project real estate; security
interest in personal property included in the Project;

and second mortgage lien on Project real estate,

The first and second mortgages will be repaid from
project revenues,
Page 3 of 9
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Source of!|oan funds: ~ First mortgage: Tax-exempt bonds or other funds
- : available to the Agency.

Second mortgage: Taxable bonds or other funds
- available to the Agency. . . .

Underwri| 1g parameters: - The first mortgage loan amount that a project can
' sustain is derived from a combination of the
following factors: 1) debt service ratio, 2) term of
mortgage, 3) interest rate, 4) income and expense
projections, and.5) sources and uses of project
development funds. Using a debt service ratio of
1.15, a term of 40 years, and interest rate of 5.80%
per annum, and the income and expense projections
and the sources and uses of project development
funds set forth on the attached Form 10, the project
! ‘ can sustain a mortgage amount of $34,337,852.
While Itemn 2 is a factor that remains constant, Items
1,3, 4, and 5 are variable factors, which can change
! between mortgage commitment and closing. As
such changes impact the mortgage amount the
' project can sustain, the Executive Director is
authorized to adjust the mortgage amount stated
above to reflect changes to the variable factors. If
projected net operating income changes due to
increases or decreases in income and/or €Xpenses or
due to changes in the sources and uses of project
development funds, or final risk assessment dictates
a revised debt service coverage ratio, the mortgage
amount shall be adjusted commensurately to an
amount that would keep the debt service ratio at the
Agency determined appropriate ratio.

The second mortgage loan amount is determined 0000

by: 1) the interest rate, 2) the term of the second
mortgage, 3) income and expense projections, and
4) the amount of funds that can be re-paid using a
debt service ratio of 1.15 over the total of the first
and second mortgage debt service payments. The
project can sustain a second mortgage loan amount
of $739,038 as set forth on the attached form 10.
Items 1, 2, 3 and 4 are variable factors, which can
change between mortgage commitment and closing.
If the projected net operating income changes due to
increases or decreases in income and/or expenses or
due to changes in the sources and uses of project-
Development funds, the mortgage amoumt shall be
adjusted commensurately to an amount, which will
meet the 1.15 debt service ratio.

Page 4 of 9
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The working capital amount is derived through a
Projection of the 1) completion date of the project,
2) the number of units to be occupied at the time the
Agency closes its permanent loan, 3) the actual
rents, other income, debt service and operating
expenses at that time, 4) the projected amount of
time fo rent up the remaining units to reach
sustaining occupancy and 5) market conditions as
reflected in the appraisal/market study.. Using these
factors, the Agency estimates that 17 units will be
pre-leased at time the Agency makes its loan and
' that based upon the underwriting assumptions set
forth in the Form 10, $2,846,243 will be needed for
an estimated 12 months of working capital reserve.
If the actual factors at the time the' Agency makes
its loan are different from what is projected in this
| commitment, Agency staff is authorized to adjust
- the working capital to reflect the actual factors.

Commitmy):it expiration date: June 30, 2004, however, the Executive Director is

' authorized to extend the commitment for two
additional consecutive three-month periods, if
deemed appropriate in his sole discretion,

Closing co| litions:

1. Satjifactory compliance with the Agency's Multifarmnily Underwriting Guidelines
and | Iinancing Policy dated October 25, 2001, as amended.
|

! . ‘
2. Sutrnission, verification and compliance with all Agency closing requirements
inel| ding, but not limited to, insurance coverage naming the HMFA.

3. Appi'nval by the Attorney General's Office of any documents needed to
imp |: ment any action requirements, as requested.

4. The |>ceipt of all necessary environmental and municipal approvals satisfactory to

the ¢ gency staff and the Attorney General's Office including, but not limited to,
zonilig variances, site plan and a tax abatement agreement pursuant to N,J.S. A,
55:1:-K-37 or the Long Term Tax Exemption Law, if applicable. In the event a
tax i atement is obtained under the Long Term Tax Exemption Law, the Agency
rese:.es the right to request a tax abatement under N.J.S.A. 55:14K-37 as a

- fartt:r condition of commitment, and reserves the right to require the sponsor to
reling 1ish its status as an urban renewal entity.

5. Receiat of firm commitments from the funding sources needed to complete the
proje:t in form and substance satisfactory to the Agency staff. They are:
Balai:ed Housing, Jersey City Home Funds, Tax Credit Tavestor contributions
and ’ m approval of Risk Share credit enhancement, all in form and substance
satisiiictory to the Agency.

Page 5 of 9
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6. Th|: ability of the project and the developer to comply with federal tax laws and/or
otl| ir applicable state and federal statutory and regulatory requirements.

7. Eviilence of HUD risk-share commitment.
8. Ev|:lence of z Pilot agreement with Jersey City acceptable to the Agency.
9. Rel ~up period is subject to confirmation in the appraisal/market study report.

10. Fuyiling of HMFA Operating Deficit Escrow Account (ODEA) satisfactory to the
Agincy. The HMFA will have exclusive control of the ODEA account.

11. Thee Whitlock Mills construction contract will include a Summary Trade Payment
Breikdown signed by the contractor. In addition, the Agency will require a
corlingency representing 7% of the contract price along with a 2% soft cost
coniingency. S '

12. At jlosing the sponsor will provide an irrevocable letter of credit in an amount
detiy'mined by the Agency in its sole discretion to provide the necessary funds to
fulfi | the project’s sources and uses requirement.

Page 6 of &
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New Jerse;
Project Rel
Whitlock i
Jersey Cit|

‘ort
- Hudson County

Block No.' 2057

Legislativi| District: 31
Census Tri:t: 33

|
Project Dej:ription:

Site Locati 112

@010

» Housing and Mortgage Finance Agency
 Programs Division

'lills, HMFA# 1388

Lot No. 18

Congressional District: 13

A 330-rental unit complex combining existing former
industrial buildings to be renovated with new constroction
on 2 6.66 acre site in the Morris Canal Redevelopment
District in Jersey City. There will be 119 units of low-
income housing, 79 units of moderate-income housing and
132 market units,

160 Lafayette Street, Jersey City is within walking distance
of the Hudson County Light Rail Line and Liberty State
Park. The site is also within walking distance of
Communipaw Avenue and its access to public
transportation. The Whitlock Mills 6.66 acre site overlooks

. Lafayette Park that is experiencing a $1.8 miltion face-lift.

Developme| ; Team:

Sponsor:

Principals:

Whitlock Urban Renewal, LP

Meg Manley

¢/o Housing Trust of America, L.L.C.
6851 Oak Hall Lane

Suite 100

Columbia, Maryland 21045

Wallace L. Scruggs, JAG Ventures, Episcopal Community

i P
—'—Devdemoxu T

Architect:

Contact Person and Address same as Sponsor.

John Saracco Architecture
John Saracco

518 Main Street

PO Box 245

Boonton, New Jersey 07005
073-209-4428

Page 7 of 9
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Atforney:

General C(/ntractor:

Clearances |:nd Disclosures:

Site Contrt)

Zoning:

Utilities:

Ballard Spahr Andrews and Ingersol
David Prior

1735 Market Street

51" Floor

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103
215-864-8500

The AT Group Inc.

Scott Hill, VP

460 Park Avenue South
New York, New York 10016
212-889-9200

Shelter Properties, LLC
Patrick Duffy, SVP:

218 N. Charles Street

Suite 220

Baltimore, Maryland 21201
410-962-0595

All required disclosures will be submitted prior to
project funding.

- The Sponsor has entered into an Agreement of Sale for
the subject property. The United States Bankruptcy
Court, New Jersey Distyict, is supervising the
$4,000,000 purchase.

The property is properly zoned for the proposed use.
" All utilities are available to the site,

Was determined in accordance with Agency standards

@o11

Land Valuzjon:

Taxes:

Environme; ;al:

Tax abatement will be granted in accordance with a Pilot

agreement satisfactory to the Agency.

To be completed in accordance with Agency
underwriting standards.

Page 8 of 9
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DEVELOPMENT COSTS

Financial | formation:
Acquisitiol $4,000,000 ($12,121/DU)) ($11/SF)
Construciijin Costs

(Includii|;; Contractor Fee) $35,960,000 (3108,969/DUn) ($96/SF)
Carrying, -:nancing and _

Other CH:rges $16,916,439 (351,262/DT)) ($46/SF)

|
Professioni| Fees 1,050.000 ($3.303/DU) 3/S
TOTALD. | NVELOPMENT COST $57,966,439 ($175,656/DU) ($156/SF)
"LESS PRC|:OSED SOURCES
Balanced F): using Program $ 3,600,000 (312,121/DU)
LIHTC Eqijity $10,013,000 ($30,342/DU)
Sponsor’s 1{:[uity $ 1,226,549 ($3,783/D1)
" Deferred D{ seloper Fee $ 6,750,000 ($20,454/DU)
Jersey City-{:IOME Funds $ 1,300,000 ($3,939/D1)
MORTGA(];3S REQUIRED
First Mortg|1re $34,337.852 " ($105,390/DU)
Second Moi1 zage $ 739,038 ($7,256/D1N)
Affordability Overview
| Rental Housing
Unit Net Utility Range of

# Units Type Morithly Rent Allowance Affordability
78 1 Bdm $643 $60 Mod 57.5%
93 . 2Bdmm $785 $78 Mod 57.5%
27 3 Bdrm $898 $95 Mod 57.5%
23 1 Bdrm $1,350 0 Mkt.
53 2Bdrm $1,600 0 Mkt,
15 3 Bdm $2,100 0 Mkt,
18 1 Bdm $1,350 _ 0 Mk,
8 2 Bdm - $1,600 0 Mkt,
1 3 Bdim $2,100 0 Mkt.
8 1 Bdm $1,350 0 Mkt,
1 2 Bdrm $1,600 0 Mkt
4 3 Bdrm $2,100 0 Mkt,
1 2 Bdrm Supt 0 Mkt.
330 Units
Attachment:
1. Form 10

Page 9 of 9
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NEW JERSEY HOUSING AND MORTGAGE FINANCE AGENCY
MULTI-FAMILY PROGRAMS DIVISION
SCHEDULE 10-;| | PROFECT DESCRIPTION '

-Inducemenm
- X Comynitent HMEAS
“"Re-Commlm || * Drate;
Bond Sala Prepared by:
Closing Reviewed by:
Nurgz of Housing Development b
16 Lefayirle Aveme . Zp Code: O304
Projec| Street Address :
1
Municiprality o) oty Gty . Block Na, . 87 Lat No, . ‘18
County I
ZType of Development : Type of Constrygtion
(Selert either Faodly or Sa |+ Cltbes (NOT ROTH))
‘Family . i ] New Cominktion X
¥ : i . ] Moderue Rehablliien - ]
Legislativg District; ¢ . Subatantie} Relah L X
Congrensional District: 3 Conversiog, . X i
Cedians Trace: ' —= Retblimtion/Drcupled —
No. of dwelling sl ; - 330, Parking
No. of cunmently i .. -
octupied DU's ‘ - Totol Numher of Parking Spaces 278 -
Constraction Term : 34 :(mos.) Rstin of poking DU s 1:]
Rent-mp Perlod [ TR
of Lasn | Tz of Finaneing. Troe of Subsidy
Conxmtion Loan ) L Tan Exergpt X City Living . .
Constreton & Pemmanent Le |1 3+ Texale AMordable Rental Nioualpg. =~
Prrmsnent Loan Coly L .
Lost Summary
Cost of Land andfor Inprover || 1 iy 512,121 per DU Si1 perSqh
Connnaethor Cont ‘ 510863 par DU 556 _per Sqfy,
Tota! Project Cost ! T 517089 perDU $152_per Sqn.
Types of | No.of Unk Type Nei
Resitlential No.of . Btories {No. of Unit Sime Na, of Retitahle Rental Rsoms
Structnres? Biigy | _ Each -ER') In Sg. FL. x . Units = Ama Per Uil Tetal
Low Rlse k] . 283 1. I au, 4 . 136 A 16
..» g ' 1. ' B 1 RS, i 84 KN Py
. 1 . o 8% ] ED 070 4 12
I3 12 E T N i 428 5. [
: 2. R0 : B 800 A ' 5
1. . 817 ] BL7 3. 5
| - = 2 1,670 6 12
‘ - F __Bi0 2 1,580 5. 12
R o -3 . 4200 1. 1,200 .7 7
Miil-Rise 30 i A ! 725 2 44,950 4 48
| N 2 910 144 131,40 ] [
. N 3 50 35 38,300 i %3
6 1 700 5 30,900 4 58
& [ 50 . ] 3 4750 5 0
6 3 1250 1 13,750 7 fal
[ [ . . i 0572
ymnasium, Lamdry, Comme R . 16,184
Tolals 33 .. 330 371,531 1,771

*Low - Rise (] - 3). Mi/Hi - Rl 1 4 + xtoclen)), Townbouse or Som-detached
rev, GIZGMDILE, 11501 MR, 1 /03 AMA, 5/19/03 MRK. 572003 AMA
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SCHEDLE 10.1|:_EST. DEVELOFMENT COSTS AND CAPJTAL REQUIREMENTS

Incucrrrem
X Cotmmitm
Re-Lommi |
Honod Suke
Closing

B

Directoc b wdit)
WUl loany be repaid from project revenucy?

L SOURCES OF FUNTX | | DIRING CONSTRUCTION: (TF Sowres iy w grant, enter "G™)
- . YorNarG
%) HMFA Farst | 142 v ¥ $ 34337852
o) HMFA Sexx | | N 30y, 705%) . ¥ 5. Taumm.
<} Baianced /i Focd w7 F0% Holdbwtk (To5] BT 59 000,000 - y 5 A HO0L000
o) 4% T 6 | 1 B 750 Tokal Tax Crediiag 10013,000) - 5 7.500,750
#) Defermsi De | | yper Fee y S a0
D) Jeruey Clty ¥ |{ 1 16 B, . . . S 1300000,
&) Spoesdl Eiy ||+ . . . : S__ - mohm
W . o . s T
TOTALSD || CRAOF CORSTRUCTIONETINGS, — s A
ol P |+ 3 CONSTRUCTION:
TION 1z i
) Land T e (s 214.283.7} per Acm) H 1,500,000 -
b) Bullding Acquiltion 500,000
<) Reltestion H . . . o
) Othes: - R A 4,000,000
B, CORSTRUCTION C || TE _—
u) Detholkion . H “ANOH00 .
b) Df-zite Improvements . 300800
©) Rexidential Struchirey j Elﬂ:mn.
) Commumity Service Fa | ty . , e o 300000
&) Enviramenta] Clearas 1| : S e ?Lﬁ_ ,
1) Surety & Banding L 000000
#) Budlding Permin TR
1) Gange Patking : . T
1) Utlthy Cooasction Fees ST 1HS000
13 General Requiments . S s
k) Contacior Qveshend & | (ofil ... 000,600 |
1) Oiher  FRAE i 250,000
m) Other: i P 35,960,000
C. DEVELOPERS FEE . 14.68% . 6,750,000
D. CONTINGENCY |
&) Hunl Conla ' 15006 2517,200
) Soft Coan = 2000%, 102,163 2,619,363
5. FROFESSIONAL SEF |
&) Apprxisal & Markel St | 5___ 20440
b) Architest l .. 500:000.:
¢) Engiteer . e 30800
d) Atomey .. %0D.DO0
&) Con CandficationsAudll - . 25000 .
f) Eovirnmenal Consuitn | . 30,000 -
g} Historica) Conpaingt 25,800
1) Sail Lrvestipation .30
1) Surveyor L 25000
1) Other: . TN
¥} Other: 1,050,000
F&R&Q’m |EENEES .
&) Operstor fems (pro-comsir 3 ioo completion) 5 . 75000 ,
k) Advertising awd Proawoti | pre-comstruction completion) 50,000
complction) L 25000
d)Howsing Affordable Sarv ¢ 1 i Fen (HAS) * 90,000
¢) Other: . . 240,000
G CARRYING AND FIN; | | IRG COSTS DURING CONSTRUCTION -
w) ok @ 4700 % for { 24 o) on 1 17,168 1,631,048
WAE T $ BBOO0  (poraomem) x 2060 Yre 176,000
c} Inmrance $ ___ 35000 (paranmim) 1 200 Y. 70,000
d) Titke Inrurance md Reewr |) | F Expenscs 25000
€) HMEA Folats{Coar'l & Fern, | oy} raiece acemmd pviciog e} % on ! 13,076,890 EGTH
nHWASmmmﬂnm:‘gHCum'iﬁhmﬁn!y]' . j 1% b {
g} HMFA Coma Lot ServFe. DI % for ( 24 mos) oo 5,076,890 350,969
b) Qtter Lesder Copstrisctio | um:h:gFen(Bndg:lam]—‘em for Acqulstion) 100,600
1} Tax. Credit Fees 200,000
J) Negative Ashlimpe N 395,440
K Interest @ . 53000 % for { M4 mas) oo ! 738,00 78,338
) Other  Bridge Lowp Foe . 50,000 3778133
3. USES OF FI/NDS DURINI | |, DNSTRUCTION: . 84,437,385

4, BALANCE OF FUNDS NE [ | ED FOR CONSTRUCTION (overagg f shertage):
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LMMIE&IM 59.24 %of liem §
wdlm
s Compased of:

2) Cash

1) Pledged Assets

c) Bridgs Finmocing

13, REPAYMENT OF 6K |1 4D NOTE QRAPPLICABLE

Priscipal §

Interest @ . . {

an

‘Y mos.

e ————————
Tota) 3
[ —

NEW JERSEY HOUSING AND MORTGAGE FINANCE AGERCY

By: 1 . Br

1170572003 16:32 FAX e veera
00 PM
SCHEDULE 10| Y: EST. DEEEL PMENT COSTS AN'D CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS (con'f.)
£ SOURCELOF FUNT ||, 'OR PEHMANENT FUNDING;
2) 4% TexCnff | @H%mw'rnuudiasm,mmm 5 2503250
) Trrevodabi Imufﬁ,,ﬁm . ' T 5 Ioieed 025654
€} . s . .
o |\ = P s —
. 5, o
T —— —— ey s—--—._.—..____"
s )
N
_—
H L
GOthern -~ - . P .
H,_ ESCROW REQUIR || IENTE - -
I)Wnﬂ:hgl'.'lpihlhl!:w
) Debt Service & (|} » ruting Enpensea 2,846,243
- b} Rental Agent Rez il : p Fex (during Renrnp) ——
¢) Advertising and 1l + notion (during Reni-np) e a
2) Other Escruws
%) Insuranex (172 Y1 s 57,750
b) Touzs {3 Qi) s 37,649
<y Debi Service Pyt 1 & Servicing Fee for § Mogth S____ Isia3
d) Monigage Inmuoren i Preqivm (MIP) | year phus 3 reonils H 160,959
£) Repair & Regalee 1 | 1 Reservas s
nOpmungDeﬂdt || L 3 . 20000
£ Other L s e
B OF if I[IEMAEMLM L 944
ummgggm. CLOSE (gvprgee / shoringe):

L N ]

H

(Dwnbpaw.:‘limﬁzzdsimnw)

NIHMFA Bxecutve Director of Deglgnee
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SCHEDULE 10 ¢ 1 OPERATING EXPENSES
Sposor : Whotk U | | oRenewal 187 HMFA# 1388
Dev, Name: Whitlock W , Prepared by bopin A Ful 1
Reviewed by: [ [] :
! J gemenl Di
1. ADMINIS | ATTVE EXPENSF, IL SALARIES & #of Total Wages
: RELATED CHARGES Emplovess Lo beochy
Swatinmery ¢ § grpl 2400 . Stperimendent RV ! . 36Jsb
Telephone . 000, Junlioriat L N
Dues & 5ot ., . R Groundy & Landeraping 1.00 I 24,120 7
lnep, & Oth b Tes e Social Services L
Advertising . 30000 . Silm Offiex & Admin EY . 50450
Legn] Servi il . 2400 Maintenumee 200" CTU 113519
Auditing (Y 1 End) .. 9300 . Olhu‘-Sdlﬂﬂ: . T, .
Soc. Sery, 84, L Eopl. Bepefits . : Y |
—_— P .
Bookkeepin || | ! e Empl Payroll Taxes . i A%595°
Migc. Adm ¢ denses Y ) Wuqiu“!Camp.. ' ... 708,
Comnptter C 1 1 ey 5,000 Btbrer . N
. TOTAL % b0 353,624
i TOTAL % 72,600
L. MAINTEN, | i CE AND REPAIRG V. MAINTENANCE CONTHACTS
My _.?JDD Security !
Capenitry 1I - 2500, Elevator 30,000
Phmmbing 2400 Rubbish Removal . J0000 -
Electical | DN Mearing & AC Maln, . R000.
Klwchen Equ | 1 ent b g G Ay, Pasking & Lacdacaping D '.'SSE?
Elevator _. . A Exbsrminating -7
Windows & i 159 T Cyclical Apt Painting 38,500
Velisks &E1| | p. T ) Other: | S i
Snow Reamon | . S .
Groumds & I |« iscaping | * 3000 TOTAL § 143,500
Prin & Dec. 1| 12, T R
Small Equip, || [ools 0,200 V. ULILITY EXPENGE
Janly, Sop. & 1 ials L 5.@'
HVAC Sopply | o %A Wiz Charges 355060,
Misz. MaimL. {1 1ipl, T Sawer Charges 20000
Gthers ; ) Electicity 34500 -
| Gas 36500,
TOTAL § 73,450 Fuel S
TOTAL § 114,000
umﬁ}wlmuw
Gross Renty 5 4,083,072
Lt Vazansy . (=) 204,154
Less Utdlidea §  ppikabic) {-) 114,000
Gros Shellen Il lents s 3,764,918
xRate x . 400-%
Real Eve Ti i . - 150,597
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SCHEDULE 10,()_: ANTICIPATED GROSS RENTS

Momigege Amount HI7E5 : ’ HMFA # 1388

Mongage Micrest Rue 30 Prepared by, Jotm A Fulmun 10063
“Term (yearn) 40 Reviewed by:

 Amprtization (Y 5,M) —_N (Managemeny; Division) Dae

FdR Arce Husdson .

Allovwmnee for
Noof No, of Tatgey ** Groy Terant Peld
Betrooms [ Ut __ Corupancy Rent Litillges=+# Met Rent Mimthly Al
MiE .. T3 |Mod 57.5% 643 ) 533 - 45474 545,688
oL 3 |Mnd 57,5% . 9Es 78 o 38,751 7H5,012
o 27 Mot 57 5% N 253 1. 95 8@ 21,661 250,172
e % Ve 1350 1350 YT 3760
.4 53 |Warki Leoag 1600 B4.800 1,017,600
Y BN ] 2150 o 2,100 31,500 378,000
S Y N " B SR ) T 350 34360 751,600
: 8 [Mdket o LEoO| . . 1,600 12,800 153,600
- _.1‘ Mk . LA FRT] 2,100 29200
[ N B ) 1350 15550 1H8%
1) N Y N 1.600 1,600 19,300
A [Maws LI0G] - 2,160 8400 100,800
Supers agt 4 [Manigg] : N ]
a3 340,286

1
Antitipated Annoel Gross Rexts 4,083,672
I ———

- Indicatr on n v i ) Fitz line wrhich 13 for the Superintens

ITit's rentefres, |t .1 50 In the Renz cojumn.

- Tndicxs Low' . dod” of "Mkt™ AND the pereentage of median ineome.
Low Incame «. i * b o fess of medlm incowme
Modezste Lncor | - S0% 1o 80% of median incoare
ket Income « | D%+ of wedhm income:

¥ Where teoats ! | thelr own wtilitias, s *wifity aflowance” nng be subtacted
mmm:'ldnmabhmlwhmdeﬂmﬁnglhdrmmrhmgc.

5

. Gut, Electric Pald by

{a)  Emipment; ) Services:

Ranges —_ Heat

Reftigerator "X Hol Watsr

Afr Conditinnie * X Conking

Lammiry Facilive 7 X Adr Conditioning

Disposal Housshald Electric

Dinvorasher X Water

Capet A . Serwer

Drapes X .. Parking

Swimming Poal X Oiher.

Temmnts Courl X Other

Fliheer Ceiter X

(mcluge all wiliyy cose associa ¢ | with the commercial space In your descripion)
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SCHEDULE (1% : SUMMARY OF ANTICIPATED ANNUAL INCOME AND EXPENSES

Spomar b Whir.lncklhi 11 Repcwal LF

HMFAA 1388

Prepared by: Jotm A, Fulmman 1
Drev, Name Whillock M || Revitwed by:
RENTAL INCOME
Aparmenr A .1 H 4,083,071
Vacmmcy Les | 4 I %) - 204,154
NET APT.R)' TS - 3878918
Commereial ! me H
Gage & Pu it g i . 211800
Gamge & Pul 1 g Yacancy 5% 10,590
NET COMM [ | ZIAL RENTALS i 201,210
. TOTAL REN I | L INCOME 3 4,080,124
OTHER INCOME
Laursiry Mact b 12 5. ~ . 28.600
Othet: Reaml ¥ ¥asher/Dryers & Catde Hook-up Fep - 1280
TOTAL OTHI il . INCOME H 86,280
TOTAL REV [, UE s EGSABS
EXPENSES
Adminlirative  (Schedul: Iy 1Y 71600
Salaries (Schesiule 1) 253 524
Maint & Repan (Schedrie IN) TARSD |
Muint. Copenac ¢ {Scheduio IV} J43.3500
Udlities (Sehetiule V) 114,000
Woatjagoment B { 400 % ) .
° % of Tom] Renal Income) 163,20%
Real Extate Tux i Scherdale VI 130597
Insurance . . 5330 per Unit 115,500
Regerve for Rep b * a0d Beplacement
400,00 pet uait 132.000
TOTAL EXPE{ ({5 % 1318576
NET OPERATING INCOM | 5 2,847, E
DEBT HERVICE
1., Principal ard In z * 91 ) s 2,208,897
2 Montg & Boxd 14 -« Fre 040 % 137,351
3. M ) 0:3750 % 128,767
AGHENCY DEM IRVICE 1 1.476.115__
DEBT SERVICE © |1 OTHER o
MORTGAGELO' § H 51.786.00
TOTAL DEET 5§ | VICE 3 1527301
NET INCOME 5 319,401
* Less Remwn on Equity ( % m 7,509,750 ) - %
Project ProfltALoss) ’
DEET SERYVICE RATIO [ ILCULATION :
.. ET OPERATING INCOME
D5SR = 'GENCY DEHT SERVICE . = 1.150080
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